AGREEMENT

SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS SERVICES AGREEMENT is made as of Saturday, October 1, 2022 (effective date). By and between Pinellas County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida ("County"), and Curaparr, Inc. d/b/a Center for Rational Living, Tampa, FL ("Contractor"), (individually, "Party," collectively, "Parties").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the County requested proposals pursuant to 22-0371-P (LN)("RFP") for Adult Drug Court Treatment – Division N and Z services; and

WHEREAS, based upon the County's assessment of Contractor's proposal, the County selected the Contractor to provide the Services as defined herein; and

WHEREAS, Contractor represents that it has the experience and expertise to perform the Services as set forth in this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals, the mutual covenants, agreements, terms and conditions herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby mutually acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Definitions.

- A. "Agreement" means this Agreement, including all Exhibits, which are expressly incorporated herein by reference, and any amendments thereto.
- B. "County Confidential Information" means any County information deemed confidential and/or exempt from Section 119.07, Florida Statutes, and Section 24(a), Article 1 of the Florida Constitution, or other applicable law, including, but not limited to data or information referenced in HIPAA, and any other information designated in writing by the County as County Confidential Information.
- C. "Contractor Confidential Information" means any Contractor information that is designated as confidential and/or exempt by Florida's public records law, including information that constitutes a trade secret pursuant to Chapter 688, Florida Statutes, and is designated in this Agreement or in writing as a trade secret by Contractor (unless otherwise determined to be a public record by applicable Florida law). Notwithstanding the foregoing, Contractor Confidential Information does not include information that: (i) becomes public other than as a result of a disclosure by the County in breach of the Agreement; (ii) becomes available to the County on a non-confidential basis from a source other than Contractor, which is not prohibited from disclosing such information by obligation to Contractor; (iii) is known by the County prior to its receipt from Contractor without any obligation or confidentiality with respect thereto; or (iv) is developed by the County independently of any disclosures made by Contractor.
- D. "Contractor Personnel" means all employees of Contractor, and all employees of subcontractors of Contractor, including, but not limited to temporary and/or leased employees, who are providing the Services at any time during the project term.
- E. "Services" means the work, duties and obligations to be carried out and performed safely by Contractor under this Agreement, as described throughout this Agreement and as specifically described in the Statement of Work Exhibit attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. As used in this Agreement, Services shall include any component task, subtask, service, or function inherent, necessary, or a customary part of the Services, but not specifically described in this Agreement, and shall include the provision of all standard day-to-day administrative, overhead, and internal expenses, including costs of bonds and insurance as required herein, labor, materials, equipment, safety equipment, products, office supplies, consumables, tools, postage, computer hardware/software, telephone charges, copier usage, fax charges, travel, lodging, and per diem and all other costs required to perform Services except as otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement.

2. Execution of Agreement

The execution of this Agreement is expressly limited by the Terms and Conditions hereon. County and the Contractor are not bound by additional provisions or provisions at variance herewith that may appear in the Contractor's quotation, estimate, scope of work, or any other such related documents, acknowledgement in force, or any other communication from Contractor to or from County unless such provision is expressly set forth herein.

AGREEMENT

3. Conditions Precedent

This Agreement, and the Parties' rights and obligations herein, are contingent upon and subject to the Contractor securing and/or providing the performance security, if required, and the insurance coverage(s) required, within 10 days of the Effective Date. No Services shall be performed by the Contractor and the County shall not incur any obligations of any type until Contractor satisfies these conditions. Unless waived in writing by the County, in the event the Contractor fails to satisfy the conditions precedent within the time required herein, the Agreement shall be deemed not to have been entered into and shall be null and void.

4. Services

- A. **Services** The County retains Contractor, and Contractor agrees to provide the Services. All Services shall be performed to the satisfaction of the County and shall be subject to the provisions and terms contained herein and the Exhibits attached hereto.
- B. **Services Requiring Prior Approval** Contractor shall not commence work on any Services requiring prior written authorization in the Statement of Work without approval from Director of the Human Services Department.
- C. **Additional Services** From the Effective Date and for the duration of the project, the County may elect to have Contractor perform Services that are not specifically described in the Statement of Work attached hereto but are related to the Services ("Additional Services"), in which event Contractor shall perform such Additional Services for the compensation specified in the Statement of Work attached hereto. Contractor shall commence performing the applicable Additional Services promptly upon receipt of written approval as provided herein.
- D. De-scoping of Services The County reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to de-scope Services upon written notification to the Contractor by the County. Upon issuance and receipt of the notification, the Contractor and the County shall enter into a written amendment reducing the appropriate Services Fee for the impacted Services by a sum equal to the amount associated with the de-scoped Services as defined in the payment schedule in this Agreement, if applicable, or as determined by mutual written consent of both Parties based upon the scope of work performed prior to issuance of notification.
- E. Independent Contractor Status and Compliance with the Immigration Reform and Control Act Contractor is and shall remain an independent contractor and is neither agent, employee, partner, nor joint venturer of County. Contractor acknowledges that it is responsible for complying with the provisions of the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 located at 8 U.S.C. 1324, et seq, and regulations relating thereto, as either may be amended from time to time. Failure to comply with the above provisions shall be considered a material breach of the Agreement.
- F. **Non-Exclusive Services** Award of this Agreement imposes no obligation on the County to utilize the Contractor for all goods and/or services of this type, which may develop during the agreement period. This is a non-exclusive Agreement. During the term of this Agreement, and any extensions thereof, the County reserves the right to contract for another provider for similar goods and/or services as it determines necessary in its sole discretion.
- G. **Project Monitoring** During the term of the Agreement, Contractor shall cooperate with the County, either directly or through its representatives, in monitoring Contractor's progress and performance of this Agreement.

5. <u>Term of Agreement</u>

- A. Initial Term The term of this Agreement shall commence on October 1, 2022, and shall remain in full force and for sixty (60) months, or until termination of the Agreement, whichever occurs first.
- B. **Term Extension** The term of this Agreement may not be extended. All Services shall be completed by the expiration of the initial term as defined in Term of Agreement-Initial Term.

6. Compensation and Method of Payment

A. **Services Fee** - As total compensation for the Services, the County shall pay the Contractor the sums as provided in this Section ("Services Fee"), pursuant to the terms and conditions as provided in this Agreement. It is acknowledged and agreed by Contractor that this compensation constitutes a limitation upon County's obligation to compensate Contractor for such Services required by this Agreement but does not constitute a limitation upon Contractor's obligation to perform all of the Services required by this Agreement. In no event will the Services Fee paid exceed the not-to-exceed sums set out in subsections below, unless the Parties agree to increase this sum by written amendment as authorized in the Amendment Section of this Agreement.

AGREEMENT

- B. **Spending Cap and Payment Structure** The County agrees to pay the Contractor the total not-to-exceed sum of \$1,173,350.00, with an annual expenditure of \$234,670.00 per year, for Services completed and accepted herein if applicable, payable on a reimbursable basis for the deliverables as set out in Exhibit C, payable upon submittal of an invoice as required herein.
- C. **Travel Expenses** The Services Fee includes all travel, lodging and per diem expenses incurred by Contractor in performing the Services.
- D. **Taxes -** Contractor acknowledges that the County is not subject to any state or federal sales, use, transportation and certain excise taxes.
- E. **Payments and Invoicing -** Contractor shall submit invoices for payments due as provided herein and authorized reimbursable expenses incurred with such documentation as required by County. Invoices shall be submitted to the designated person as set out in the Notices Section herein.

For time and materials Services, all Contractor Personnel shall maintain logs of time worked, and each invoice shall state the date and number of hours worked for Services authorized to be billed on a time and materials basis. All payments shall be made in accordance with the requirements of Section 218.70 et seq., Florida Statutes, "The Local Government Prompt Payment Act." The County may dispute any payments invoiced by Contractor in accordance with the County's Invoice Payments Dispute Resolution Process established in accordance with Section 218.76, Florida Statutes, and any such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the County's Dispute Resolution Process.

7. Personnel

- A. E-Verify The contractor and subcontractor must register with and use the E-verify system in accordance with Florida Statute 448.095. A contractor and subcontractor may not enter into a contract with the County unless each party registers with and uses the E-verify system If a contractor enters a contract with a subcontractor, the subcontractor must provide the contractor with an affidavit stating that the Subcontractor does not employ, contract with, or subcontract with unauthorized aliens. The contractor must maintain a copy of the affidavit for the duration of the contract. If the County, Contractor, or Subcontractor has a good faith belief that a person or entity with which it is contracting has knowingly violated Florida Statute 448.09(1) shall immediately terminate the contract with the person or entity. If the County has a good faith belief that a Subcontractor knowingly violated this provision, but the Contractor otherwise complied with this provision, the County will notify the Contractor and order that the Contractor immediately terminate the contract with the Subcontractor. A contract terminated under the provisions of this section is not a breach of contract and may not considered such. Any contract termination under the provisions of this section may be challenged to Section 448.095(2)(d), Florida Statute. Contractor acknowledges upon termination of this agreement by the County for violation of this section by Contractor, Contractor may not be awarded a public contract for at least one (1) year. Contractor acknowledges that Contractor is liable for any additional costs incurred by the County as a result of termination of any contract for a violation of this section. Contractor or Subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in this section, requiring the subcontracts to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. Contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any Subcontractor or Lower Tier Subcontractor with the clause set for in this section.
- B. **Qualified Personnel -** Contractor agrees that each person performing Services in connection with this Agreement shall have the qualifications and shall fulfill the requirements set forth in this Agreement.
- C. Approval and Replacement of Personnel The County shall have the right to approve all Contractor Personnel assigned to provide the Services, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. Prior to commencing the Services, the Contractor shall provide at least ten (10) days written notice of the names and qualifications of the Contractor Personnel assigned to perform Services pursuant to the Agreement. Thereafter, during the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall promptly and as required by the County provide written notice of the names and qualifications of any additional Contractor Personnel assigned to perform Services. The County, on a reasonable basis, shall have the right to require the removal and replacement of any of the Contractor Personnel performing Services, at any time during the term of the Agreement. The County will notify Contractor in writing in the event the County requires such action. Contractor shall accomplish any such removal within forty-eight (48) hours after receipt of notice from the County and shall promptly replace such person with another person, acceptable to the County, with sufficient knowledge and expertise to perform the Services assigned to such individual in accordance with this Agreement. In situations where individual Contractor Personnel are prohibited by applicable law from providing Services, removal and replacement of such Contractor Personnel shall be

AGREEMENT

immediate and not subject to such forty-eight (48) hour replacement timeframe and the provisions of the Termination Section of this Agreement shall apply if minimum required staffing is not maintained.

8. Termination

A. Contractor Default Provisions and Remedies of County

- 1. **Events of Default** Any of the following shall constitute a "Contractor Event of Default" hereunder:
 - Contractor fails to maintain the staffing necessary to perform the Services as required in the Agreement, fails to perform the Services as specified in the Agreement, or fails to complete the Services within the completion dates as specified in the Agreement;
 - ii. Contractor breaches Confidential Information Section of this Agreement;
 - iii. Contractor fails to gain acceptance of goods and/or services deliverable, for 2 consecutive iterations; or
 - iv. Contractor fails to perform or observe any of the other material provisions of this Agreement.
- 2. **Cure Provisions** Upon the occurrence of a Contractor Event of Default as set out above, the County shall provide written notice of such Contractor Event of Default to Contractor ("Notice to Cure"), and Contractor shall have 30 calendar days after the date of a Notice to Cure to correct, cure, and/or remedy the Contractor Event of Default described in the written notice.
- 3. Termination for Cause by the County In the event that Contractor fails to cure a Contractor Event of Default as authorized herein, or upon the occurrence of a Contractor Event of Default as specified in Termination Contractor Default Provisions and Remedies of County Events of Default Section of this Agreement, the County may terminate this Agreement in whole or in part, effective upon receipt by Contractor of written notice of termination pursuant to this provision, and may pursue such remedies at law or in equity as may be available to the County.

B. County Default Provisions and Remedies of Contractor

- 1. Events of Default Any of the following shall constitute a "County Event of Default" hereunder:
 - i. the County fails to make timely undisputed payments as described in this Agreement;
 - ii. the County breaches Confidential Information Section of this Agreement; or the County fails to perform any of the other material provisions of this Agreement.
- 2. **Cure Provisions** Upon the occurrence of a County Event of Default as set out above, Contractor shall provide written notice of such County Event of Default to the County ("Notice to Cure"), and the County shall have thirty (30) calendar days after the date of a Notice to Cure to correct, cure, and/or remedy the County Event of Default described in the written notice.
- 3. **Termination for Cause by the Contractor** In the event the County fails to cure a County Event of Default as authorized herein, Contractor may terminate this Agreement in whole or in part effective on receipt by the County of written notice of termination pursuant to this provision, and may pursue such remedies at law or in equity as may be available to the Contractor.

C. Termination for Convenience

1. Notwithstanding any other provision herein, the County may terminate this Agreement, without cause, by giving 30 days advance written notice to the Contractor of its election to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this provision.

9. Time is of the Essence

Time is of the essence with respect to all provisions of this Agreement that specify a time for performance, including the Services as described in the Exhibits attached hereto; provided, however, that the foregoing shall not be construed to limit a Party's cure period allowed in the Agreement.

10. Confidential Information and Public Records

A. **County Confidential Information** - Contractor shall not disclose to any third-party County Confidential Information that Contractor, through its Contractor Personnel, has access to or has received from the County pursuant to its performance of Services pursuant to the Agreement, unless approved in writing by the County Contract Manager. All such County Confidential Information will be held in trust and confidence from the date of

AGREEMENT

disclosure by the County, and discussions involving such County Confidential Information shall be limited to Contractor Personnel as is necessary to complete the Services.

- B. Contractor Confidential Information All Contractor Confidential Information received by the County from Contractor will be held in trust and confidence from the date of disclosure by Contractor and discussions involving such Contractor Confidential Information shall be limited to the members of the County's staff and the County's subcontractors who require such information in the performance of this Agreement. The County acknowledges and agrees to respect the copyrights, registrations, trade secrets and other proprietary rights of Contractor in the Contractor Confidential Information during and after the term of the Agreement and shall at all times maintain the confidentiality of the Contractor Confidential Information provided to the County, subject to federal law and the laws of the State of Florida related to public records disclosure. Contractor shall be solely responsible for taking any and all action it deems necessary to protect its Contractor Confidential Information except as provided herein. Contractor acknowledges that the County is subject to public records legislation, including but not limited to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and the Florida Rules of Judicial Administration, and that any of the County's obligations under this Section may be superseded by its obligations under any requirements of said laws.
- C. Public Records Contractor acknowledges that information and data it manages as part of the services may be public records in accordance with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes and Pinellas County public records policies. Contractor agrees that prior to providing services it will implement policies and procedures to maintain, produce, secure, and retain public records in accordance with applicable laws, regulations, and County policies, including but not limited to the Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement relating to compensation, the Contractor agrees to charge the County, and/or any third parties requesting public records only such fees allowed by Section 119.07, Florida Statutes, and County policy for locating and producing public records during the term of this Agreement.

If the contractor has questions regarding the application of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, to the contractor's duty to provide public records relating to this agreement, the contractor shall contact:

Pinellas County Board of County Commissioners

Purchasing and Risk Management Division

400 S. Ft. Harrison Ave, 6th Floor,

Clearwater, FL 33756

Public Records Liaison

Phone: 727-464-3237

Email: mcchartier@pinellascounty.org

11. Audit

Contractor shall retain all records relating to this Agreement for a period of at least 5 years after final payment is made. All records shall be kept in such a way as will permit their inspection pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. In addition, County reserves the right to examine and/or audit such records.

AGREEMENT

12. Compliance with Laws

Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, state, county and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations in the performance of its obligations under this Agreement, including the procurement of permits and certificates where required, and including but not limited to laws related to Workers Compensation, Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Minority Business Enterprise (MBE), occupational safety and health and the environment, equal employment opportunity, privacy of medical records and information, as applicable. Failure to comply with any of the above provisions shall be considered a material breach of the Agreement.

13. Digital Accessibility

Contractor acknowledges and warrants that all digital content and services provided under this contract conforms and shall continue to conform during the Term of this Agreement to the W3C Web Content Accessibility Guidelines, version 2.0 ("WCAG 2.0") at conformance Level A and AA. If all digital content and services does not fully conform to WCAG 2.0 A and AA, Contractor shall advise Pinellas County in writing of the nonconformance prior to execution of this Agreement and shall provide Pinellas County a plan to achieve conformance to WCAG 2.0 A and AA, including but not limited to, an intended timeline for conformance. Failure to achieve conformance, as determined in Pinellas County's sole discretion, on its intended timeline shall be considered a material breach of this Agreement and grounds for termination by Pinellas County.

If during the Term of this Agreement, Contractor fails to maintain compliance with WCAG 2.0 A and AA or Pinellas County otherwise identifies an issue related to accessibility of the product (the "Accessibility Issue") that renders the product inaccessible, then Pinellas County shall notify Contractor of non-compliance. Within 30 days of Contractor's receipt of a non-compliance notice ("Notice"), Contractor and Pinellas County shall meet and mutually agree upon an appropriate timeline for resolution of the Accessibility Issue(s) ("Initial Meeting").

Should Contractor:

- i. fail to acknowledge receipt of the notice within 30 days of receipt of the Notice;
- ii. unreasonably and solely withhold agreement regarding a timeline for resolution for more than 30 days following the Initial Meeting; or
- iii. fail to materially resolve the Accessibility Issue(s) within the agreed-upon timeline,

Failure to comply with the requirements of this section shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement and shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement by Pinellas County and subject Contractor to the Liability and Insurance – Indemnification Section of this Agreement, "Indemnification."

14. Public Entities Crimes

Contractor is directed to the Florida Public Entities Crime Act, Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, as well as Florida Statute 287.135 regarding Scrutinized Companies, and represents to County that Contractor is qualified to transact business with public entities in Florida, and to enter into and fully perform this Agreement subject to the provisions stated therein. Failure to comply with any of the above provisions shall be considered a material breach of the Agreement.

15. Liability and Insurance

- A. **Insurance** Contractor shall comply with the insurance requirements set out in the Insurance Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.
- B. Indemnification Contractor agrees to indemnify, pay the cost of defense, including attorney's fees, and hold harmless the County, its officers, employees and agents from all damages, suits, actions or claims, including reasonable attorney's fees incurred by the County, of any character brought on account of any injuries or damages received or sustained by any person, persons, or property, or in any way relating to or arising from the Agreement; or on account of any act or omission, neglect or misconduct of Contractor; or by, or on account of, any claim or amounts recovered under the Workers' Compensation Law; or of any other laws, regulations, ordinance, order or decree; or arising from or by reason of any actual or claimed trademark, patent or copyright infringement or litigation based thereon; or for any violation of requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act

AGREEMENT

- of 1990, as may be amended, and all rules and regulations issued pursuant thereto (collectively the "ADA") except when such injury, damage, or violation was caused by the sole negligence of the County.
- C. Liability Neither the County nor Contractor shall make any express or implied agreements, guaranties or representations, or incur any debt, in the name of or on behalf of the other Party. Neither the County nor Contractor shall be obligated by or have any liability under any agreements or representations made by the other that are not expressly authorized hereunder. The County shall have no liability or obligation for any damages to any person or property directly or indirectly arising out of the operation by Contractor of its business, whether caused by Contractor's negligence or willful action or failure to act.
- D. Contractor's Taxes The County will have no liability for any sales, service, value added, use, excise, gross receipts, property, workers' compensation, unemployment compensation, withholding or other taxes, whether levied upon Contractor or Contractor's assets, or upon the County in connection with Services performed or business conducted by Contractor. Payment of all such taxes and liabilities shall be the responsibility of Contractor.

16. County's Funding

The Agreement is not a general obligation of the County. It is understood that neither this Agreement nor any representation by any County employee or officer creates any obligation to appropriate or make monies available for the purpose of the Agreement beyond the fiscal year in which this Agreement is executed. No liability shall be incurred by the County, or any department, beyond the monies budgeted and available for this purpose. If funds are not appropriated by the County for any or all of this Agreement, the County shall not be obligated to pay any sums provided pursuant to this Agreement beyond the portion for which funds are appropriated. The County agrees to promptly notify Contractor in writing of such failure of appropriation, and upon receipt of such notice, this Agreement, and all rights and obligations contained herein, shall terminate without liability or penalty to the County.

17. Orders

Within the term of this Agreement, County may place one or more orders for goods and/or services at the prices listed on the Price Schedule Exhibit attached hereto, and which is incorporated by reference hereto.

18. Name Changes

The Contractor is responsible for immediately notifying the County of any company name change, which would cause invoicing to change from the name used at the time of the original Agreement.

19. Acceptance of Services

For all Services deliverables that require County acceptance as provided in the Statement of Work, the County, through the Director of Human Services or designee, will have 10 calendar days to review the deliverable(s) after receipt or completion of same by Contractor, and either accept or reject the deliverable(s) by written notice to Curaparr d/b/a Center for Rational Living. If a deliverable is rejected, the written notice from the County will specify any required changes, deficiencies, and/or additions necessary. Contractor shall then have 7 calendar days to revise the deliverable(s) to resubmit and/or complete the deliverable(s) for review and approval by the County, who will then have 7 calendar days to review and approve, or reject the deliverable(s); provided however, that Contractor shall not be responsible for any delays in the overall project schedule that result from the County's failure to timely approve or reject deliverable(s) as provided herein. Upon final acceptance of the deliverable(s), the County will accept the deliverable(s) in writing.

20. Subcontracting/Assignment

- A. **Subcontracting -** Contractor is fully responsible for completion of the Services required by this Agreement and for completion of all subcontractor work, if authorized as provided herein. Contractor shall not subcontract any work under this Agreement to any subcontractor other than the subcontractors specified in the proposal and previously approved by the County, without the prior written consent of the County, which shall be determined by the County in its sole discretion.
- B. **Assignment -** This Agreement, and any rights or obligations hereunder, shall not be assigned, transferred or delegated to any other person or entity. Any purported assignment in violation of this section shall be null and void.

AGREEMENT

21. Survival

The provisions of this Agreement shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

22. Notices

All notices, authorizations, and requests in connection with this Agreement shall be deemed given on the day they are: (1) deposited in the U.S. mail, postage prepaid, certified or registered, return receipt requested; or (2) sent by air express courier (e.g., Federal Express, Airborne, etc.), charges prepaid, return receipt requested; or (3) sent via email and addressed as set forth below, which designated person(s) may be amended by either Party by giving written notice to the other Party:

For County:

Attn: Ms. Abigail Stanton

Director of Contracts

Human Services Department

440 Court Street, 2nd Floor

Clearwater, FL 33756

with a copy to:

Attn: Ms. Merry Celeste,

Purchasing and Risk Management Division Director

Pinellas County Purchasing Department

400 South Fort Harrison Avenue

Clearwater, FL 33756

For Contractor:

Attn: Mr. Bradley Callahan, Director

Curaparr d/b/a Center for Rational Living

730 S. Sterling Avenue, Suite 209

Tampa, FL 33609

23. Conflict of Interest

- A. The Contractor represents that it presently has no interest and shall acquire no interest, either direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner with the performance of the Services required hereunder, and that no person having any such interest shall be employed by Contractor during the agreement term and any extensions.
- B. The Contractor shall promptly notify the County in writing of any business association, interest, or other circumstance which constitutes a conflict of interest as provided herein. If the Contractor is in doubt as to whether a prospective business association, interest, or other circumstance constitutes a conflict of interest, the Contract may identify the prospective business association, interest or circumstance, the nature of work that the Contractor may undertake and request an opinion as to whether the business association, interest or circumstance constitutes a conflict of interest if entered into by the Contractor. The County agrees to notify the Contractor of its opinion within (10) calendar days of receipt of notification by the Contractor, which shall be binding on the Contractor.

24. Right to Ownership

All work created, originated and/or prepared by Contractor in performing Services pursuant to the Agreement, including reports and other documentation or improvements related thereto, to the extent that such work, products,

AGREEMENT

documentation, materials or information are described in or required by the Services (collectively, the "Work Product") shall be County's property when completed and accepted, if acceptance is required in this Agreement, and the County has made payment of the sums due therefore. The ideas, concepts, know-how or techniques developed during the course of this Agreement by the Contractor or jointly by Contractor and the County may be used by the County without obligation of notice or accounting to the Contractor. Any data, information or other materials furnished by the County for use by Contractor under this Agreement shall remain the sole property of the County.

25. Amendment

This Agreement may be amended by mutual written agreement of the Parties hereto.

26. Severability

The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be deemed to be severable. Consequently, if any clause, term, or condition hereof shall be held to be illegal or void, such determination shall not affect the validity or legality of the remaining terms and conditions, and notwithstanding any such determination, this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect unless the particular clause, term, or condition held to be illegal or void renders the balance of the Agreement impossible to perform.

27. Applicable Law and Venue

This Agreement and any and all purchases made hereunder shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida (without regard to principles of conflicts of laws). The Parties agree that all actions or proceedings arising in connection with this Agreement shall be tried and litigated exclusively in the state or federal (if permitted by law and a Party elects to file an action in federal court) courts located in or for Pinellas County, Florida. This choice of venue is intended by the Parties to be mandatory and not permissive in nature, and to preclude the possibility of litigation between the Parties with respect to, or arising out of, this Agreement in any jurisdiction other than that specified in this section. Each Party waives any right it may have to assert the doctrine of forum non-conveniens or similar doctrine or to object to venue with respect to any proceeding brought in accordance with this section.

28. Waiver

No waiver by either Party of any breach or violation of any covenant, term, condition, or provision of this Agreement or of the provisions of any ordinance or law, shall be construed to waive any other term, covenant, condition, provisions, ordinance or law, or of any subsequent breach or violation of the same.

29. Due Authority

Each Party to this Agreement represents and warrants that: (i) it has the full right and authority and has obtained all necessary approvals to enter into this Agreement; (ii) each person executing this Agreement on behalf of the Party is authorized to do so; (iii) this Agreement constitutes a valid and legally binding obligation of the Party, enforceable in accordance with its terms.

30. No Third-Party Beneficiary

The Parties hereto acknowledge and agree that there are no third-party beneficiaries to this Agreement. Persons or entities not a party to this Agreement may not claim any benefit from this Agreement or as third-party beneficiaries hereto.

31. Force Majeure

"Force Majeure Event" means any act or event that (i) prevents a Party (the "Nonperforming Party") from performing its obligations or satisfying a condition to the other Party's (the "Performing Party") obligations under this Agreement, (ii) is beyond the reasonable control of and not the fault of the Nonperforming Party, and (iii) the Nonperforming Party has not, through commercially reasonable efforts, been able to avoid or overcome. Force Majeure Event(s) do not include economic hardship, changes in market conditions or insufficiency of funds. If a Force Majeure Event occurs, the Nonperforming Party is excused from the performance and thereby prevented from satisfying any conditions precedent to the Performing Party's performance that cannot be satisfied, in each case to the extent limited or prevented by the Force Majeure Event. The Nonperforming Party must promptly notify the Performing Party upon the occurrence of a Force Majeure Event. When the Nonperforming Party is able to resume its performance or satisfy the

AGREEMENT

conditions precedent to the Performing Party's obligations, the Nonperforming Party will resume performance under this Agreement without undue delay. Each Party will use commercially reasonable efforts to mitigate the effect of a Force Majeure Event.

32. Order of Precedence

All Exhibits attached and listed below are incorporated in their entirety into, and form part of this Agreement and will have priority in the order listed

- A. Pinellas County Agreement which includes exhibits A (Scope of Work), B (Insurance), C (Payment Schedule, D (Payment/Invoices, E (Dispute Resolution) and Attachments 1 (Drug Court Division N and Z), 2 (Center for Rational Living 2022, 3 (Agreement Modification Form), 4 (HIPAA Business Associate Agreement), and 5 (Data Sharing Agreement).
- B. Request for Proposal (RFP).
- C. Party's RFP Submittal.

In the event of an inconsistency in this Agreement and any of the attached Exhibits, the terms set forth in this Agreement will prevail.

33. Entirety

This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the Parties and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements either oral or written.

(Signature Page Follows)

AGREEMENT

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement the day and year first written.

PINELLAS COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Florida PINELLAS COUNTY acting by and through the

Board of County Commissioners

By: (hah sun)

5/6

By: Curaparr, Inc. d/b/a Center for Rational Living

Charlie Justice

Print Name

Print

Chairman

Signature

Title

Title

October 25, 2022.

Date

Date

ATTEST: KEN BURKE, QLERK



APPROVED AS TO FORM

By: Keiah Townsend

Office of the County Attorney

EXHIBIT A - STATEMENT OF WORK

Type of Intervention: The Sixth Judicial Circuit Adult Drug Court program is an eighteen (18) to twenty-four (24) month Court-supervised comprehensive treatment program for non-violent felony offenders in Division N, and prison-bound defendants (those scoring prison time) in Division Z, a state-funded division. Both Division N and Z are operated by the Sixth Judicial Circuit serving Pinellas County. The following interventions are available to participants in both divisions under this agreement:

Group 2 – Outpatient Level II services for Adult Drug Court

Group 3 – Outpatient Level III services for Adult Drug Court

1. Program Services

- A. Services to be Performed: Contractor will provide the following services as referenced in Pinellas County (County) Request for Proposals 22-0371-P issued on April 14, 2022, and the Curaparr, Inc. d/b/a Center for Rational Living (CRL) proposal 22-0371-P dated May 5, 2022, attached hereto as Attachment 1 and Attachment 2 and incorporated by reference:
 - i. Group 2 Outpatient Level II Services for Drug Court:
 - a. Contractor will provide Outpatient Level II drug treatment services for defendants in Adult Drug Court, as directed by the Court.
 - b. All services will be provided in accordance with Chapter 65D-30, Florida Administrative Code. In addition to the standards proscribed in 65D-30.010(1), each defendant/respondent will be provided with counseling services that are consistent with Drug Court Level II outpatient treatment. The following required services exceed the standards for outpatient treatment as defined in 65D-30.010(1).
 - c. The following service elements will be provided to defendants and respondents within fourteen (14) days of receipt of Court referral:
 - 1) Services will be primarily offered in North Pinellas County.
 - 2) Group counseling services will be available day and night.
 - 3) Group counseling will be offered two (2) hours daily, twice weekly for a minimum of twelve (12) weeks.
 - 4) Screenings, assessments and subsequent recommendations, if any, will be provided to the Court.
 - 5) Individual treatment and discharge planning will be made within thirty (30) days of referral by the Court. Treatment evaluations will be made every thirty (30) days.
 - 6) Contractor will conduct urine analysis (UA's) on average once every four sessions or one (1) per week using no less than a six (6) panel test. All results will be uploaded into the drug court tracking system.
 - a) All testing will be conducted in accordance with the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) standards as well as meeting requirements of the Department of Children and Families standards.
 - b) All drug testing analysis reports will be accurate and easy to read using common units of measure and will include reliable drug ranges in the report for reference purposes.
 - 7) Counseling groups will be no larger than fifteen (15) persons per group.
 - d. Contractor is to provide the Adult Drug Court with the following:

- 1) Notification of client's arrival for screening process inclusive of client's acceptance or non-acceptance into the treatment setting.
- 2) Notification of treatment start date.
- 3) Evaluation recommendations.
- 4) Reports for judicial reviews no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to a regularly scheduled judicial review hearing (including attendance, UDS results, treatment progress reports). Reports will be electronically submitted to the Drug Court via secure connections, which can include direct submission through the Drug Court's web-based Drug Court case management system.
- 5) Immediate notification of termination, discharge or elopements.
- 6) Immediate notification of violation of terms of treatment (i.e., failed drug screens, missed treatment appointments, etc.);
- 7) Immediate notification of hospitalization or significant disruption of the treatment process.
- 8) Discharge information will be supplied to the Court, and a copy will be forwarded to the Department of Corrections.
- 9) Court appearances by the Contractor will be made as required by the Court.
- 10) Client-related data and status information will be provided in a manner and in a format as required by the Court. This format may include electronic data submission meeting Courtdetermined specifications; and
- 11) Weekly written reports to the Court on treatment availability status and size of wait lists.

ii. Group 3 – Outpatient Level III Services for Drug Court:

- a. Contractor will provide Outpatient Level III drug treatment services for defendants in Adult Drug Court, as directed by the Court.
- b. All services will be provided in accordance with Chapter 65D-30, Florida Administrative Code. In addition to the standards proscribed in 65D-30.010(1), each defendant/respondent will be provided with counseling services that are consistent with Drug Court Level III outpatient treatment. The following required services exceed the standards for outpatient treatment as defined in 65D-30.010(1).
- c. The following service elements will be provided to defendants and respondents within fourteen (14) days of receipt of Court referral:
 - 1) Services will be offered primarily in North Pinellas County.
 - 2) Group counseling services will be available day and night.
 - 3) Group counseling will be offered at least (4) times per week for two (2) hours daily, for a minimum of twelve (12) weeks. Once complete client will step down to (2) times per week for a minimum of (12) sessions (six (6) weeks).
 - 4) Screenings, assessments and subsequent recommendations, if any, will be provided to the Court;
 - 5) Individual treatment and discharge planning will be made within thirty (30) days of referral by the Court. Treatment evaluations will be made every thirty (30) days.
 - 6) Contractor will conduct urine analysis (UA's) on average once every four (4) sessions or one (1) per week using no less than a six (6) panel test. All results will be uploaded into the drug court tracking system
 - 7) Consultation or referral arrangements will be made where psychiatric, medical or other social services are deemed appropriate.
 - 8) Counseling groups will be no larger than fifteen (15) persons per group.

d. <u>Contractor is to provide the Adult Drug Court with the following:</u>

- 1) Notification of client's arrival for screening process inclusive of client's acceptance or non-acceptance into treatment setting.
- 2) Notification of treatment start date.

- 3) Evaluation recommendations.
- 4) Reports for judicial reviews no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to a regularly scheduled judicial review hearing (including attendance, UDS results, treatment progress reports). Reports will be electronically submitted to the Drug Court via secure connections, which will include direct submission through the Drug Court's web-based Drug Court case management system;
- 5) Immediate notification of termination, discharge or elopements.
- 6) Immediate notification of violation of terms of treatment (i.e., failed drug screens, missed treatment appointments, etc);
- 7) Immediate notification of hospitalization or significant disruption of treatment process;
- 8) Discharge information will be supplied to the Court, and a copy will be forwarded to the Department of Corrections.
- 9) Court appearances by the Contractor will be made as required by the Court.
- 10) Client-related data and status information will be provided in a manner and in a format as required by the Court. This format may include electronic data submission meeting Courtdetermined specifications; and
- 11) Weekly written reports to the Court on treatment availability status and size of wait lists.

2. MEETINGS & MONITORING

A. Program Oversight and Administration:

- i.The contract will be administered by Human Services. However, the Contractor will work with Human Services and any partnering funders to coordinate services among service providers, enhance service delivery, address issues that arise within the program.
- ii. Contractor will attend programmatic and contractual meetings no less than monthly.
- iii.Contractor will demonstrate quality assurance efforts which will support the efficiency and fidelity of the program.
- iv. Contractor will provide processes and procedures for delivering services as part of a court-related treatment program.
 - 1) Contractor will maintain daily contact via email and phone with the court staff, probation officers, and lawyers regarding referrals.
- v. Contractor will use evidence-based curricula to provide treatment services.
- vi. Contractor will travel to off-site locations such as for court appearances, and for assessment services, have the capacity to conduct assessments remotely such as at the County jail, as necessary.
- vii. Contractor will provide foreign language interpreters in order to effectively communicate with clients during the delivery of contracted services, as necessary.
- viii. Any proposed treatment copayments or fees incurred by the client while participating in the treatment program must be fully disclosed to the offender during orientation. All fees for which the Contractor will request reimbursement from the client must be approved in advance in writing by the County. The Adult Drug Court does not enforce the collection of provider copayments.
- ix. The Court will order appropriate treatment and Drug Court staff will contact the Contractor, or the client will be given pre-set Contractor orientation appointment information. Treatment must be made available within fourteen (14) days of referral by the Drug Court.
- x. Contractor will provide the responsibilities and qualifications for person(s) who will provide services under the program.
 - 1) Outpatient Services Contractor will maintain a group size of fifteen (15) individuals.
 - 2) Contractor will be able to accept referrals day one of contract and will be fully staffed within forty-five (45) days of the contract award.

- xi. Contractor will track staff time and resources dedicated to a state grant, including accounting of program generated income.
- xii. Contractor will collect, store, and securely report required data, including client-level data, in a timely manner to the County to ensure submission of all grant reports by the stated due dates.
- xiii. Contractor will provide information on client outcomes on, at a minimum, quarterly intervals or as requested by the Court or the County.

B. Performance Requirements:

- . Monitoring.
 - 1) The Contractor will comply with the COUNTY and departmental policies and procedures.
 - 2) The Contractor will cooperate in monitoring site visits including, but not limited to, review of staff, fiscal and client records, programmatic documents, and will provide related information at any reasonable time.
 - 3) The Contractor will submit other reports and information in such formats and at such times as may be prescribed by the COUNTY.
 - 4) The Contractor shall submit reports on any monitoring of the program funded in whole or in part by the COUNTY that are conducted by federal, state or local governmental agencies or other funders within ten (10) days of the Contractor's receipt of the monitoring report.
 - 5) If the Contractor receives licensing and accreditation reviews, each review shall be submitted to the COUNTY within ten (10) days of receipt by the Contractor.
 - 6) All monitoring reports will be as detailed as may be reasonably requested by the COUNTY and will be deemed incomplete if not satisfactory to the COUNTY as determined in its sole reasonable discretion. Reports will contain the information or be in the format as may be requested by the COUNTY. If approved by the COUNTY, the COUNTY will accept a report from another monitoring agency in lieu of reports customarily required by the COUNTY.
- ii. <u>Financial Consequences for Division Z- funded services ONLY as a State issued grant award for services:</u> The COUNTY may impose the following financial penalties on the Contractor if the Contractor does not meet the relevant performance standard, including:
 - Housing that does not meet the standards set by Rule 65D-30, Florida Statutes, will be considered a material breach of the obligation to provide residential treatment services. The COUNTY may refuse to pay any invoices for the residential treatment services that do not meet the standards until the breach is cured, cancel the contract with the Contractor and find a new provider, or both.
 - 2) If Contractor does not timely notify the Adult Drug Court of any of the events for which notice is required herein, the invoice reimbursement may be reduced by \$25.00 for each day notification is late.
 - 3) If Contractor fails to make a required Court appearance, the invoice reimbursement may be reduced by \$25.00 for each appearance missed.
 - 4) If client-related data and status information is not available in the required format, the invoice reimbursement may be reduced by \$25.00 for each day data is unavailable.
 - 5) If Contractor does not timely provide a weekly report to the Court on treatment availability, the invoice reimbursement may be reduced by \$50.00 for each missed report.
 - 6) For Outpatient Drug Court Treatment Services: outpatient and medical services appointments not scheduled within seven (7) business days of the completion of the individual treatment plan may result in a reduction in the amount equal to \$25.00 for each Participant not scheduled from the invoice reimbursement.

- 7) For Transitional Housing: each instance that a staff member cannot be reached within two (2) hours of a call may result in a \$25.00 assessment against the invoice reimbursement, up to a maximum of \$500.00 per day.
- 8) For Transitional Housing: each day that Provider is late providing notification of termination or communication with Court staff regarding bed availability, \$25.00 may be deducted from the invoice reimbursement.
- 9) For Mental Health/Substance Abuse Assessments: If any assessment reports are not submitted within three (3) weeks of referral or seven (7) days before the next scheduled Court date, whichever is sooner, \$50.00 may be reduced from the invoice reimbursement.

Additional Terms and Conditions

A. All requests for reimbursement payments must be submitted monthly and shall consist of an invoice for the monthly amount, signed by an authorized Contractor representative, and accompanied by documentation by client and service type which verifies the services for which reimbursement is sought, as applicable and required by COUNTY. Invoices shall be sent electronically to the Contract Manager on a quarterly basis within thirty (30) days of the end of the quarter. The COUNTY shall not reimburse the Contractor for any expenditures in excess of the amount budgeted without prior approval or notification. Invoicing due dates may be shortened as necessary to meet fiscal year deadlines or grant requirements.

B. HIPAA, Information Sharing, and Care Coordination

- i. The Contractor understands and agrees that the COUNTY, as a political subdivision of the State of Florida, is a governmental entity that provides for health and welfare programs (Fla Stat. 125.01) and that the COUNTY is a Covered Entity as a payor of health care as defined by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) and 45 CFR 160.103. (Attachment 4)
- ii. The Contractor is a HIPAA Covered Entity in addition to serving as a Business Associate of the COUNTY, and agrees to use and disclose Protected Health Information in compliance with the Standards for Privacy, Security and Breach Notification of Individually Identifiable Health Information (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) and the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (HITECH Act), and the Contractor shall disclose any policies, rules or regulations enforcing these provisions upon request.
- iii. The Contractor, as the Business Associate, shall make available to the COUNTY any/all records pertaining to rendered services funded in total or in part by the COUNTY for the purposes of coordinating medical and behavioral health care treatment services, performing quality assurance reviews of services rendered by the Contractor, and conducting financial and program operational audits. The Contractor shall comply with requests from the COUNTY for access to requested information, including protected health information, within a timely manner and without restriction. The Contractor agrees that the COUNTY retains the specific right of access to all treatment records, plans, reviews, and essentially similar materials that relate to the services provided to clients/consumers under the terms of this Agreement. The COUNTY shall be entitled to make and retain possession of copies of any treatment plans, records, reviews and essentially similar materials which relate to the services provided to clients/consumers under the terms of this Agreement and the Contractor shall not restrict the COUNTY from such possession.
- iv. The Contractor shall, at client admission and within 60 days of any update, provide to and attempt to obtain a signature from the client acknowledging receipt of Contractor Notice of Privacy Practices, in accordance with 45 CFR Part 164.520.
- v. Upon request, the Contractor shall provide clients their individual client medical records for inspection and copying in accordance with 45 CFR Part 164.524.

AGREEMENT

- vi. The Contractor shall develop Data Sharing Agreements (Attachment 5) and Business Associate Agreements with local behavioral health providers, as necessary, to facilitate the exchange of health information and coordinate client care. The Contractor shall identify and provide a Contractor point of contact to local crisis-stabilization units (CSU) to minimize the amount of time their client spends in a CSU and to optimize care coordination.
- vii. Contractor shall ensure that clients complete releases of information (ROI) upon client admission and no less than annually to facilitate care coordination. The Contractor shall use and promote the use of a standard, community-wide Patient Authorization for Disclosure of Health Information Multiparty Release of Information Form, upon request. The release covers general medical as well as Human Immunodeficiency Virus/Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome (HIV/AIDS), psychiatric, psychological, substance abuse information from medical record(s) in accordance with Florida Statutes 394.459, 381.004, 395.3025, and 90.503; 42 CFR, Part 2; and the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability act of 1996 (HIPAA) 45 CFR parts 160 and 164.

C. <u>Amendment/Modification.</u>

In addition to applicable federal, state and local statutes and regulations, this Agreement expresses the entire understanding of the parties concerning the matters covered herein. Unless specifically indicated herein, no addition to, or alteration of, the terms of this Agreement, whether by written or verbal understanding of the parties, their officers, agents or employees, shall be valid unless made in the form of a written amendment to this Agreement and formally approved by the parties. Budget or operational modifications that do not result in an increase of funding, change the underlying public purpose of this Agreement or otherwise amend the terms of this Agreement shall be submitted in the format prescribed and provided by the COUNTY which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Attachment 3.

AGREEMENT

EXHIBIT B - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

1. LIMITATIONS ON LIABILITY

Vendor acknowledges and agrees that the services will be provided without any limitation on the Vendor's liability. The County objects to and shall not be bound by any term or provision that purports to limit the Vendor's liability to any specified amount in the performance of the services. The Vendor shall state any exceptions to this provision in its response, including specifying the proposed limits of liability in the stated exception to be included in the Services Agreement. The Vendor is deemed to have accepted and agreed to provide the services without any limitation on the Vendor's liability that the Vendor does not take exception to in its response. Notwithstanding any exceptions by the Vendor, the County reserves the right to declare its prohibition on any limitation on the Vendor's liability as non-negotiable, to disqualify any Proposal that includes exceptions to this prohibition on any limitation on the Vendor's liability, and to proceed with another responsive, responsible proposal, as determined by the County in its sole discretion.

2. INDEMNIFICATION

Vendor agrees to indemnify, pay the cost of defense, including attorney's fees, and hold harmless the County, its officers, employees and agents from all damages, suits, actions or claims, including reasonable attorney's fees incurred by the County, of any character brought on account of any injuries or damages received or sustained by any person, persons, or property, or in any way relating to or arising from the Agreement; or on account of any act or omission, neglect or misconduct of Contractor; or by, or on account of, any claim or amounts recovered under the Workers' Compensation Law; or of any other laws, regulations, ordinance, order or decree; or arising from or by reason of any actual or claimed trademark, patent or copyright infringement or litigation based thereon; or for any violation of requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as may be amended, and all rules and regulations issued pursuant thereto (collectively the "ADA") except when such injury, damage, or violation was caused by the sole negligence of the County.

3. INSURANCE:

The Vendor must provide a certificate of insurance and endorsement in accordance with the insurance requirements listed below, prior to recommendation for award.

The Vendor shall obtain and maintain and require any subcontractor to obtain and maintain, at all times during its performance of the Agreement, insurance of the types and in the amounts set forth. For projects with a Completed Operations exposure, Vendor shall maintain coverage and provide evidence of insurance for two (2) years beyond final acceptance. All insurance policies shall be from responsible companies duly authorized to do business in the State of Florida and have an AM Best rating of A- VIII or better.

- A. Submittals should include, the Vendor's current Certificate(s) of Insurance. If Vendor does not currently meet insurance requirements, Vendor shall also include verification from their broker or agent that any required insurance not provided at that time of submittal will be in place prior to the award of contract.
 - Upon selection of Vendor for award, the selected Vendor shall email certificate that is compliant with the insurance requirements. If the certificate received is compliant, no further action may be necessary. The Certificate(s) of Insurance shall be signed by authorized representatives of the insurance companies shown on the Certificate(s). The Certificate holder section shall indicate Pinellas County, a Subdivision of the State of Florida, 400 S Fort Harrison Ave, Clearwater, FL 33756. Pinellas County shall be named as an Additional Insured for General Liability. A Waiver of Subrogation for Workers Compensation shall be provided if Workers Compensation coverage is a requirement.
- B. Approval by the County of any Certificate(s) of Insurance does not constitute verification by the County that the insurance requirements have been satisfied or that the insurance policy shown on the Certificate(s) of Insurance is in compliance with the requirements of the Agreement. The County reserves the right to require a certified copy of the entire insurance policy, including endorsement(s), at any time during the RFP and/or contract period.
- C. If any insurance provided pursuant to the Agreement expires or cancels prior to the completion of the work you will be notified by CTrax, the authorized Vendor of Pinellas County. Upon notification, renewal certificate(s) of Insurance and endorsement(s) should be furnished to Pinellas County Risk Management at InsuranceCerts@pinellascounty.org and to CTrax c/o JDi Data at PinellasSupport@jdidata.com by the Vendor or their agent prior to the expiration date.

AGREEMENT

- 1) The Vendor shall also notify the County within twenty-four (72) hours after receipt, of any notices of expiration, cancellation, nonrenewal or adverse material change in coverage received by said Vendor from its insurer. Notice shall be given by email to Pinellas County Risk Management at InsuranceCerts@pinellascounty.org. Nothing contained herein shall absolve Vendor of this requirement to provide notice.
- 2) Should the Vendor, at any time, not maintain the insurance coverages required herein, the County may terminate the Agreement.
- D. If subcontracting is allowed under this RFP, the Primary Vendor shall obtain and maintain, at all times during its performance of the Agreement, insurance of the types and in the amounts set forth; and require any Subcontractors to obtain and maintain, at all times during its performance of the Agreement, insurance limits as it may apply to the portion of the Work performed by the Subcontractor; but in no event will the insurance limits be less than \$500,000 for Workers' Compensation/Employers' Liability, and \$1,000,000 for General Liability and Auto Liability if required below.

All subcontracts between the Vendor and its Subcontractors shall be in writing and are subject to the County's prior written approval. Further, all subcontracts shall

- Require each Subcontractor to be bound to the Vendor to the same extent the Vendor is bound to the County by the terms of the Contract Documents, as those terms may apply to the portion of the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor;
- 2) Provide for the assignment of the subcontracts from the Vendor to the County at the election of Owner upon termination of the Contract;
- 3) Provide that County will be an additional indemnified party of the subcontract;
- 4) Provide that the County will be an additional insured on all insurance policies required to be provided by the Subcontractor except workers compensation and professional liability;
- 5) Provide a waiver of subrogation in favor of the County and other insurance terms and/or conditions as outlined below;
- 6) Assign all warranties directly to the County; and
- 7) Identify the County as an intended third-party beneficiary of the subcontract. The Vendor shall make available to each proposed Subcontractor, prior to the execution of the subcontract, copies of the Contract Documents to which the Subcontractor will be bound by this Section C and identify to the Subcontractor any terms and conditions of the proposed subcontract which may be at variance with the Contract Documents.
- E. Each insurance policy and/or certificate shall include the following terms and/or conditions:
 - 1) The Named Insured on the Certificate of Insurance and insurance policy must match the entity's name that responded to the solicitation and/or is signing the agreement with the County.
 - 2) Companies issuing the insurance policy, or policies, shall have no recourse against County for payment of premiums or assessments for any deductibles which all are at the sole responsibility and risk of Vendor.
 - 3) The term "County" or "Pinellas County" shall include all Authorities, Boards, Bureaus, Commissions, Divisions, Departments and Constitutional offices of County and individual members, employees thereof in their official capacities, and/or while acting on behalf of Pinellas County.
 - 4) All policies shall be written on a primary, non-contributory basis.

AGREEMENT

The minimum insurance requirements and limits for this Agreement, which shall remain in effect throughout its duration and for two (2) years beyond final acceptance for projects with a Completed Operations exposure, are as follows:

1) Workers' Compensation Insurance: Worker's Compensation Insurance is required if required pursuant to Florida law. If, pursuant to Florida law, Worker's Compensation Insurance is required, employer's liability, also known as Worker's Compensation Part B, is also required in the amounts set forth herein

Limits

Employers' Liability Limits Florida Statutory

Per Employee \$ 500,000
Per Employee Disease \$ 500,000
Policy Limit Disease \$ 500,000

If Vendor/Contractor is not required by Florida law, to carry Workers Compensation Insurance in order to perform the requirements of this Agreement, County Waiver Form for workers compensation must be executed, submitted, and accepted by Risk Management. Failure to obtain required Worker's Compensation Insurance without submitting and receiving a waiver from Risk Management constitutes a material breach of this Agreement.

 Commercial General Liability Insurance: including, but not limited to, Independent Vendor, Contractual Liability Premises/Operations, Products/Completed Operations, and Personal Injury. No exclusions for physical abuse or sexual molestation.

Limits

Each Occurrence or Claim \$ 1,000,000

General Aggregate \$ 2,000,000

For acceptance of Professional Liability coverage included within another policy required herein, a statement notifying the certificate holder must be included on the certificate of insurance and the total amount of said coverage per occurrence must be greater than or equal to the amount of Professional Liability and other coverage combined.

3) **Business Automobile or Trucker's/Garage Liability Insurance** covering owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles. If the Consultant does not own any vehicles, then evidence of Hired and Non-owned coverage is sufficient. Coverage shall be on an "occurrence" basis, such insurance to include coverage for loading and unloading hazards, unless Consultant can show that this coverage exists under the Commercial General Liability policy.

Limit

Combined Single Limit Per Accident \$1,000,000

AGREEMENT

4) Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) Insurance with at least minimum limits as follows. If "claims made" coverage is provided, "tail coverage" extending three (3) years beyond completion and acceptance of the project with proof of "tail coverage" to be submitted with the invoice for final payment. In lieu of "tail coverage", Proposer may submit annually to the County, for a three (3) year period, a current certificate of insurance providing "claims made" insurance with prior acts coverage in force with a retroactive date no later than commencement date of this contract.

Limits

Each Occurrence or Claim \$ 1,000,000

General Aggregate \$ 1,000,000

For acceptance of Professional Liability coverage included within another policy required herein, a statement notifying the certificate holder must be included on the certificate of insurance and the total amount of said coverage per occurrence must be greater than or equal to the amount of Professional Liability and other coverage combined.

5) Cyber Risk Liability (Network Security/Privacy Liability) Insurance including cloud computing and mobile devices, for protection of private or confidential information whether electronic or non-electronic, network security and privacy; privacy against liability for system attacks, digital asset loss, denial or loss of service, introduction, implantation or spread of malicious software code, security breach, unauthorized access and use; including regulatory action expenses; and notification and credit monitoring expenses with at least minimum limits as follows:

Limits

Each Occurrence \$1,000,000

General Aggregate \$1,000,000

For acceptance of Cyber Risk Liability coverage included within another policy required herein, a statement notifying the certificate holder must be included on the certificate of insurance and the total amount of said coverage per occurrence must be greater than or equal to the amount of Cyber Risk Liability and other coverage combined.

 Property Insurance: Vendor will be responsible for all damage to its own property, equipment and/or materials. RFP # 22-0371-P(LN)
RFP Title: Adult Drug Court Treatment – Division N and Z

AGREEMENT

EXHIBIT C - PAYMENT SCHEDULE

CRL Drug Court Fee Schedule								
DIVISION N (County General Fund)								
Service Provider	Treatment Services		Budget	FY 22 Bid Unit Cost				
CRL	Outpatient Level II, Outpatient Level III	\$	218,670.00	Outpatient Level II Services - \$40.00				
				Outpatient Level III Services - \$40.00				
				Post Treatment Drug Screen - \$25.00				
Annual Budget:		\$	218,670.00					
DIVISION Z (State Funds)								
Service Provider	Treatment Services		Budget	FY 22 Bid Unit Cost				
CRL	Outpatient Level II, Outpatient Level III		16,000.00	Outpatient Level II Services - \$40.00				
		\$		Outpatient Level III Services - \$40.00				
				Post Treatment Drug Screen - \$25.00				
	Annual Budget:	\$	16,000.00					

AGREEMENT

EXHIBIT D - PAYMENT/INVOICES

PAYMENT/INVOICES:

CONTRACTOR shall submit invoices for payment due as provided herein with such documentation as required by Pinellas County and all payments shall be made in accordance with the requirements of Section 218.70 et. seq, Florida Statutes, "The Local Government Prompt Payment Act." Invoices shall be submitted to the address below unless instructed otherwise on the purchase order, or if no purchase order, by the ordering department:

Finance Division Accounts Payable
Pinellas County Board of County Commissioners
P. O. Box 2438
Clearwater, FL 33757

Each invoice shall include, at a minimum, the Contractor's name, contact information and the standard purchase order number. In order to expedite payment, it is recommended the Contractor also include the information shown in below. The County may dispute any payments invoiced by CONTRACTOR in accordance with the County's Dispute Resolution Process for Invoiced Payments, established in accordance with Section 218.76, Florida Statutes, and any such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the County's Dispute Resolution Process.

INVOICE INFORMATION:

Contractor Information

Company name, mailing address, phone number, contact name and email address as

provided on the PO

Remit ToBilling address to which you are requesting payment be sent

Invoice Number Company tracking number

Shipping Address Address where goods and/or services were delivered

Ordering Department Name of ordering department, including name and phone number of contact person

PO Number Standard purchase order number

Ship Date Date the goods/services were sent/provided

Quantity Quantity of goods or services billed

Description Description of services or goods delivered

Unit Price Unit price for the quantity of goods/services delivered

Line Total Amount due by line item

Invoice Total Sum of all of the line totals for the invoice

Pinellas County offers a credit card payment process (ePayables) through Bank of America. Pinellas County does not charge vendors to participate in the program; however, there may be a charge by the company that processes your credit card transactions. For more information please visit Pinellas County purchasing website at (www.pinellascounty.org/purchase).

AGREEMENT

EXHIBIT E - DISPUTE RESOLUTION FOR PINELLAS COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS IN MATTERS OF INVOICE PAYMENTS:

Payment of invoices for work performed for Pinellas County Board of County Commissioners (County) is made, by standard, in arrears in accordance with Section 218.70, et. seq., Florida Statutes, the Local Government Prompt Payment Act.

If a dispute should arise as a result of non-payment of a payment request or invoice the following Dispute Resolution process shall apply:

- A. Pinellas County shall notify a vendor in writing within 10 days after receipt of an improper invoice, that the invoice is improper. The notice should indicate what steps the vendor should undertake to correct the invoice and resubmit a proper invoice to the County. The steps taken by the vendor shall be that of initially contacting the requesting department to validate their invoice and receive a sign off from that entity that would indicate that the invoice in question is in keeping with the terms and conditions of the agreement. Once sign off is obtained, the vendor should then resubmit the invoice as a "Corrected Invoice" to the requesting department which will initiate the payment timeline.
 - 1. Requesting department for this purpose is defined as the County department for whom the work is performed.
 - 2. Proper invoice for this purpose is defined as an invoice submitted for work performed that meets prior agreed upon terms or conditions to the satisfaction of Pinellas County.
- B. Should a dispute result between the vendor and the County about payment of a payment request or an invoice then the vendor should submit their dissatisfaction in writing to the Requesting Department. Each Requesting Department shall assign a representative who shall act as a "Dispute Manager" to resolve the issue at departmental level.
- C. The Dispute Manager shall first initiate procedures to investigate the dispute and document the steps taken to resolve the issue in accordance with section 218.76 Florida Statutes. Such procedures shall be commenced no later than 45 days after the date on which the payment request or invoice was received by Pinellas County, and shall not extend beyond 60 days after the date on which the payment request or invoice was received by Pinellas County.
- D. The Dispute Manager should investigate and ascertain that the work, for which the payment request or invoice has been submitted, was performed to Pinellas County's satisfaction and duly accepted by the Proper Authority. Proper Authority for this purpose is defined as the Pinellas County representative who is designated as the approving authority for the work performed in the contractual document. The Dispute Manager shall perform the required investigation and arrive at a solution before or at the 60 days timeframe for resolution of the dispute, per section 218.76, Florida Statutes. The County Administrator or his or her designee shall be the final arbiter in resolving the issue before it becomes a legal matter. The County Administrator or his or her designee will issue their decision in writing.
- E. Pinellas County Dispute Resolution Procedures shall not be subject to Chapter 120 of the Florida Statutes. The procedures shall also, per section 218.76, Florida Statutes, not be intended as an administrative proceeding which would prohibit a court from ruling again on any action resulting from the dispute.
- F. Should the dispute be resolved in the County's favor interest charges begin to accrue 15 days after the final decision made by the County. Should the dispute be resolved in the vendor's favor the County shall pay interest as of the original date the payment was due.
- G. For any legal action to recover any fees due because of the application of sections 218.70 et. seq., Florida Statutes, an award shall be made to cover court costs and reasonable attorney fees, including those fees incurred as a result of an appeal, to the prevailing party If it is found that the non-prevailing party held back any payment that was the reason for the dispute without having any reasonable lawful basis or fact to dispute the prevailing party's claim to those amounts.

PINELLAS COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 400 S. FT. HARRISON AVENUE ANNEX BUILDING – 6TH FLOOR CLEARWATER, FL 33756



REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

RFP – FORMAL/INFORMAL
SUBMITTALS ARE OPENED PUBLICLY AND
ARE ACCEPTED VIA PINELLAS EPRO

THE MISSION OF PINELLAS COUNTY

Pinellas County Government is committed to progressive public policy, superior public service, courteous public contact, judicious exercise of authority and sound management of public resources to meet the needs and concerns of our citizens today and tomorrow.

ISSUE DATE: Thursday, April 14, 2022 SOLICITATION NUMBER: **22-0371-P**

SOLICITATION TITLE: Adult Drug Court Treatment - Division N and Z

DEADLINE FOR WRITTEN QUESTIONS: Friday, April 29, 2022 by 3:00 PM Eastern Time

SUBMIT QUESTIONS: ALL QUESTIONS MUST BE SUBMITTED IN PINELLAS EPRO WITHIN THE Q&A - TAB.

ALL SUBMITTALS ARE DUE BY: Tuesday, May 10, 2022 by 3:00 PM Eastern Time

PRE-CONFERENCE INFORMATION: NON MANDATORY - Friday, April 29, 2022 @ 10:00 A.M.

SITE VISIT INFORMATION: **NOT APPLICABLE** SOLICITATION CONTACT INFORMATION:

NAME: Lucy Nowacki

EMAIL: Inowacki@pinellascounty.org

SUBMITTALS MAY NOT BE WITHDRAWN FOR 120 DAYS AFTER OPENING DATE.

RFP #22-0317-P(LN)
RFP TITLE: Adult Drug Court Treatment - Division N and Z

ATTACHMENT 1 Page 26 of 172

Please Note:

From time to time, addenda may be issued to this solicitation. Any such addenda will be posted on the same Web site, www.pinellascounty.org/purchase/Current_Bids1.htm, from which you obtained this solicitation.

Before submitting, you should check our Web site to download any addenda that may have been issued. Please remember to sign and return Addenda Acknowledgement Form with completed bid package if applicable.

AUTHORIZED BY:

Merry Celeste
Merry Celeste, CPPB

Division Director of Purchasing and Risk Management

THIS FORM MUST BE RETURNED WITH YOUR RESPONSE

CONTRACTOR MUST COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING

CONTRACTORS ARE CAUTIONED THAT THE POLICY OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, PINELLAS COUNTY, IS TO ACCEPT THE LOWEST RESPONSIVE AND RESPONSIBLE SUBMITTAL RECEIVED MEETING SPECIFICATIONS. NO CHANGES REQUESTED BY A CONTRACTOR DUE TO AN ERROR IN PRICING WILL BE CONSIDERED AFTER THE SOLICITATION OPENING DATE AS ADVERTISED. BY SIGNING THIS SUBMITTAL FORM, CONTRACTORS ARE ATTESTING TO THEIR AWARENESS OF THIS POLICY AND ARE AGREEING TO ALL OTHER SOLICITATION TERMS AND CONDITIONS, INCLUDING ANY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS CONTAINED HEREIN.

CONTRACTOR NAME:	(As shown on W-9)
DBA:	(If applicable)
MAILING ADDRESS:	(As shown on W-9)
CITY / STATE / ZIP:	(As shown on W-9)
CONTRACTOR EMAIL:	(Primary Company Email Address)
REMIT TO NAME:	(As Shown on contractors Invoice)
FEIN#:	(As shown on W-9)
PAYMENT TERMS:%DAYS, NET 45 (PER F.S. 218.	73)
DEPOSIT, IF REQUIRED, IS ATTACHED IN THE AMOUNT O	F \$
Proper Corporate Identity is needed when you submit your quo Division of Corporations. Please visit <u>dos.myflorida.com/sunbiza</u> W-9 with your quote. Thank you.	
CONTRACTOR CONTACT INFORMATION	
CONTACT NAME:	
PHONE NUMBER:	
FAX NUMBER:	
EMAIL ADDRESS:	
I HEREBY AGREE TO ABIDE BY ALL TERMS AND CONDITION INCLUDING ALL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS & CERTIFY PROPOSER.	
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE:	
PRINT NAME:	
TITLE:	
SEE SECTION F FOR PRICING SUMMARY	

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	SSION OF PINELLAS COUNTY				
CONTR	RACTOR MUST COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING	. 3			
TABLE	OF CONTENTS	.4			
SECT	TION A - GENERAL CONDITIONS	. 6			
1.	CONTRACTOR SUBMISSION				
2.	WRITTEN REQUESTS FOR INTERPRETATIONS/CLARIFICATIONS				
3.	DESCRIPTION OF GOODS/SERVICES/SUPPLIES				
4.	ALTERNATES	6			
5.	RIGHTS OF PINELLAS COUNTY IN REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL PROCESS	6			
6.	EVALUATION CRITERIA	7			
7.	COSTS INCURRED BY PROPOSERS	7			
8.	ORAL PRESENTATION				
9.	CONFLICT OF INTEREST				
10.	WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSAL				
11.	LATE PROPOSAL OR MODIFICATIONS	7			
	PROPOSALS FROM RELATED PARTIES / MULTIPLE PROPOSALS RECEIVED FROM ONE VENDOR				
	JOINT VENTURES				
	PROVISION FOR OTHER AGENCIES				
15.	STATEMENT RELATIVE TO PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES	8			
	COUNTY INDEMNIFICATIONVARIANCE FROM STANDARD TERMS & CONDITIONS				
	VARIANCE FROM STANDARD TERMS & CONDITIONS				
	ADA REQUIREMENT FOR PUBLIC NOTICES				
	PROCUREMENT POLICY FOR RECYCLED MATERIALS				
	ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS				
	AGREEMENT				
	INTEGRITY OF REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) DOCUMENTS				
	PUBLIC RECORDS/TRADE SECRETS				
	LOBBYING				
26.	PROTEST PROCEDURE	11			
27.	PUBLIC RECORDS - CONTRACTOR'S DUTY	12			
28.	E-VERIFY				
_	INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS AND COMPLIANCE WITH THE IMMIGRATION REFORM AND				
	NTROL ACT OF 1986				
	TRUTH IN NEGOTIATIONS:				
SECT	TION B – SPECIAL CONDITIONS				
1.	INTENT				
2.	PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS	14			
3.	PRICING/PERIOD OF CONTRACT				
4.	TERM EXTENSION(S) OF CONTRACT				
5.	FEES AND EXPENSES				
6. 7	PRE-CONFERENCE	_			
7. 8.	PRE-COMMENCEMENT MEETING.				
o. 9.	PERFORMANCE SECURITY				
9. 10.	TIMELINE				
	PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL COPIES				
	BREACH OF CONTRACT				
	TION C – INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION REQUIREMENTS				
1.	LIMITATIONS ON LIABILITY				
1. 2.	INDEMNIFICATION				
3.	INSURANCE:				
•	ION D – CONTRACTOR REFERENCES				
_	SECTION E – SCOPE OF WORK				
	TION F - PROPOSAL SUMMARY				
Prop	oosal Number: 22-0371-P(LN)	33			

ELECTRONIC PAYMENT (EPAYABLES)	35
W-9 REQUEST FOR TAXPAYER ID NUMBER AND CERTIFICATION	
SECTION G - ADDENDUM	37
SECTION H - STATEMENT OF NO BID	38
APPENDIX 1 – E-VERIFY AFFIDAVIT	39

SECTION A - GENERAL CONDITIONS

1. CONTRACTOR SUBMISSION

- a. Submittals shall be uploaded utilizing Pinellas ePro procurement website. Failure to comply could result in the submittal being rejected.
- b. Submittals must be on the forms furnished. Submittals sent via email will not be considered.

2. WRITTEN REQUESTS FOR INTERPRETATIONS/CLARIFICATIONS

No oral interpretations will be made to any firms as to the meaning of specifications or any other contractor documents. All questions pertaining to the terms and conditions or scope of work of this solicitation must be sent in writing (electronically) to the Purchasing and Risk Management Division and received by the date specified in solicitation. Responses to questions may be handled as an addendum if the response would provide clarification to requirements of the solicitation. All such addenda shall become part of the agreement documents. The County will not be responsible for any other explanation or interpretation of the proposed solicitation made or given prior to the award of the agreement. The Purchasing and Risk Management Division will be unable to respond to questions received after the specified time frame.

3. <u>DESCRIPTION OF GOODS/SERVICES/SUPPLIES</u>

- a. Any manufacturer's names, trade names, brand name, or catalog numbers used in specifications are for the purpose of describing and establishing general quality levels. Such references are not intended to be restrictive. Submittals will be considered for all brands which meet the quality of the specifications listed for any items.
- b. contractors are required to state exactly what they intend to furnish otherwise they shall be required to furnish the items as specified.
- c. contractor submission shall include all data necessary to evaluate and determine the quality of the item(s) they intend to furnish.

4. ALTERNATES

Unless otherwise provided in the solicitation, alternatives may be included in the plans, specifications, and/or solicitation. When the County includes alternates in the solicitation, the contractor shall indicate on the submittal the cost of said alternate and sum to be deducted or added to the base pricing. Such alternates may or may not be accepted by the County. If approved, it is at the County's discretion to accept said alternate(s) in any sequence or combination therein. If the contractor is proposing an alternate that is not provided in the solicitation, alternate(s) must be submitted within the Pinellas ePro Q & A Tab prior to the question deadline, and receive approval prior to the solicitation opening date in order to be considered for award.

5. RIGHTS OF PINELLAS COUNTY IN REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL PROCESS

In addition to all other rights of the County under Florida law, the County specifically reserves the following:

- a. Pinellas County reserves the right to rank contractors and negotiate with the highest-ranking contractor. Negotiation with an individual vendor does not require negotiation with others.
- b. Pinellas County reserves the right to select the contractor that it believes will serve the best interest of Pinellas County.
- c. Pinellas County reserves the right to reject any or all submittals. The respective constitutional officer, county administrator on behalf of the board of county commissioners or within their delegated financial approval authority, or director of purchasing, within their delegated financial approval authority shall have the authority when the public interest will be served thereby to reject all submittals or parts of submittals at any stage of the procurement process through the award of the agreement.
- d. Pinellas County reserves the right to cancel the entire submittal.
- e. Pinellas County reserves the right to remedy or waive technical or immaterial errors in the solicitation or submittals received.
- f. Pinellas County reserves the right to request any necessary clarifications or revisions data without changing the terms of the solicitation.

g. Pinellas County reserves the right to require the contractor to perform the services required on the basis of the original submittal without negotiation.

6. EVALUATION CRITERIA

The evaluation criteria define the factors that will be used by the Evaluation Committee to evaluate and score responsive, responsible and qualified submittals. Contractor shall include sufficient information to allow the Evaluation Committee to thoroughly evaluate and score their submittal. Each submission shall be evaluated and ranked by an Evaluation Committee. The contract will be awarded to the most qualified contractor, per the evaluation criteria listed in the Scope of Work of the solicitation.

7. COSTS INCURRED BY PROPOSERS

All expenses involved with the preparations and submissions to the County and any oral presentations, or any work performed in connection therewith, shall be borne solely by the contractor(s). No payment will be made for any responses received, or for any other effort required of, or made by, the contractor(s) prior to contract commencement unless otherwise specified in the Scope of Work in this solicitation.

8. ORAL PRESENTATION

An oral presentation may be requested of any contractor, at the Evaluation Committee's discretion. If an oral presentation is requested the written evaluation process shall be utilized to short list proposals. If required as part of the evaluation process, the oral presentation shall be scored as specified in the Scope of Work of the RFP. The most qualified contractor as determined by evaluation process shall proceed with the contracting process.

9. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

- a. The contractor represents that it presently has no interest and shall acquire no interest, either direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner with the performance or services required hereunder. The contractor further represents that no person having any such interest shall be employed during the agreement term and any extensions. In addition, the contractor shall not offer gifts or gratuities to County employees as County employees are not permitted to accept gifts or gratuities. By signing this document, the contractor acknowledges that no gifts or gratuities have been offered to County employees or anyone else involved in this competitive solicitation process.
- b. The contractor shall promptly notify the County's representative, in writing, by certified mail, of all potential conflicts of interest for any prospective business association, interest, or other circumstance, which may influence or appear to influence the contractor's judgment or quality of services being provided hereunder. Such written notification shall identify the prospective business association, interest or circumstance, the nature of work that the contractor may undertake and request an opinion of the County as to whether the association, interest or circumstance would, in the opinion of the County, constitute a conflict of interest if entered into by the contractor. The County agrees to notify the contractor of its opinion, by certified mail, within thirty days of receipt of notification by the contractor.
- c. It is essential to government procurement that the process be open, equitable and ethical. To this end, if potential unethical practices including but not limited to collusion, receipt or solicitation of gifts and conflicts of interest (direct/indirect) etc. are observed or perceived, please report such activity to:

Pinellas County Clerk of Circuit Court – Division of Inspector General

Phone – (727) 45FRAUD (453-7283)

Fax - 727-464-8386

10. WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSAL

The submittal may be withdrawn prior to the bid opening date, however, a submittal may not be withdrawn for a period of time as specified in this solicitation document.

11. LATE PROPOSAL OR MODIFICATIONS

a. Submittals and modifications received after the time set for the submission will not be considered. This upholds the integrity of the process.

b. Modifications in writing received prior to the time set for the submittal will be accepted.

12. PROPOSALS FROM RELATED PARTIES / MULTIPLE PROPOSALS RECEIVED FROM ONE VENDOR

Where two (2) or more related parties each submit a proposal or multiple proposals are received from one (1) vendor, for any contract, such proposals shall be judged non-responsive. Related parties mean proposers or the principles thereof, which have a direct or indirect ownership interest in another proposer for the same contract or in which a parent company or the principles thereof of one (1) proposer have a direct or indirect ownership interest in another bidder or proposer for the same contract.

13. JOINT VENTURES

All contractors intending to submit as a joint venture are required to have filed proper documents with the Florida Department of State, the Division of Professions, Construction Industry Licensing Board and any other state or local licensing Agency prior to submitting (see Section 489.119 Florida Statutes).

Joint ventures must provide an affidavit attesting to the formulation of a joint venture and provide either proof of incorporation as a joint venture or a copy of the formal joint venture agreement between all joint venture parties, indicating their respective roles, responsibilities and levels of participation for the project.

14. PROVISION FOR OTHER AGENCIES

Unless otherwise stipulated by the contractor(s), the contractor(s) agree to make available to all Government agencies, departments, and municipalities the prices submitted in accordance with said terms and conditions therein, should any said governmental entity desire to buy under this solicitation. Eligible users shall mean all State of Florida Agencies, the legislative and judicial branches, political subdivisions (counties, local district school boards, community colleges, municipalities, or other public agencies or authorities), which may desire to purchase under the terms and conditions of the agreement.

15. COLLUSION

The contractor, by affixing his signature to this proposal, agrees to the following: "Contractor certifies that its submittal is made without previous understanding, agreement, or connection with any person, firm or corporation making a submittal for the same item(s) and is in all respects fair, without outside control, collusion, fraud, or otherwise illegal action."

16. STATEMENT RELATIVE TO PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES

Contractor is directed to the Florida Public Entity Crime Act, Fla. Stat. 287.133, and Fla. Stat. 287.135 regarding Scrutinized Companies, and contractor agrees that its submittal and, if awarded, its performance of the agreement will comply with all applicable laws including those referenced herein. contractor represents and certifies that contractor is and will at all times remain eligible to submit for and perform the services subject to the requirements of these, and other applicable, laws. contractor agrees that any agreement awarded to contractor will be subject to termination by the County if contractor fails to comply or to maintain such compliance.

17. COUNTY INDEMNIFICATIONVARIANCE FROM STANDARD TERMS & CONDITIONS

Contractor agrees to indemnify, pay the cost of defense, including attorney's fees, and hold harmless the County, its officers, employees and agents from all damages, suits, actions or claims, including reasonable attorney's fees incurred by the County, of any character brought on account of any injuries or damages received or sustained by any person, persons, or property, or in any way relating to or arising from the Agreement; or on account of any act or omission, neglect or misconduct of Contractor; or by, or on account of, any claim or amounts recovered under the Workers' Compensation Law; or of any other laws, regulations, ordinance, order or decree; or arising from or by reason of any actual or claimed trademark, patent or copyright infringement or litigation based thereon; or for any violation of requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as may be amended, and all rules and regulations issued pursuant thereto (collectively the "ADA") except when such injury, damage, or violation was caused by the sole negligence of the County.

18. VARIANCE FROM STANDARD TERMS & CONDITIONS

All standard terms and conditions stated in this section apply to this Agreement except as specifically stated in the subsequent sections of the document, which take precedence over this section, and should be fully understood by contractors prior to submitting on this requirement.

19. ADA REQUIREMENT FOR PUBLIC NOTICES

Persons with disabilities requiring reasonable accommodation to participate in this proceeding/event, should call 727-464-4062 (voice/tdd) fax 727-464-4157, not later than seven days prior to the proceeding.

20. PROCUREMENT POLICY FOR RECYCLED MATERIALS

- a. Pinellas County wishes to encourage its contractors to use recycled products in fulfilling contractual obligations to the County and that such a policy will serve as a model for other public entities and private sector companies.
- b. When awarding a purchase or recommending a purchase for products, materials, or services, the Director of Purchasing and Risk Management may allow a preference to a responsive contractor who certifies that their product or material contains the greatest percentage of postconsumer material. If solicitation includes paper products, contractor must certify that their materials and/or products contain at least the content recommended by the EPA guidelines.
- c. On all quotes over fifty thousand dollars (\$50,000) and informal quotes under fifty thousand dollars (\$50,000), or as required by law, the Director of Purchasing and Risk Management shall require vendors to specify which products have recycled materials, what percentage or amount is postconsumer material, and to provide certification of the percentages of recycled materials used in the manufacture of goods and commodities procured by the County.
- d. Price preference is not the preferred practice the County wishes to employ in meeting the goals of this resolution. If a price preference is deemed to serve the best interest of the County and further supports the purchase of recycled materials, the Director of Purchasing will make a recommendation that a price preference be allowed up to an amount not to exceed 10% above the lowest complying submittal received.

Definitions for Recycled Materials:

Recovered Materials: Materials that have recycling potential, can be recycled, and have been diverted or removed from the solid waste stream for sale, use or reuse, by separation, collection, or processing.

Recycled Materials: Materials that contain recovered materials. This term may include internally generated scrap that is commonly used in industrial or manufacturing processes, waste or scrap purchased from another manufacturer and used in the same or a closely related product.

Postconsumer Materials: Materials which have been used by a business or a consumer and have served their intended end use, and have been separated or diverted from the solid waste stream for the purpose of recycling, such as; newspaper, aluminum, glass containers, plastic containers, office paper, corrugated boxes, pallets or other items which can be used in the remanufacturing process.

21. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS

The County reserves the right to request additional goods or services relating to this agreement from the contractor. When approved by the County as an amendment to this agreement and authorized in writing, the contractor shall provide such additional requirements as may become necessary.

22. AGREEMENT

In addition to being subject to all terms and conditions in this solicitation, all responses are subject to the terms and conditions in the agreement attached to the solicitation. Additional or modified terms and conditions in the agreement may be necessary depending on the responses to the solicitation, including any exceptions stated by the contractor as required by Section A, PREPARATION OF SUBMITTAL of this solicitation. However, the County may reject any exception proposed by the contractor and shall not be bound by any additional or modified terms and conditions that are in conflict with the terms and conditions in the agreement, or are not acceptable to, or have been declared to be non-negotiable by the County, as determined in its sole discretion.

23. INTEGRITY OF REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) DOCUMENTS

Contractors shall use the original solicitation form(s) provided by the Purchasing & Risk Management Division and enter information only in the spaces where a response is requested. contractors may use an attachment as an addendum to the solicitation form(s) if sufficient space is not available on the original form for the contractor to enter a complete response. Any modifications or alterations to the original solicitation documents by the contractor, whether intentional or otherwise, will constitute grounds for rejection of a solicitation. Any such modifications or alterations a contractor wishes to propose must be clearly stated in the contractor's submittal response and presented in the form of an addendum to the original solicitation documents.

24. PUBLIC RECORDS/TRADE SECRETS

Pinellas County Government is subject to the Florida Public Records law (Chapter 119, Florida Statutes), and all documents, materials, and data submitted to any solicitation as part of the response are governed by the disclosure, exemption and confidentiality provisions relating to public records in Florida Statutes. Except for materials that are "trade secrets" or "confidential" as defined by applicable Florida law, ownership of all documents, materials, and data submitted in response to the solicitation shall belong exclusively to the County.

To the extent that contractor desires to maintain the confidentiality of materials that constitute trade secrets pursuant to Florida law, trade secret material submitted must be identified by some distinct method that the materials that constitute a trade secret, and contractor shall provide an additional copy of the contractors submittal that redacts all designated trade secrets. By submitting materials that are designated as trade secrets and signature of the contractor signature page, contractor acknowledges and agrees:

- i. That after notice from the County that a public records request has been made for the materials designated as a trade secret, the contractor shall be solely responsible for defending its determination that submitted material is a trade secret that is not subject to disclosure at its sole cost, which action shall be taken immediately, but no later than ten (10) calendar days from the date of notification or contractor will be deemed to have waived the trade secret designation of the materials;
- ii. That to the extent that the contractor with trade secret materials is evaluated, the County and it officials, employees, agents, and representatives in any way involved in processing, evaluating, negotiating agreement terms, approving any agreement based on the contractor, or engaging in any other activity relating to the competitive selection process are hereby granted full rights to access, view, consider, and discuss the materials designated as trade secrets through the final agreement award;
- iii. To indemnify and hold the County, and its officials, employees, agents and representatives harmless from any actions, damages (including attorney's fees and costs), or claims arising from or related to the designation of trade secrets by the contractor, including actions or claims arising from the County's non-disclosure of the trade secret materials.
- iv. That information and data it manages as part of the services may be public record in accordance with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes and Pinellas County public record policies. contractor agrees prior to providing goods/services it will implement policies and procedures to maintain, produce, secure and retain public records in accordance with applicable laws, regulations, and County policies, which are subject to approval by the County, including but limited to the Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes.

Notwithstanding any other provision in the solicitation, the classification as trade secret of the entire submission document, line item and/or total contractor prices, the work, services, project, goods, and/or products to be provided by contractor, or any information, data, or materials that may be part of or incorporated into an agreement between the County and the contractor is not acceptable to the County and will result in a determination that the contractor submittal is nonresponsive; the classification as trade secret of any other portion of a submittal document may result in a determination that the submittal is nonresponsive.

25. LOBBYING

"Lobbying shall be prohibited on all county competitive selection processes and purchasing contract awards pursuant to this division, including, but not limited to, requests for proposals, requests for quotations, requests for qualifications, bids or the award of purchasing contracts of any type. The purpose of this prohibition is to protect the integrity of the procurement process by shielding it from undue influences prior to the contract award, or the competitive selection

process is otherwise concluded. However, nothing herein shall prohibit a prospective bidder/proposer/protestor from contacting the purchasing department or the county attorney's office to address situations such as clarification and/or pose questions related to the procurement process.

Lobbying of evaluation committee members, county government employees, elected/appointed officials, or advisory board members regarding requests for proposals, requests for quotations, requests for qualifications, bids, or purchasing contracts, by the bidder/proposer, any member of the bidder's/proposer's staff, any agent or representative of the bidder/proposer, or any person employed by any legal entity affiliated with or representing a bidder/proposer/protestor, is strictly prohibited from the date of the advertisement, or on a date otherwise established by the board, until either an award is final, or the competitive selection process is otherwise concluded. Any lobbying activities in violation of this section by or on behalf of a bidder/proposer shall result in the disqualification or rejection of the proposal, quotation, statement of qualification, bid or contract.

For purposes of this provision, "lobbying" shall mean influencing or attempting to influence action or non-action, and/or attempting to obtain the goodwill of persons specified herein relating to the selection, ranking, or contract award in connection with any request for proposal, request for quotation, request for qualification, bid or purchasing contract through direct or indirect oral or written communication. The final award of a purchasing contract shall be the effective date of the purchasing contract.

Any evaluation committee member, county government employee, elected/appointed official, or advisory board member who has been lobbied shall immediately report the lobbying activity to the director."

(Ord. No. 02-35, 5-7-02; Ord. No. 04-64, § 12, 9-21-04; Ord. No. 04-87, § 1, 12-7-04; Ord. No. 10-09, § 6, 2-16-10; Ord. No. 11-23, § 2, 7-26-11; Ord. No. 14-11, § 5, 2-11-14; Ord. No. 18-34, 10-23-18).

26. PROTEST PROCEDURE

As per Section 2-162 of County Code

- a. Right to Protest. "A vendor who is aggrieved by the contents of the bid or proposal package, or a vendor who is aggrieved in connection with the recommended award on a bid or proposal solicitation, may file a written protest to the director, as provided herein. This right to protest is strictly limited to those procurements of goods and/or services solicited through invitations to bid or requests for proposals, including solicitations pursuant to F.S. § 287.055, the "Consultants' Competitive Negotiation Act." No other actions or recommendations in connection with a solicitation can be protested, including: (i) requests for quotations, negotiations, qualifications or letters of interest; (ii) rejection of some, all or parts of bids or proposals; (iii) disqualification of bidders or proposers as non-responsive or non-responsible; or (iv) recommended awards less than the mandatory bid or proposal amount. Protests failing to comply with the provisions of this section shall not be reviewed."
- b. "Posting. The purchasing department shall post the recommended award on or through the departmental website."
- c. Requirements to protest.
 - 1. "If the protest relates to the content of the bid or proposal package, a formal written protest must be filed no later than 5:00 p.m. EST on the fifth full business day after issuance of the bid or proposal package."
 - 2. "If the protest relates to the recommended award of a bid or proposal, a formal written protest must be filed no later than 5:00 p.m. EST on the fifth full business day after posting of the award recommendation."
 - 3. "The formal written protest shall identify the protesting party and the solicitation involved; include a statement of the grounds on which the protest is based; refer to the statutes, laws, ordinances or other legal authorities which the protesting party deems applicable to such grounds; and specifically request the relief to which the protesting party deems itself entitled by application of such authorities to such grounds."
 - 4. "A formal written protest is considered filed with the county when the purchasing department receives it. Accordingly, a protest is not timely filed unless it is received within the time specified above by the purchasing department. Failure to file a formal written protest within the time period specified shall constitute a waiver of the right to protest and result in relinquishment of all rights to protest by the bidder or proposer."

- d. "Sole remedy. These procedures shall be the sole remedy for challenging the content of the bid or proposal package or the recommended award."
- e. "Lobbying. Protestors and anyone acting on their behalf, are prohibited from attempts to influence, persuade, or promote a bid or proposal protest through any other channels or means, and contacting any county official, employee, advisory board member, or representative to discuss any matter relating in any way to the solicitation being protested, other than the purchasing department's or county attorney's office to address situations such as clarification and/or pose questions related to the procurement process. The prohibitions provided for herein shall begin with the filing of the protest and end upon the final disposition of the protest; provided, however, at all times protestors shall be subject to the procurement lobbying prohibitions in section 2-189 of this Code. Failure to adhere to the prohibitions herein shall result in the rejection of the protest without further consideration."
- f. "Time limits. The time limits in which protests must be filed as specified herein may be altered by specific provisions in the bid or proposal."
- g. "Authority to resolve. The director shall resolve the protest in accordance with the documentation and applicable legal authorities and shall issue a written decision to the protestor no later than 5:00 p.m. EST on the tenth full business day after the filing thereof."
- h. "Review of director's decision."
 - 1. "The protesting party may request a review of the director's decision to the county administrator by delivering written request for review of the decision to the director by 5:00 p.m. EST on the fifth full business day after the date of the written decision. The written notice shall include any materials, statements, and arguments which the bidder or proposer deems relevant to the issues raised in the request to review the decision of the director."
 - 2. "The county administrator shall issue a decision in writing stating the reason for the action with a copy furnished to the protesting party no later than 5:00 p.m. EST on the seventh full business day after receipt of the request for review. The decision shall be final and conclusive as to the county unless a party commences action in a court of competent jurisdiction."
- i. "Stay of procurement during protests. There shall be no stay of procurement during protests."

(Ord. No. 94-51, § 5, 6-7-94; Ord. No. 04-87, § 1, 12-7-04; Ord. No. 14-11, § 2, 2-11-14; Ord. No. 18-34, 10-23-18)

27. PUBLIC RECORDS - CONTRACTOR'S DUTY

If the contractor has questions regarding the application of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, to the contractor's duty to provide public records relating to this agreement, the contractor shall contact:

Pinellas County Board of County Commissioners

Purchasing and Risk Management Division

400 S. Ft. Harrison Ave, 6th Floor,

Clearwater, FL 33756

Public Records Liaison

Phone: 727-464-4485

Email: jpeters@pinellascounty.org

28. E-VERIFY

The contractor and subcontractor must register with and use the E-verify system in accordance with Florida Statute 448.095. A contractor and subcontractor may not enter into a contract with the County unless each party registers with and uses the E-verify system.

If a contractor enters a contract with a subcontractor, the subcontractor must provide the contractor with an affidavit stating that the Subcontractor does not employ, contract with, or subcontract with unauthorized aliens. The contractor must maintain a copy of the affidavit for the duration of the contract.

If the County, Contractor, or Subcontractor has a good faith belief that a person or entity with which it is contracting has knowingly violated Florida Statute 448.09(1) shall immediately terminate the contract with the person or entity.

If the County has a good faith belief that a Subcontractor knowingly violated this provision, but the Contractor otherwise complied with this provision, the County will notify the Contractor and order that the Contractor immediately terminate the contract with the Subcontractor.

A contract terminated under the provisions of this section is not a breach of contract and may not considered such. Any contract termination under the provisions of this section may be challenged to Section 448.095(2)(d), Florida Statute. Contractor acknowledges upon termination of this agreement by the County for violation of this section by Contractor, Contractor may not be awarded a public contract for at least one (1) year. Contractor acknowledges that Contractor is liable for any additional costs incurred by the County as a result of termination of any contract for a violation of this section.

Contractor or Subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in this section, requiring the subcontracts to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. Contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any Subcontractor or Lower Tier Subcontractor with the clause set for in this section.

29. <u>INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS AND COMPLIANCE WITH THE IMMIGRATION REFORM AND CONTROL ACT OF 1986</u>

Contractor acknowledges that it is functioning as an independent contractor in performing under the terms of this agreement, and it is not acting as an employee of Pinellas County. The contractor acknowledges that it is responsible for complying with the provisions of the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, located at 8 U.S.C. Section 1324, et seq., and regulations relating thereto. Failure to comply with the above provisions of the agreement shall be considered a material breach and shall be ground for immediate termination of the agreement.

30. TRUTH IN NEGOTIATIONS:

The contractor certifies to truth-in-negotiation and that wage rates and other factual unit costs supporting the compensation are accurate, complete and current at the time of contracting. Further, the original agreement amount and any additions thereto shall be adjusted to exclude any significant sums where the County determines the agreement price was increased due to inaccurate, incomplete or non-current wage rates and other factual unit costs. Such adjustments must be made within one (1) year following the end of the agreement.

SECTION B - SPECIAL CONDITIONS

1. INTENT

In accordance with attached specifications, it is the intent of Pinellas County to establish a contract(s) for **Adult Drug Court Treatment - Division N and Z** Services for qualifying, felony drug offenders through the use of Drug Court and supportive services, as and when required.

2. PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS

Each proposal shall at a minimum address and/or include the following information and documentation in sufficient detail for the County to evaluate the Proposer's qualifications, as well as the methods, manner, proposed completion schedule if applicable, and the cost to complete the Section E Scope of Work:

- a. A separate statement describing the Proposer's qualifications and experience in providing the same or similar services as outlined in the RFP Scope of Work. This description should include the names of the person(s) who will provide the services, including any subcontractors, their qualifications, and the years of experience in performing this type of work/services. Also include the reference information requested in Section D.
- b. A separate written narrative describing the methods and/or manner in which the Proposer proposes to satisfy the requirements of the Scope of Work set out in Section E.
- c. A separate proposed Statement of Work (Proposer's Statement of Work) that enumerates and defines the work/services that Proposer will provide to the County to complete the Scope of Work in this RFP, including each task, deliverable, and/or goods or products comprising the services Proposer will provide, as well as a proposed completion schedule for each task or deliverable, if applicable. The Proposer's Statement of Work shall be in a form that can be incorporated into the Services Agreement as an Exhibit at the County's option.
- d. The proposed compensation to be paid by the County for the services identified in the Proposer's Statement of Work required in subsection 2(c) above. Proposer shall complete Section F Proposal Summary.
- e. Any exceptions to any section of this RFP.

3. PRICING/PERIOD OF CONTRACT

Unit prices bid of listed items shall be held firm for the duration of the contract. Duration of the contract for Division N shall be for a period of (5) year(s) from the effective date and any extension thereof.

Division Z shall be effective from the effective date through June 30, 2027.

4. TERM EXTENSION(S) OF CONTRACT

NOT APPLICABLE

5. FEES AND EXPENSES

The agreed to compensation will include all standard day-to-day administrative, overhead and internal expenses; including, but not limited to:

Costs of bonds and insurance premiums as required by this RFP	Computer/software
Support	Equipment and usage
Office supplies	Telephone charges
Safety equipment	Emails
Consumables	Electronic data transmission fees
Other consulting services	Standard copier usage
Special presentations	Fax charges
Regular and certified postage	Travel, per diem and lodging charges, unless otherwise agreed to by the county in the services agreement

Travel and lodging expenses will be included in the lump sum proposal and will be paid in accordance with Florida Statute 112.061, and/or County Travel Policy, as approved by the County.

6. PRE-CONFERENCE - FRIDAY, APRIL 29, 2022 @ 10:00 A.M.

Microsoft Teams meeting

Join on your computer or mobile app

Click here to join the meeting

<u>Learn More | Meeting options</u>

7. SITE VISIT

NOT APPLICABLE

8. PRE-COMMENCEMENT MEETING

Upon award of bid, the County will coordinate a pre-commencement meeting with the successful Contractor. The meeting will require Contractor and the County Representative to review specific contract details and deliverable documents at this meeting to ensure the scope of work and work areas are understood.

9. PERFORMANCE SECURITY

NOT APPLICABLE

10. TIMELINE

Following is a listing of actions and anticipated dates; the County reserves the right to change the dates, if necessary.

Date	
April 14, 2022	Advertising & Publishing RFP
April 29, 2022	Deadline for Questions/Clarifications at 3:00 p.m.
May 10, 2022	Proposals due in Purchasing by May 10, 2022 @ 3:00 p.m. Public bid opening to follow immediately.
TBD	Evaluation of the RFP
TBD	Recommendation due to Purchasing from Human Services
TBD	Submit recommendation to Board for Award of Contract

11. PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL COPIES

The preferred method is PDF conversion from the Proposer's source files (to minimize file size and maximize quality and accessibility) rather than scanning.

Instructions for Providing Files in PDF Format to Pinellas County Government

How do I convert my files to PDF format?

Answer - If you have a program such as Adobe Acrobat, creating a PDF of any file is a simple print function. Rather than printing to a traditional printer, the file converts to a PDF format copy of your original. Any program (such as Word, PowerPoint, Excel, etc.) can be converted this way by simply selecting the print command and choosing PDF as the printer.

Should I scan everything and save as PDF?

Answer - Not unless you are scanning with OCR (optical character recognition). Scanning will create unnecessarily large files because a scan is just a picture of a page rather than actual page text. Furthermore, the result of scanning is that your pages will not look nearly as "clean" or professional as simply using the print to PDF method from the program from which the file originates. Additionally, since scan pages are pictures of text, not really text, they may not be considered accessible* under Federal ADA guidelines (*unless the scans are OCR.)

12. BREACH OF CONTRACT

Failure of Contractor to perform any of the services required by this contract within 10 days of receipt of written demand for performance from the County shall constitute breach of contract.

<u>SECTION C – INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION REQUIREMENTS</u>

1. LIMITATIONS ON LIABILITY

By submitting a Proposal, the Vendor acknowledges and agrees that the services will be provided without any limitation on the Vendor's liability. The County objects to and shall not be bound by any term or provision that purports to limit the Vendor's liability to any specified amount in the performance of the services. The Vendor shall state any exceptions to this provision in its response, including specifying the proposed limits of liability in the stated exception to be included in the Services Agreement. The Vendor is deemed to have accepted and agreed to provide the services without any limitation on the Vendor's liability that the Vendor does not take exception to in its response. Notwithstanding any exceptions by the Vendor, the County reserves the right to declare its prohibition on any limitation on the Vendor's liability as non-negotiable, to disqualify any Proposal that includes exceptions to this prohibition on any limitation on the Vendor's liability, and to proceed with another responsive, responsible proposal, as determined by the County in its sole discretion.

2. INDEMNIFICATION

Vendor agrees to indemnify, pay the cost of defense, including attorney's fees, and hold harmless the County, its officers, employees and agents from all damages, suits, actions or claims, including reasonable attorney's fees incurred by the County, of any character brought on account of any injuries or damages received or sustained by any person, persons, or property, or in any way relating to or arising from the Agreement; or on account of any act or omission, neglect or misconduct of Contractor; or by, or on account of, any claim or amounts recovered under the Workers' Compensation Law; or of any other laws, regulations, ordinance, order or decree; or arising from or by reason of any actual or claimed trademark, patent or copyright infringement or litigation based thereon; or for any violation of requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as may be amended, and all rules and regulations issued pursuant thereto (collectively the "ADA") except when such injury, damage, or violation was caused by the sole negligence of the County.

3. INSURANCE:

The Vendor must provide a certificate of insurance and endorsement in accordance with the insurance requirements listed below, prior to recommendation for award.

The Vendor shall obtain and maintain and require any subcontractor to obtain and maintain, at all times during its performance of the Agreement, insurance of the types and in the amounts set forth. For projects with a Completed Operations exposure, Vendor shall maintain coverage and provide evidence of insurance for two (2) years beyond final acceptance. All insurance policies shall be from responsible companies duly authorized to do business in the State of Florida and have an AM Best rating of A- VIII or better.

- A. Submittals should include, the Vendor's current Certificate(s) of Insurance. If Vendor does not currently meet insurance requirements, Vendor shall also include verification from their broker or agent that any required insurance not provided at that time of submittal will be in place prior to the award of contract.
 - Upon selection of Vendor for award, the selected Vendor shall email certificate that is compliant with the insurance requirements. If the certificate received is compliant, no further action may be necessary. The Certificate(s) of Insurance shall be signed by authorized representatives of the insurance companies shown on the Certificate(s). The Certificate holder section shall indicate Pinellas County, a Subdivision of the State of Florida, 400 S Fort Harrison Ave, Clearwater, FL 33756. Pinellas County shall be named as an Additional Insured for General Liability. A Waiver of Subrogation for Workers Compensation shall be provided if Workers Compensation coverage is a requirement.
- B. Approval by the County of any Certificate(s) of Insurance does not constitute verification by the County that the insurance requirements have been satisfied or that the insurance policy shown on the Certificate(s) of Insurance is in compliance with the requirements of the Agreement. The County reserves the right to require a certified copy of the entire insurance policy, including endorsement(s), at any time during the RFP and/or contract period.
- C. If any insurance provided pursuant to the Agreement expires or cancels prior to the completion of the work you will be notified by CTrax, the authorized Vendor of Pinellas County. Upon notification, renewal certificate(s) of Insurance and endorsement(s) should be furnished to Pinellas County Risk Management at InsuranceCerts@pinellascounty.org and to CTrax c/o JDi Data at PinellasSupport@jdidata.com by the Vendor or their agent prior to the expiration date.

- 1) The Vendor shall also notify the County within twenty-four (72) hours after receipt, of any notices of expiration, cancellation, nonrenewal or adverse material change in coverage received by said Vendor from its insurer. Notice shall be given by email to Pinellas County Risk Management at InsuranceCerts@pinellascounty.org. Nothing contained herein shall absolve Vendor of this requirement to provide notice.
- 2) Should the Vendor, at any time, not maintain the insurance coverages required herein, the County may terminate the Agreement.
- D. If subcontracting is allowed under this RFP, the Primary Vendor shall obtain and maintain, at all times during its performance of the Agreement, insurance of the types and in the amounts set forth; and require any Subcontractors to obtain and maintain, at all times during its performance of the Agreement, insurance limits as it may apply to the portion of the Work performed by the Subcontractor; but in no event will the insurance limits be less than \$500,000 for Workers' Compensation/Employers' Liability, and \$1,000,000 for General Liability and Auto Liability if required below.

All subcontracts between the Vendor and its Subcontractors shall be in writing and are subject to the County's prior written approval. Further, all subcontracts shall

- Require each Subcontractor to be bound to the Vendor to the same extent the Vendor is bound to the County by the terms of the Contract Documents, as those terms may apply to the portion of the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor;
- 2) Provide for the assignment of the subcontracts from the Vendor to the County at the election of Owner upon termination of the Contract;
- 3) Provide that County will be an additional indemnified party of the subcontract;
- 4) Provide that the County will be an additional insured on all insurance policies required to be provided by the Subcontractor except workers compensation and professional liability:
- 5) Provide a waiver of subrogation in favor of the County and other insurance terms and/or conditions as outlined below;
- 6) Assign all warranties directly to the County; and
- 7) Identify the County as an intended third-party beneficiary of the subcontract. The Vendor shall make available to each proposed Subcontractor, prior to the execution of the subcontract, copies of the Contract Documents to which the Subcontractor will be bound by this Section C and identify to the Subcontractor any terms and conditions of the proposed subcontract which may be at variance with the Contract Documents.
- E. Each insurance policy and/or certificate shall include the following terms and/or conditions:
 - 1) The Named Insured on the Certificate of Insurance and insurance policy must match the entity's name that responded to the solicitation and/or is signing the agreement with the County.
 - 2) Companies issuing the insurance policy, or policies, shall have no recourse against County for payment of premiums or assessments for any deductibles which all are at the sole responsibility and risk of Vendor.
 - 3) The term "County" or "Pinellas County" shall include all Authorities, Boards, Bureaus, Commissions, Divisions, Departments and Constitutional offices of County and individual members, employees thereof in their official capacities, and/or while acting on behalf of Pinellas County.
 - 4) All policies shall be written on a primary, non-contributory basis.

The minimum insurance requirements and limits for this Agreement, which shall remain in effect throughout its duration and for two (2) years beyond final acceptance for projects with a Completed Operations exposure, are as follows:

1) **Workers' Compensation Insurance:** Worker's Compensation Insurance is required if required pursuant to Florida law. If, pursuant to Florida law, Worker's Compensation Insurance is required, employer's liability, also known as Worker's Compensation Part B, is also required in the amounts set forth herein

Limits

Employers' Liability Limits Florida Statutory

Per Employee \$500,000
Per Employee Disease \$500,000
Policy Limit Disease \$500,000

If Vendor/Contractor is not required by Florida law, to carry Workers Compensation Insurance in order to perform the requirements of this Agreement, County Waiver Form for workers compensation must be executed, submitted, and accepted by Risk Management. Failure to obtain required Worker's Compensation Insurance without submitting and receiving a waiver from Risk Management constitutes a material breach of this Agreement.

2) **Commercial General Liability Insurance:** including, but not limited to, Independent Vendor, Contractual Liability Premises/Operations, Products/Completed Operations, and Personal Injury. No exclusions for physical abuse or sexual molestation.

Limits

Each Occurrence or Claim \$ 1,000,000

General Aggregate \$ 2,000,000

For acceptance of Professional Liability coverage included within another policy required herein, a statement notifying the certificate holder must be included on the certificate of insurance and the total amount of said coverage per occurrence must be greater than or equal to the amount of Professional Liability and other coverage combined.

3) Business Automobile or Trucker's/Garage Liability Insurance covering owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles. If the Consultant does not own any vehicles, then evidence of Hired and Non-owned coverage is sufficient. Coverage shall be on an "occurrence" basis, such insurance to include coverage for loading and unloading hazards, unless Consultant can show that this coverage exists under the Commercial General Liability policy.

Limit

Combined Single Limit Per Accident

\$1,000,000

4) **Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) Insurance** with at least minimum limits as follows. If "claims made" coverage is provided, "tail coverage" extending three (3) years beyond completion and acceptance of the project with proof of "tail coverage" to be submitted with the invoice for final payment. In lieu of "tail coverage", Proposer may submit annually to the County, for a three (3) year period, a current certificate of insurance providing "claims made" insurance with prior acts coverage in force with a retroactive date no later than commencement date of this contract.

Limits

Each Occurrence or Claim \$ 1,000,000

General Aggregate \$1,000,000

For acceptance of Professional Liability coverage included within another policy required herein, a statement notifying the certificate holder must be included on the certificate of insurance and the total amount of said coverage per occurrence must be greater than or equal to the amount of Professional Liability and other coverage combined.

5) Cyber Risk Liability (Network Security/Privacy Liability) Insurance including cloud computing and mobile devices, for protection of private or confidential information whether electronic or non-electronic, network security and privacy; privacy against liability for system attacks, digital asset loss, denial or loss of service, introduction, implantation or spread of malicious software code, security breach, unauthorized access and use; including regulatory action expenses; and notification and credit monitoring expenses with at least minimum limits as follows:

Limits

Each Occurrence \$1,000,000

General Aggregate \$ 1,000,000

For acceptance of Cyber Risk Liability coverage included within another policy required herein, a statement notifying the certificate holder must be included on the certificate of insurance and the total amount of said coverage per occurrence must be greater than or equal to the amount of Cyber Risk Liability and other coverage combined.

6) **Property Insurance:** Vendor will be responsible for all damage to its own property, equipment and/or materials.

<u>SECTION D – CONTRACTOR REFERENCES</u>

THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION IS REQUIRED IN ORDER THAT YOUR PROPOSAL MAY BE REVIEWED AND PROPERLY EVALUATED. COMPANY NAME: LENGTH OF TIME COMPANY HAS BEEN IN BUSINESS: BUSINESS ADDRESS: HOW LONG IN PRESENT LOCATION: TELEPHONE NUMBER: FAX NUMBER: TOTAL NUMBER OF CURRENT EMPLOYEES: FULL TIME PART TIME NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES YOU PLAN TO USE TO SERVICE THIS CONTRACT: All references will be contacted by a County Designee via email, fax or phone call to obtain answers to questions, as applicable before an evaluation decision is made. Bidders must have experience in work of the same or similar nature, and must provide references that will satisfy the County. Proposer must furnish a reference list of at least four (4) customers for whom they have performed similar services. EITHER LOCAL COMMERCIAL OR GOVERNMENTAL REFERENCE(S) (PINELLAS COUNTY GOVERNMENT REFERENCES WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED) THAT YOU HAVE PREVIOUSLY PERFORMED SIMILAR CONTRACT SERVICES FOR: 2. 1. COMPANY: COMPANY: ADDRESS: ADDRESS: TELEPHONE/FAX: TELEPHONE/FAX: CONTACT: CONTACT: CONTACT EMAIL: CONTACT EMAIL: **COMPANY EMAIL ADDRESS:** COMPANY EMAIL ADDRESS: 3. COMPANY: COMPANY: ADDRESS: ADDRESS: TELEPHONE/FAX: TELEPHONE/FAX: CONTACT: CONTACT: CONTACT EMAIL: CONTACT EMAIL: **COMPANY EMAIL ADDRESS:** COMPANY EMAIL ADDRESS:

SECTION E – SCOPE OF WORK

A. OBJECTIVE:

Pinellas County (County) seeks to establish contract(s) for Drug Court Treatment Services for County residents within service groups outlined below. Conduction of all services must be in accordance with Chapter 65D-30, Florida Administrative Code, known as the Substance Abuse Standards. It is the desire of the County to utilize geographically diverse organizations with locations throughout the county, and multiple vendors may be considered to ensure capacity, geographic availability, and adult drug court need. Only proposals from vendors located within Pinellas County will be considered.

ATTACHMENT 1

Page 46 of 172

Vendors may propose for each of the 5 Groupings listed below or may choose to propose for specific Groups for consideration in their response. Please note that vendors proposing to provide outpatient treatment listed in Group 2 and 3 below must respond to both groups and must be willing to provide both the Outpatient Level II and Level III services in accordance with this solicitation. The County, in coordination with the Sixth Judicial Circuit Court, may select one or more vendors for service delivery under each of the proposed groupings. Vendors must indicate that they are willing and able to deliver services for Division N and Z as described below. Please note that the County may require a single agreement with a vendor or may break out the awarded services into 2 agreements to ensure effective delivery of services under Division N and Division Z.

Group 1 - Residential Drug Court Treatment Services

Group 2 - Outpatient Level II services for Adult Drug Court

Group 3 - Outpatient Level III services for Adult Drug Court

Group 4 – Substance Abuse/Mental Health Screening Assessments

Group 5 - Transitional Housing

B. BACKGROUND:

The Sixth Judicial Circuit (Court) Adult Drug Court (ADC) program originally operated as an eighteen (18) to twenty-four (24) month, Court-supervised comprehensive treatment for non-violent felony offenders participating the ADC program, known as Division N. In 2001, the ADC was expanded to serve otherwise prison-bound defendants (those scoring prison time), known as Division Z. Both Division N and Z are operated by the Sixth Judicial Circuit serving Pinellas County.

The ADC is a voluntary program involving regular court appearances before a Drug Court judge. The Court exists to provide Drug Court participants the opportunity to avoid a prison sentence by becoming productive, drug-free members of the community. The treatment-based approach begins with an eligible defendant receiving a substance abuse assessment administered by a licensed treatment provider. Following the substance abuse evaluation and based upon the result, the licensed and certified assessor will make a treatment recommendation to the Court.

Frequent judicial review hearings enable the Court to closely monitor a participant's progress in treatment and results of frequent random drug testing. Participants report directly to the Drug Court judge at these hearings, and based upon success or setbacks, the Drug Court judge either rewards compliance or sanctions non-compliance.

Link to information website: http://www.jud6.org/contactinformation/adultdrugcourt.html

C. REQUIREMENTS:

- 1. The Proposer must be incorporated for at least one (1) year in the State of Florida and provide proof of current status with the State of Florida as a licensed for or non-profit organization.
- 2. The Proposer and the County shall work cooperatively to ensure service delivery is in complete compliance with all such mandates and requirements. All services provided under this contract must meet all applicable local, state and federal ordinances, laws, rules and regulations and any applicable court orders. Should any of the laws, standards, rules or regulations or department procedures change during the course of the contract term, the updated version will take precedence.
- **3.** The Proposer shall ensure that all substance abuse treatment services provided are in accordance with Chapter 397, F.S. Rule 65D-30, Florida Administrative Code (FAC) and all updates, and Code of Federal Regulation 42, Part 2.
- **4.** The Proposer shall provide substance abuse treatment, drug testing, or ancillary services for adult offenders eligible for the Drug Court Expansion Program pursuant to Sections 397.334, 948.01, and 948.06, Florida Statutes, Sixth Judicial Circuit Administrative Order 2016-011 PI_CIR, and any subsequent Administrative Orders. The services under this agreement may be provided by a single Proposer or by multiple Proposers.
- 5. The Proposer shall have and maintain the level of licensure appropriate to the program type and as specified by Rule 65D-30, FAC and all updates and revisions. Licensure shall be current at all times and prominently displayed at the program site (Chapter 397.401 Florida Statutes, Rule 65D-30 FAC). The Proposer shall pay for all costs associated with local, state and federal licenses, permits and inspection fees required to provide services. The County must be provided with a copy of all licenses. The Proposer will notify the County immediately of any changes to the licensing status. A copy of the Department of Children and Family licensing inspection report must be provided to the County.
- **6.** All substance abuse treatment services shall be provided under the supervision of a "qualified professional" as defined in Chapter 397 Florida Statutes, and Rule 65D-30 FAC. Proposer shall provide an adequate level of professional treatment staff for required services and shall ensure that staff are appropriately trained. The Proposer shall ensure the constant presence of sufficient staff and treatment space to provide the required services.
- 7. The Proposer agrees to share data as outlined in the Data Sharing Agreement (Attachment A) and provide program and other information in electronic format to the Pinellas County Mental Health and Substance Abuse Data Collaborative for the purpose of research and policy development.
- 8. The Proposer agrees to sign a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement (Attachment B).
- **9.** Standard Services Agreement The awarded contractor(s) will be required to execute the attached standard services agreement. No exceptions to the standard services agreement will be executed.

D. BACKGROUND CHECKS:

Proposers agree that the Court requires criminal history records checks on any Proposer staff, employees, or subcontractor staff that has access to confidential information, resources, or facilities operated in whole, or in part, with funding from this agreement unless formally waived, in writing, by the Court's contract manager. The cost of performing the criminal history records checks is an allowable expense under this agreement, if the Proposer is not already required to pay for criminal records check as part of its normal operations.

The criminal history records check must be completed in accordance with Sections 394.4572, 408.809 and 435.12, Florida Statutes, within thirty (30) calendar days after the start of employment. A letter certifying that no disqualifying crimes were identified must be submitted to the Court's contract manager. If the Proposer adds additional employees during the term of the agreement, the names of those staff, employees or subcontractor staff must be provided to the Court's contract manager within seven (7) days of beginning work. The Proposer shall resubmit updated Criminal History Records Checks certification letters every five (5) years from the prior criminal history records check as long as the agreement is in force.

If any disqualifying crimes are present on the record, the Proposer agrees to remove the employee from the worksite, terminate the employee's access to confidential information resources, participants, and the participant's family members, and ban the employee from working on services under this contract.

During the term of the agreement, the Proposer shall report, in writing, to the Court's contract manager, the arrest, charge or Notice to Appear for an alleged commission of a disqualifying crime in any state or other jurisdiction for any Proposer's staff, employee or subcontractor assigned to this agreement within one (1) business day of Proposer's knowledge. The notice shall include the County's name, the staff member's name and the location and nature of the alleged violation. The Court reserves the right to require the Proposer to immediately suspend or terminate the staff member's work under this agreement and access to confidential information obtained or maintained under this agreement. The Proposer shall notify the Court within ten (10) calendar days of case disposition.

E. SCOPE OF WORK:

- 1. <u>Target Population:</u> The target population for this program is non-violent felony drug offenders.
 - a) Proposer must demonstrate at least one (1) year of experience providing service to the Target Population.
 - b) Proposer must describe relevant experience with similar projects/Target Population.
 - c) Proposer must describe agency's criminal justice service experience.
 - d) Proposer must describe community resources used in meeting the needs of the Target Population.

2. Services to be Performed:

a) Group 1 – Residential Drug Court Treatment Services
 Proposer will provide a variable length (8-18 months), two-part residential drug treatment service for each defendant in Adult Drug Court, as referred by the Court. All services will be provided in accordance with

Chapter 65D-30, Florida Administrative Code.

Part 1:

- Two (2) months of intensive drug treatment, wherein the participant remains at the facility twentyfour (24) hours per day;
- ii. At least ten (10) hours of treatment per week; and
- iii. At least one (1) individual and three (3) group counseling sessions per week.

Part 2:

- i. Four (4) months of employment/re-entry treatment and training where the participant resides at the facility. The participant must leave the facility for full-time employment but is required to return each evening for additional services.
- ii. At least six (6) hours of treatment per week; and
- iii. At least one (1) individual counseling session and two (2) group sessions per week.

Throughout the program:

- iv. Frequent random drug testing using either urine drug screenings or oral swab screens at a minimum of once a week for multiple drugs during the course of treatment, and up to twenty-six weeks thereafter on a frequency basis as ordered by the Court.
- v. Provide consultation or referral arrangements for any mental health, medical or other social service needs, as deemed appropriate.
- vi. Provide means of transportation to bring offenders to Court as needed; and

After the treatment program:

vii. Provide aftercare counseling sessions as needed for clients completing active residential treatment for up to an additional twelve (12) weeks.

Proposer is to provide the Adult Drug Court with the following:

- Notification of client's arrival for screening process inclusive of client's acceptance or nonacceptance into treatment setting.
- ii. Notification of treatment start date.
- iii. Evaluation recommendations.
- iv. Reports for judicial reviews no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to a regularly scheduled judicial review hearing (including attendance, UDS results, treatment progress reports). Reports will be electronically submitted to the Drug Court via secure connections, which can include direct submission through the Drug Court's web-based Drug Court case management system.
- v. Immediate notification of termination, discharge or elopements.
- vi. Immediate notification of violation of terms of treatment (i.e., failed drug screens, missed treatment appointments, etc);
- vii. Immediate notification of hospitalization or significant disruption of treatment process.
- viii. Discharge information will be supplied to the Court, and a copy will be forwarded to the Department of Corrections.
- ix. Court appearances by the Proposer will be made as required by the Court;
- Client-related data and status information will be provided in a manner and in a format as required by the Court. This format may include electronic data submission meeting Courtdetermined specifications; and
- xi. Weekly written reports to the Court on treatment availability status and size of wait lists.

b) Group 2 - Outpatient Level II Services for Drug Court:

Proposer will provide Outpatient Level II drug treatment services for defendants in Adult Drug Court, as directed by the Court.

All services will be provided in accordance with Chapter 65D-30, Florida Administrative Code. In addition to the standards proscribed in 65D-30.010(1), each defendant/respondent will be provided with counseling services that are consistent with Drug Court Level II outpatient treatment. The following required services exceed the standards for outpatient treatment as defined in 65D-30.010(1).

The following services will be provided to defendants and respondents within fourteen (14) days of receipt of Court referral:

- <u>i.</u> Services will be offered in both North and South Pinellas County.
- ii. Group counseling services will be available day and night.
- iii. Group counseling will be offered two (2) hours daily, twice weekly for a minimum of twelve (12) weeks.
- <u>iv.</u> Screenings, assessments and subsequent recommendations, if any, will be provided to the Court.
- <u>v.</u> Individual treatment and discharge planning will be made within thirty (30) days of referral by the Court. Treatment evaluations will be made every thirty (30) days.
- vi. Random urine drug screenings or oral swab drug screenings will be given on a random basis at least weekly for multiple drugs during the course of treatment and up to twelve (12) weeks thereafter on a frequency basis as ordered by the Court. Consultation or referral arrangements will be made where psychiatric, medical or other social services are deemed appropriate.
- vii. Participation by clients in community self-help groups such as NA or AA will be encouraged. Attendance at these meetings shall not, however, constitute part of the requirement for substance abuse counseling; and
- viii. Counseling groups will be no larger than twenty (20) persons per group.

Proposer is to provide the Adult Drug Court with the following:

- Notification of client's arrival for screening process inclusive of client's acceptance or nonacceptance into treatment setting.
- ii. Notification of treatment start date.
- iii. Evaluation recommendations.
- iv. Reports for judicial reviews no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to a regularly scheduled judicial review hearing (including attendance, UDS results, treatment progress reports). Reports will be electronically submitted to the Drug Court via secure connections, which can include direct submission through the Drug Court's web-based Drug Court case management system.
- v. Immediate notification of termination, discharge or elopements.
- vi. Immediate notification of violation of terms of treatment (i.e., failed drug screens, missed treatment appointments, etc.);
- vii. Immediate notification of hospitalization or significant disruption of treatment process.
- viii. Discharge information will be supplied to the Court, and a copy will be forwarded to the Department of Corrections.
- ix. Court appearances by the Proposer will be made as required by the Court.
- x. Client-related data and status information will be provided in a manner and in a format as required by the Court. This format may include electronic data submission meeting Court-determined specifications; and
- xi. Weekly written reports to the Court on treatment availability status and size of wait lists.

c) Group 3 – Outpatient Level III Services for Drug Court:

Proposer will provide Outpatient Level III drug treatment services for defendants in Adult Drug Court, as directed by the Court.

All services will be provided in accordance with Chapter 65D-30, Florida Administrative Code. In addition to the standards proscribed in 65D-30.010(1), each defendant/respondent will be provided with counseling services that are consistent with Drug Court Level II outpatient treatment. The following required services exceed the standards for outpatient treatment as defined in 65D-30.010(1).

The following services will be provided to defendants and respondents within fourteen (14) days of receipt of Court referral:

- <u>i.</u> Services will be offered in both North and South Pinellas County.
- <u>ii.</u> Group counseling services will be available day and night.
- iii. Group counseling will be offered two (2) hours daily, twice weekly for a minimum of twelve (12) weeks.
- <u>iv.</u> Screenings, assessments and subsequent recommendations, if any, will be provided to the Court:
- <u>v.</u> Individual treatment and discharge planning will be made within thirty (30) days of referral by the Court. Treatment evaluations will be made every thirty (30) days.
- vi. Random urine drug screenings or oral swab drug screenings will be given on a random basis at least weekly for multiple drugs during the course of treatment and up to twelve (12) weeks thereafter on a frequency basis as ordered by the Court;
- <u>vii.</u> Consultation or referral arrangements will be made where psychiatric, medical or other social services are deemed appropriate.
- <u>viii.</u> Participation by clients in community self-help groups such as NA or AA will be encouraged. Attendance at these meetings shall not, however, constitute part of the requirement for substance abuse counseling; and
- <u>ix.</u> Counseling groups will be no larger than twenty (20) persons per group.

Proposer is to provide the Adult Drug Court with the following:

- Notification of client's arrival for screening process inclusive of client's acceptance or nonacceptance into treatment setting.
- ii. Notification of treatment start date.
- iii. Evaluation recommendations.
- iv. Reports for judicial reviews **no later than forty-eight (48) hours** prior to a regularly scheduled judicial review hearing (including attendance, UDS results, treatment progress reports). Reports will be electronically submitted to the Drug Court via secure connections, which can include direct submission through the Drug Court's web-based Drug Court case management system;
- v. Immediate notification of termination, discharge or elopements.
- vi. Immediate notification of violation of terms of treatment (i.e., failed drug screens, missed treatment appointments, etc);
- vii. Immediate notification of hospitalization or significant disruption of treatment process;
- viii. Discharge information will be supplied to the Court, and a copy will be forwarded to the Department of Corrections.
- ix. Court appearances by the Proposer will be made as required by the Court.
- x. Client-related data and status information will be provided in a manner and in a format as required by the Court. This format may include electronic data submission meeting Court-determined specifications; and
- xi. Weekly written reports to the Court on treatment availability status and size of wait lists.

d) Group 4 – Substance Abuse/Mental Health Screening Assessments:

- i. Perform short (30-45 minute) assessments per month of Drug Court clients and prospective Drug Court clients who are not represented by private counsel.
- ii. Assessments will be performed in person for out-of-custody clients at a provider location or in-custody at the Pinellas County Jail (proper security clearance for access to the jail required):
- iii. Assessment tool must be an evidence-based tool which looks at drug use severity and identified major mental health problems, motivation for treatment, and criminal thinking patterns; Part of the assessment process may involve conducting a drug screen.
- iv. Proposer must demonstrate staff qualifications for the administration of the chosen instruments. Please provide with your proposal a list of relevant qualifications for all staff members who will administer the tool.
- v. The assessment tool should produce a concise report that will help the Court determine proper treatment considerations, including recommended drug treatment level and recommended ancillary services;
- vi. Reports will be electronically submitted to the Drug Court via secure connections, which can include direct submission through the Drug Court's web-based Drug Court case management system;
- vii. Reports must be timely submitted three (3) weeks from time of referral or seven (7) days prior to the next scheduled court date, whichever is sooner;
- viii. Proposer must provide available appointment slots for arraignment/pretrial hearings so that defendants can be assigned assessment appointments;
- ix. Copayments, or fees paid directly to the provider by the defendants to be assessed can be proposed for each scheduled assessment appointment that is not cancelled with at least forty-eight (48) hour notice; and
- x. Copayments may be charged in advance of all out-of-custody assessments. Advance collection of copayments for defendants in custody may not be possible, and the Adult Drug Court will offer some assistance in collecting these copayments at later phases of Drug Court for all defendants remaining in Drug Court who have not yet remitted these copayments. However, some copayments must be assumed to be uncollectible in pricing these services.

e) Group 5 - Transitional Housing:

Proposer will provide transitional housing to eligible Division N or Z Drug Court defendants.

- i. Staff is to be on call twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week.
- ii. Staff must be onsite and have contact with each participant at least once per week. Multiple visits may be required until all residents are contacted.
- iii. Proposer program staff will conduct face-to-face visits with eligible adult Drug Court defendants for screening/assessment, coordination of services, client registration and follow-up.
- iv. Proposer program staff will coordinate services with Non-Adjudicatory Adult Drug Court Expansion partners to meet the needs of participating Drug Court defendants throughout Pinellas County, Florida.
 - v. Client-related data and status information will be provided in a manner and in a format as required by the Court. This format may include electronic data submission meeting court-determined specifications.
- vi. Proposer shall notify Adult Drug Court of service termination no later than the next drug court judicial review hearing; and
- vii. Frequent communication with Court staff regarding transitional housing bed availability and wait lists.
- viii. Court appearances by the Proposer shall be made as required by the court.

3. Approach (Best Practices, Models, Timeline):

- a) Proposer must describe processes and procedures for delivering services as part of a court-related treatment program.
 - i. Proposer must describe how the agency plans to work within the court environment and culture, including but not limited to, how the agency envisions working with the court personnel (including the Judge, attorneys, and the Court Program Manager).
 - ii. Proposer must demonstrate ability to collaborate with local service delivery partners and other community organizations including crisis stabilization units and the county jail. Describe previous and current collaborations as appropriate.
- b) Proposer must describe best/evidence-based practices to be utilized in delivering the services as outlined in this Scope of Work Section E(2) Services to be Performed.
- c) Proposer must describe approach to providing individual and group treatment modalities.
- d) Proposer must describe how the proposed model and services will achieve treatment results.
- e) Proposer must develop and continually adapt the method and mechanisms for reviewing and providing treatment modalities.
- f) Proposer must describe efforts to outreach to and engage referred clients.
- g) Proposer must describe any connection to post-program services and treatment, and costs or barriers to a client's continued success.
- h) Proposer must discuss potential barriers and established resources and strategies to overcome.
- i) Proposer must be willing to travel to off-site locations such as for court appearances, and for assessment services, have the capacity to conduct assessments remotely such as at the Pinellas County jail, as necessary.
- j) The facility service location must meet all state, county and city zoning, permitting and licensing at the time of contract award, as well as any other requirements necessary to operate the service location. The Proposer must provide such documentation to the County as requested. Location of the facility should promote client accessibility, such as reasonable access to public transportation or the courts.
- k) Proposer must provide foreign language interpreters in order to effectively communicate with clients during the delivery of contracted services, as necessary.
- Any proposed treatment copayments or fees incurred by the client while participating in the treatment program must be fully disclosed to the offender during orientation. All fees for which the Proposer will request reimbursement from the client must be approved, in advance, by the County and deducted from the project costs from which the Proposer requests County contract reimbursement. Proposer will provide a receipt to the client for each payment made. The Adult Drug Court does not enforce the collection of provider copayments.

- m) The Court will order appropriate treatment and Drug Court staff will contact the Proposer, or the client will be given pre-set Proposer orientation appointment information. Treatment must be made available within fourteen (14) days of referral by the Drug Court.
- n) Proposer must describe staffing plan and program strategy, including the responsibilities and qualifications for person(s) who will provide services under the program.
 - i. Describe staff-to-client ratio (excluding any applicable administrative personnel).
 - ii. Provide an organizational chart showing which individuals will be providing services for the Adult Drug Court.
 - iii. Hire, onboard and staff within 45 days of the contract award in a competitive labor market.
- o) Proposer must demonstrate the ability and process to track staff time and resources dedicated to a state grant, including accounting of program generated income.
- p) Proposer must describe systems in place to collect, store, and securely report required data, including client-level data, in a timely manner to the County to ensure submission of all grant reports by the stated due dates.
- q) Proposer must describe how services and outcomes (short-term, intermediate, and long-term) will be collected, monitored, and evaluated.

4. Program Oversight and Administration:

- a) The contract will be administered by Human Services. However, the proposer awarded the contract will work with Human Services and any partnering funders to coordinate services among service providers, enhance service delivery, address issues that arise within the program.
- b) The awarded proposer will attend programmatic and contractual meetings no less than monthly.
- c) Proposer should demonstrate quality assurance efforts which will support the efficiency and fidelity of the program.

5. Performance Requirements for All Groups:

a) Program Monitoring

Program Monitoring will occur at intervals as determined by the County. Program monitoring will determine program compliance or non-compliance, and will consist of (but not be limited to) reviews of the following program functions:

- i.Administrative issues
- ii. Program facilities
- iii. Program staff
- iv. Program operation
- v. Clinical records review
- vi. Interviews with program staff/clients

When issues of non-compliance are identified, the Proposer will be required to submit a written corrective action plan (CAP) to the County within a specified timeframe. Failure to correct deficiencies may result in a determination of breach of contract and termination of services.

b) <u>Financial Consequences for Division Z- funded services ONLY as a State issued grant award for services:</u>

The County may impose the following financial penalties on the Proposer if the Proposer does not meet the relevant performance standard, including:

- i. Housing that does not meet the standards set by Rule 65D-30, Florida Statutes, will be considered a material breach of the obligation to provide residential treatment services. The County may refuse to pay any invoices for the residential treatment services that do not meet the standards until the breach is cured, cancel the contract with the Proposer and find a new provider, or both.
- ii. If Proposer does not timely notify the Adult Drug Court of any of the events for which notice is required herein, the invoice reimbursement may be reduced by \$25.00 for each day notification is late.
- iii. If Proposer fails to make a required Court appearance, the invoice reimbursement may be reduced by \$25.00 for each appearance missed.

- iv. If client-related data and status information is not available in the required format, the invoice reimbursement may be reduced by \$25.00 for each day data is unavailable.
- v. If Proposer does not timely provide a weekly report to the Court on treatment availability, the invoice reimbursement may be reduced by \$50.00 for each missed report.
- vi. For Outpatient Drug Court Treatment Services: outpatient and medical services appointments not scheduled within seven (7) business days of the completion of the individual treatment plan may result in a reduction in the amount equal to \$25.00 for each Participant not scheduled from the invoice reimbursement.
- vii. For Transitional Housing: each instance that a staff member cannot be reached within two (2) hours of a call may result in a \$25.00 assessment against the invoice reimbursement, up to a maximum of \$500.00 per day.
- viii. For Transitional Housing: each day that Provider is late providing notification of termination or communication with Court staff regarding bed availability, \$25.00 may be deducted from the invoice reimbursement.
- ix. For Mental Health/Substance Abuse Assessments: If any assessment reports are not submitted within three (3) weeks of referral or seven (7) days before the next scheduled Court date, whichever is sooner, \$50.00 may be reduced from the invoice reimbursement.

F. **EVALUATION CRITERIA**:

Listed below are the criteria that will be used by the County to evaluate and score responsive proposals. Proposers shall include sufficient information to allow the County to thoroughly evaluate and score their proposals. Each proposal submitted shall be evaluated and ranked by an evaluation committee. The contract will be awarded to the most qualified proposer, per the following evaluation criteria:

1. Qualifications (100 Points)

A separate statement describing the Proposer's qualifications and experience in providing the same or similar services as outlined in the RFP Scope of Work. This description should include the names of the person(s) who will provide the services, including any subcontractors, their qualifications, and the years of experience in performing this type of work/services.

a) Provide an attestation agreeing to the minimum qualifications with brief description as necessary to demonstrate compliance for each requirement as described in Section C.

2. Experience with Target Population (150 Points)

A separate statement describing the Proposer's qualifications and experience in providing the same or similar services as outlined in the RFP Scope of Work, Section E(1) Target Population. The evaluation committee will evaluate the experience the proposer has had working with the targeted population. Detail of the Proposer's experience that meets this requirement should be provided in narrative form and in sufficient detail, so the evaluation committee is able to judge its complexity and relevance. Where possible, this should include case studies detailed previous or current programs providing the same or similar services, and the number of years of experience in providing the same or similar services. The evaluation criteria for this area includes, but is not limited to:

- a) Years of experience and success in serving the target population in Pinellas County.
- b) Proposer's explanation of the issues and barriers regularly impacting the target population and affecting the success of delivered services. Please include potential methods to address the issues in a coordinated manner.

3. Approach (250 Points)

A separate written narrative describing the methods and/or manner in which the Proposer proposes to satisfy the requirements of the Scope of Work.

a) Proposer's experience, knowledge, ability, and approach/rationale to meet each item enumerated in this Scope of Work, Section E(3), Approach. Including reference to existing programs, policies, collaborations, trainings, and technologies as appropriate to demonstrate qualifications.

4. Statement of Work (250 Points)

A separate proposed Statement of Work that enumerates and defines the work/services that Proposer will provide to the County to complete the Scope of Work in this RFP, including each task, deliverable, and/or goods or products comprising the services Proposer will provide, as well as a proposed completion schedule for each task or deliverable, if applicable. The Proposer's Statement of Work shall be in a form that can be incorporated into the Services Agreement at the County's option.

The evaluation criteria for this area includes, but is not limited to:

- a) Addressing each item enumerated in the Scope of Work Sections E(2) Services to be Performed, E(4)) Program Oversight and Administration, and E(5) Performance Requirements for All Groups, including process, ability, and rationale for approach.
- b) Demonstrate the Proposer's ability to overcome barriers and adjust process to meet needs of community and target population.

5. Compensation (100 Points)

The proposed compensation to be paid by the County for the services identified in the Statement of Work, including the methodology for determining the compensation. Unless the method of compensating Proposer for the services is otherwise specified in Section B, paragraph 5, Proposer shall specify the cost as presented in Section F – Proposal Summary.

6. No Exceptions to RFP (50 Points)

Proposer is advised that exceptions to any terms and conditions contained in this RFP or the Services Agreement must be stated with specificity in its response to the RFP. The points available under this criterion will be deducted if the Proposer takes exception to any language to this RFP package. Failure to provide exceptions with the submittal shall result in the mandatory acceptance of the agreement as submitted herein by default. Exceptions must be submitted on a separate sheet titled exceptions.

G. ITEMS TO BE RETURNED WITH PROPOSAL:

Proposal Organization: Proposers are expected to organize their proposals in such a manner as to facilitate the evaluation process. Proposals should be keyed or indexed to correspond with this Request for Proposal. Responses should be correlated to the specific submittal, Criterion, section or paragraph number of the request for proposal being addressed. Evaluators will make a reasonable effort to locate information in the proposals; however failure to follow this suggested format may make location of critical submittal information difficult, possibly resulting in a loss of appropriate point credit.

a)	Page 1	Proposal Signature Page
b)	Section B	Item 2 Proposal Requirements
c)	Section B	Proposal Submittal Copies
d)	Section D	Vendor References
e)	Section E	Proposal Submittal
f)	Section F	ePayables Form
g)	Section F	Fee Schedule
h)	Section F	W-9 Form
i)	Section G	Addendum Acknowledgement Form (If Applicable)
j)	Section H	Statement of No Submittal (If Applicable)
k)	Appendix 1	E-Verify Affidavit
l)	Agreement	Signed Sample Agreement in acknowledgement of County Terms and Conditions

SECTION F - PROPOSAL SUMMARY

Proposal Title: ADULT DRUG COURT TREATMENT - DIVISIONS N and Z

Proposal Number: 22-0371-P(LN)

Pricing is to be ALL INCLUSIVE of all requirements for services as specified in the Scope of Work, including, but not limited to:

- Compensation for all standard day-to-day administration
- Reporting
- Court Appearances
- Communications with the County or Court
- Overhead and internal expenses, including:
 - administrative support
 - office supplies
 - consumables
 - other consulting services
 - special presentations
 - regular and certified postage
 - travel

- computer/software usage
- telephone charges
- e-mails
- electronic data transmission fees
- standard copier usage
- fax charges

GROU P	DESCRIPTION	UNIT COST	
1	Residential Drug Court Treatment Services	\$	Per Bed Per Day
	Aftercare Counseling Sessions	\$	Optional Services- Per Counseling Session
2	Outpatient Level II Services for Drug Court	\$	Per counseling session with requisite drug screening and ALL-INCLUSIVE services
		\$	Optional Services - Per post-treatment drug screen as ordered
3	Outpatient Level III Services for Drug Court	\$	Per counseling session with requisite drug screening and ALL-INCLUSIVE services
		\$	Optional Services - Per post-treatment drug screen as ordered
4	Substance Abuse / Mental Health Screening Assessments	\$	Per Assessment
5	Transitional Housing	\$	Per Bed Day

OPTIONAL SERVICES WILL NOT BE USED IN COMPENSATION SCORING

Note: The referrals to different types of services may vary based on the needs of each client.

^{*}Referral level of clients may fluctuate.

RFP #22-0317-P(LN)
RFP TITLE: Adult Drug Court Treatment - Division N and Z

Company Name

ATTACHMENT 1 Page 58 of 172

DELIVERY DAYS AFTER RECEIPT OF ORDER	
An award may not be issued without proof that your firm is registered with the Florida Division of Corporations, as per Florida Statute §607.1501 www.flsenate.gov/Laws/Statutes/2011/607.1501 .	
A foreign corporation (foreign to the State of Florida) may not transact business in this state until it obtains a certificate authority from the Department of State. Please visit dos.myflorida.com/sunbiz/ for this information on how to become registered.	of
	

ELECTRONIC PAYMENT (EPAYABLES)

The Board of County Commissioners (County) is offering faster payments. The County would prefer to make payment using credit card through the ePayables system. See above.

Would your company accept to participate in the ePayables creates No For more information about ePayables credit card program pleatwww.pinellascounty.org/purchase/	
Company Name	
Signature	
Printed Signature	
Phone Number	
Email	

W-9 REQUEST FOR TAXPAYER ID NUMBER AND CERTIFICATION

*Instructions to form W-9 available upon request

The contractor must complete and submit to the County Form W-9 available: Through the following link:

www.irs.gov/forms-pubs/about-form-w-9

Section 119.071(5), Florida Statutes Notice:

Your Tax Identification Number (which for individuals is your social security number) is collected on Form W9 for use in filing information returns with the IRS as described more fully below. Collection of the Internal Revenue Code (26 U.S.C § 6109).

Privacy Act Notice:

Section 6109 of the Internal Revenue Code requires you to provide your correct TIN to persons who must file information returns with the IRS to report interest, dividends, and certain other income paid to you, mortgage interest you paid, the acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, or contributions you made to an IRA, or Archer MSA or HAS. The IRS may also provide this information to the Department of Justice for civil and criminal litigation, and to cities, states, and District of Columbia, and U.S. possessions to carry out their tax laws. We may also disclose this information to other countries under the tax treaty, to federal and state agencies to enforce federal nontax criminal laws, or to federal law enforcement and intelligence agencies to combat terrorism.

You must provide your TIN whether or not you are required to file a tax return. Payers must generally withhold 28% of taxable interest, dividend, and certain other payments to a payee who does not give a TIN to a payer.

SECTION G - ADDENDUM

PLEASE ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF ADDENDA FOR THIS SOLICITATION BY SIGNING AND DATING BELOW:

ADDENDA NO.	SIGNATURE/PRINTED NAME	DATE RECEIVED

Note: Prior to submitting the response to this solicitation, it is the responsibility of the firm submitting a response to confirm if any addenda have been issued. If such document(s) have been issued, acknowledge receipt by signature and date in section above. Failure to do so may result in response being considered non-responsive or result in lowering the rating of a firm's proposal.

Information regarding addenda issued is available on the Pinellas ePro website, <u>www.ebids.pinellas.gov/bso/</u>, listed under the bid attachments.

SECTION H – STATEMENT OF NO BID

NOTE: If you	u do not intend to bid on this requirement, please compete this form. Thank you.			
We, the unde	ersigned have declined to submit a bid for No. 22-0371-P for Adult Drug Court Treatment - Division N and Z.			
s	Specifications too "tight", i.e., geared toward one brand or manufacturer only (explain below).			
Ir	nsufficient time to respond to the Invitation to Bid.			
V	Ve do not offer this product or service.			
C	Our schedule would not permit us to perform.			
U	Inable to meet specifications.			
U	Inable to meet Bond requirement.			
s	Specifications unclear (explain below).			
U	Unable to Meet Insurance Requirements. Remove Us from Your "Notification List" Altogether			
R				
C	Other (specify below).			
REMARKS:				
	COMPANY NAME:			
	DATE:			
	SIGNATURE:			
	TYPED NAME OF ABOVE:			
	TELEPHONE:			
	FAX:			
	COMPANY EMAIL:			

APPENDIX 1 – E-VERIFY AFFIDAVIT

	[insert contractor company name] does not employ, contract with, nerwise in full compliance with Section 448.095, Florida Statutes.
All employees hired on or after January 1, 2021, have system.	ve had their work authorization status verified through the E-Verify
A true and correct copy of	[insert contractor company name] proof of registration
	Signature:
	Print Name:
	Date:
Federal Work Au	thorization User Identification No.:
Name of Pinellas	County Contract and Contract No.:
STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF	
	me by means of 1) physical presence or 2) online notarization (name of officer or agent, title of
(state or	(name of officer or agent, title of (name of contractor company acknowledging), a place of incorporation) corporation, on behalf of the
corporation. He/she is personally known to me or haidentification) as identification.	as produced (type of
[Notary Seal]	
	Notary Public:
Name typed, p	rinted, or stamped:
My Co	ommission Expires:

SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS SERVICES AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made as of this _____ day of____, 2022 ("Effective Date"), by and between Pinellas County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida ("County"), and____, ___ ("Contractor") (individually, "Party," collectively, "Parties").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the County requested proposals pursuant to 22-0371-P(LN) ("RFP") for Adult Drug Court Treatment – Division N and Z services; and

WHEREAS, based upon the County's assessment of Contractor's proposal, the County selected the Contractor to provide the Services as defined herein; and

WHEREAS, Contractor represents that it has the experience and expertise to perform the Services as set forth in this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals, the mutual covenants, agreements, terms and conditions herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby mutually acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Definitions.

- **A.** "Agreement" means this Agreement, including all Exhibits, which are expressly incorporated herein by reference, and any amendments thereto.
- **B.** "County Confidential Information" means any County information deemed confidential and/or exempt from Section 119.07, Florida Statutes, and Section 24(a), Article 1 of the Florida Constitution, or other applicable law, including, but not limited to, data or information referenced in <u>HIPAA</u>, and any other information designated in writing by the County as County Confidential Information.
- C. "Contractor Confidential Information" means any Contractor information that is designated as confidential and/or exempt by Florida's public records law, including information that constitutes a trade secret pursuant to Chapter 688, Florida Statutes, and is designated in this Agreement or in writing as a trade secret by Contractor (unless otherwise determined to be a public record by applicable Florida law). Notwithstanding the foregoing, Contractor Confidential Information does not include information that: (i) becomes public other than as a result of a disclosure by the County in breach of the Agreement; (ii) becomes available to the County on a non-confidential basis from a source other than Contractor, which is not prohibited from disclosing such information by obligation to Contractor; (iii) is known by the County prior to its receipt from Contractor without any obligation or confidentiality with respect thereto; or (iv) is developed by the County independently of any disclosures made by Contractor.
- **D.** "Contractor Personnel" means all employees of Contractor, and all employees of subcontractors of Contractor, including, but not limited to temporary and/or leased employees, who are providing the Services at any time during the project term.
- E. "Services" means the work, duties and obligations to be carried out and performed safely by Contractor under this Agreement, as described throughout this Agreement and as specifically described in Exhibit A ("Statement of Work") attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. As used in this Agreement, Services shall include any component task, subtask, service, or function inherent, necessary, or a customary part of the Services, but not specifically described in this Agreement, and shall include the provision of all standard day-to-day administrative, overhead, and internal expenses, including costs of bonds and insurance as required herein, labor, materials, equipment, safety equipment, products, office supplies, consumables, tools, postage, computer hardware/software, telephone charges, copier usage, fax charges, travel, lodging, and per diem and all other costs required to perform Services except as otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement.

2. <u>Conditions Precedent.</u> This Agreement, and the Parties' rights and obligations herein, are contingent upon and subject to the Contractor securing and/or providing the performance security, if required in Section 3, and the insurance coverage(s) required in Section 13, within <u>ten (10)</u> days of the Effective Date. No Services shall be performed by the Contractor and the County shall not incur any obligations of any type until Contractor satisfies these conditions. Unless waived in writing by the County, in the event the Contractor fails to satisfy the conditions precedent within the time required herein, the Agreement shall be deemed not to have been entered into and shall be null and void.

3. Services.

- **A. Services**. The County retains Contractor, and Contractor agrees to provide the Services. All Services shall be performed to the satisfaction of the County, and shall be subject to the provisions and terms contained herein and the Exhibits attached hereto.
- **B.** Services Requiring Prior Approval. Contractor shall not commence work on any Services requiring prior written authorization in the Statement of Work without approval from Director of the Human Services Department.
- **C.** Additional Services. From the Effective Date and for the duration of the project, the County may elect to have Contractor perform Services that are not specifically described in the Statement of Work attached hereto but are related to the Services ("Additional Services"), in which event Contractor shall perform such Additional Services for the compensation specified in the Statement of Work attached hereto. Contractor shall commence performing the applicable Additional Services promptly upon receipt of written approval as provided herein.
- **D.** De-scoping of Services. The County reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to de-scope Services upon written notification to the Contractor by the County. Upon issuance and receipt of the notification, the Contractor and the County shall enter into a written amendment reducing the appropriate Services Fee for the impacted Services by a sum equal to the amount associated with the de-scoped Services as defined in the payment schedule in this Agreement, if applicable, or as determined by mutual written consent of both Parties based upon the scope of work performed prior to issuance of notification.
- **E.** Independent Contractor Status and Compliance with the Immigration Reform and Control Act. Contractor is and shall remain an independent contractor and is neither agent, employee, partner, nor joint venturer of County. Contractor acknowledges that it is responsible for complying with the provisions of the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 located at 8 U.S.C. 1324, et seq, and regulations relating thereto, as either may be amended from time to time. Failure to comply with the above provisions shall be considered a material breach of the Agreement.
- **F.** Non-Exclusive Services. This is a non-exclusive Agreement. During the term of this Agreement, and any extensions thereof, the County reserves the right to contract for another provider for similar services as it determines necessary in its sole discretion.
- **G. Project Monitoring**. During the term of the Agreement, Contractor shall cooperate with the County, either directly or through its representatives, in monitoring Contractor's progress and performance of this Agreement.

4. Term of Agreement.

A. Initial Term. The term of this Agreement for Division N shall commence on the Effective Date; and shall remain in full force and for five (5) years, or until termination of the Agreement, whichever occurs first

The term of this Agreement for Division Z shall commence on the Effective Date; and shall remain in full force through June 30, 2027.

B. Term Extension.

The term of this Agreement may not be extended. All Services shall be completed by the expiration of the initial term as defined in 4.A.

5. Compensation and Method of Payment.

- A. Services Fee. As total compensation for the Services, the County shall pay the Contractor the sums as provided in this Section 5 ("Services Fee"), pursuant to the terms and conditions as provided in this Agreement. It is acknowledged and agreed by Contractor that this compensation constitutes a limitation upon County's obligation to compensate Contractor for such Services required by this Agreement, but does not constitute a limitation upon Contractor's obligation to perform all of the Services required by this Agreement. In no event will the Services Fee paid exceed the not-to-exceed sums set out in subsections 5.B. and C., unless the Parties agree to increase this sum by written amendment as authorized in Section 21 of the Agreement.
- **B.** The County agrees to pay the Contractor the not-to-exceed sum of \$_____, for Services completed and accepted as provided in Section 15 herein if applicable, payable on a fixed-fee basis for the deliverables as set out in Exhibit C, payable upon submittal of an invoice as required herein.

C. Travel Expenses.

- The Services Fee includes all travel, lodging and per diem expenses incurred by Contractor in performing the Services.
- **D. Taxes.** Contractor acknowledges that the County is not subject to any state or federal sales, use, transportation and certain excise taxes.
- E. Payments. Contractor shall submit invoices for payments due as provided herein and authorized reimbursable expenses incurred with such documentation as required by County. Invoices shall be submitted to:
- \boxtimes the designated person as set out in Section 19 herein;

For time and materials Services, all Contractor Personnel shall maintain logs of time worked, and each invoice shall state the date and number of hours worked for Services authorized to be billed on a time and materials basis. All payments shall be made in accordance with the requirements of Section 218.70 et seq., Florida Statutes, "The Local Government Prompt Payment Act." The County may dispute any payments invoiced by Contractor in accordance with the County's Invoice Payments Dispute Resolution Process established in accordance with Section 218.76, Florida Statutes, and any such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the County's Dispute Resolution Process.

6. Personnel.

A. E-Verify. The Contractor and Subcontractor must register with and use the E-verify system in accordance with Florida Statute 448.095. A Contractor and Subcontractor may not enter into a contract with the County unless each party registers with and uses the E-verify system.

If a Contractor enters a contract with a Subcontractor, the Subcontractor must provide the Contractor with an affidavit stating that the Subcontractor does not employ, contract with, or subcontract with unauthorized aliens. The Contractor must maintain a copy of the affidavit for the duration of the contract.

If the County, Contractor, or Subcontract has a good faith belief that a person or entity with which it is contracting has knowingly violated Florida Statute 448.09(1) shall immediately terminate the contract with the person or entity.

If the County has a good faith belief that a Subcontractor knowingly violated this provision, but the Contractor otherwise complied with this provision, the County will notify the Contractor and order that the Contractor immediately terminate the contract with the Subcontractor.

A contract terminated under the provisions of this section is not a breach of contract and may not considered such. Any contract termination under the provisions of this section may be challenged to Section 448.095(2)(d), Florida Statute. Contractor acknowledges upon termination of this agreement by the County for violation of this section by Contractor, Contractor may not be awarded a public contract for at least one (1) year. Contractor acknowledges that Contractor is liable for any additional costs incurred by the County as a result of termination of any contract for a violation of this section.

Contractor or Subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in this section, requiring the subcontracts to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. Contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any Subcontractor or Lower Tier Subcontractor with the clause set for in this section.

- **B.** Qualified Personnel. Contractor agrees that each person performing Services in connection with this Agreement shall have the qualifications and shall fulfill the requirements set forth in this Agreement.
- C. Approval and Replacement of Personnel. The County shall have the right to approve all Contractor Personnel assigned to provide the Services, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. Prior to commencing the Services, the Contractor shall provide at least ten (10) days written notice of the names and qualifications of the Contractor Personnel assigned to perform Services pursuant to the Agreement. Thereafter, during the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall promptly and as required by the County provide written notice of the names and qualifications of any additional Contractor Personnel assigned to perform Services. The County, on a reasonable basis, shall have the right to require the removal and replacement of any of the Contractor Personnel performing Services, at any time during the term of the Agreement. The County will notify Contractor in writing in the event the County requires such action. Contractor shall accomplish any such removal within forty-eight (48) hours after receipt of notice from the County and shall promptly replace such person with another person, acceptable to the County, with sufficient knowledge and expertise to perform the Services assigned to such individual in accordance with this Agreement. In situations where individual Contractor Personnel are prohibited by applicable law from providing Services, removal and replacement of such Contractor Personnel shall be immediate and not subject to such forty-eight (48) hour replacement timeframe and the provisions of Section 7. A.1. shall apply if minimum required staffing is not maintained.

7. Termination.

A. Contractor Default Provisions and Remedies of County.

- 1. Events of Default. Any of the following shall constitute a "Contractor Event of Default" hereunder: (i) Contractor fails to maintain the staffing necessary to perform the Services as required in the Agreement, fails to perform the Services as specified in the Agreement, or fails to complete the Services within the completion dates as specified in the Agreement; (ii) Contractor breaches Section 9 (Confidential Information); (iii) Contractor fails to gain acceptance of a deliverable per Section 15, if applicable, for two (2) consecutive iterations; or (iv) Contractor fails to perform or observe any of the other material provisions of this Agreement.
- 2. <u>Cure Provisions.</u> Upon the occurrence of a Contractor Event of Default as set out above, the County shall provide written notice of such Contractor Event of Default to Contractor ("Notice to Cure"), and Contractor shall have thirty (30) calendar days after the date of a Notice to Cure to correct, cure, and/or remedy the Contractor Event of Default described in the written notice.

3. <u>Termination for Cause by the County.</u> In the event that Contractor fails to cure a Contractor Event of Default as authorized herein, or upon the occurrence of a Contractor Event of Default as specified in Section 7.A.1.(iii), the County may terminate this Agreement in whole or in part, effective upon receipt by Contractor of written notice of termination pursuant to this provision, and may pursue such remedies at law or in equity as may be available to the County.

B. County Default Provisions and Remedies of Contractor.

- 1. <u>Events of Default.</u> Any of the following shall constitute a "County Event of Default" hereunder: (i) the County fails to make timely undisputed payments as described in this Agreement; (ii) the County breaches Section 9 (Confidential Information); or (iii) the County fails to perform any of the other material provisions of this Agreement.
- 2. <u>Cure Provisions.</u> Upon the occurrence of a County Event of Default as set out above, Contractor shall provide written notice of such County Event of Default to the County ("Notice to Cure"), and the County shall have thirty (30) calendar days after the date of a Notice to Cure to correct, cure, and/or remedy the County Event of Default described in the written notice.
- 3. <u>Termination for Cause by Contractor.</u> In the event the County fails to cure a County Event of Default as authorized herein, Contractor may terminate this Agreement in whole or in part effective on receipt by the County of written notice of termination pursuant to this provision, and may pursue such remedies at law or in equity as may be available to the Contractor.
- C. Termination for Convenience. Notwithstanding any other provision herein, the County may terminate this Agreement, without cause, by giving thirty (30) days advance written notice to the Contractor of its election to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this provision.
- **8.** <u>Time is of the Essence.</u> Time is of the essence with respect to all provisions of this Agreement that specify a time for performance, including the Services as described in Exhibits attached hereto; provided, however, that the foregoing shall not be construed to limit a Party's cure period allowed in the Agreement.

9. Confidential Information and Public Records.

- **A.** County Confidential Information. Contractor shall not disclose to any third party County Confidential Information that Contractor, through its Contractor Personnel, has access to or has received from the County pursuant to its performance of Services pursuant to the Agreement, unless approved in writing by the County Contract Manager. All such County Confidential Information will be held in trust and confidence from the date of disclosure by the County, and discussions involving such County Confidential Information shall be limited to Contractor Personnel as is necessary to complete the Services.
- **B.** Contractor Confidential Information. All Contractor Confidential Information received by the County from Contractor will be held in trust and confidence from the date of disclosure by Contractor and discussions involving such Contractor Confidential Information shall be limited to the members of the County's staff and the County's subcontractors who require such information in the performance of this Agreement. The County acknowledges and agrees to respect the copyrights, registrations, trade secrets and other proprietary rights of Contractor in the Contractor Confidential Information during and after the term of the Agreement and shall at all times maintain the confidentiality of the Contractor Confidential Information provided to the County, subject to federal law and the laws of the State of Florida related to public records disclosure. Contractor shall be solely responsible for taking any and all action it deems necessary to protect its Contractor Confidential Information except as provided herein. Contractor acknowledges that the County is subject to public records legislation, including but not limited to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and the Florida Rules of Judicial Administration, and that any of the County's obligations under this Section may be superseded by its obligations under any requirements of said laws.

C. Public Records. Contractor acknowledges that information and data it manages as part of the services may be public records in accordance with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes and Pinellas County public records policies. Contractor agrees that prior to providing services it will implement policies and procedures to maintain, produce, secure, and retain public records in accordance with applicable laws, regulations, and County policies, including but not limited to the Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement relating to compensation, the Contractor agrees to charge the County, and/or any third parties requesting public records only such fees allowed by Section 119.07, Florida Statutes, and County policy for locating and producing public records during the term of this Agreement.

If the Contractor has questions regarding the application of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, to the Contractor's duty to provide public records relating to this contract, contact the Pinellas County Board of County Commissioners, Purchasing and Risk Management Department, Operations Manager custodian of public records at 727-464-3311, purchase@pinellascounty.org, Pinellas County Government, Purchasing and Risk Management Department, Operations Manager, 400 S. Ft. Harrison Ave, 6th Floor, Clearwater, FL 33756.

10. <u>Audit.</u> Contractor shall retain all records relating to this Agreement for a period of at least five (5) years after final payment is made. All records shall be kept in such a way as will permit their inspection pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. In addition, County reserves the right to examine and/or audit such records.

11. Compliance with Laws.

Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, state, county and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations in the performance of its obligations under this Agreement, including the procurement of permits and certificates where required, and including but not limited to laws related to Workers Compensation, Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Minority Business Enterprise (MBE), occupational safety and health and the environment, equal employment opportunity, privacy of medical records and information, as applicable. Failure to comply with any of the above provisions shall be considered a material breach of the Agreement.

12. Digital Accessibility

Suppler acknowledges and warrants that all digital content and services provided under this contract conforms and shall continue to conform during the Term of this Agreement to the W3C Web Content Accessibility Guidelines, version 2.0 ("WCAG 2.0") at conformance Level A and AA. If all digital content and services does not fully conform to WCAG 2.0 A and AA, Supplier shall advise Pinellas County in writing of the nonconformance prior to execution of this Agreement and shall provide Pinellas County a plan to achieve conformance to WCAG 2.0 A and AA, including but not limited to, an intended timeline for conformance. Failure to achieve conformance, as determined in Pinellas County's sole discretion, on its intended timeline shall be considered a material breach of this Agreement and grounds for termination by Pinellas County.

If during the Term of this Agreement, Supplier fails to maintain compliance with WCAG 2.0 A and AA or Pinellas County otherwise identifies an issue related to accessibility of the product (the "Accessibility Issue") that renders the product inaccessible, then Pinellas County shall notify Supplier of non-compliance. Within 30 days of Supplier's receipt of a non-compliance notice ("Notice"), Supplier and Pinellas County shall meet and mutually agree upon an appropriate timeline for resolution of the Accessibility Issue(s) ("Initial Meeting").

Should Supplier:

- i. fail to acknowledge receipt of the notice within 30 days of receipt of the Notice;
- ii. unreasonably and solely withhold agreement regarding a timeline for resolution for more than 30 days following the Initial Meeting; or
- iii. fail to materially resolve the Accessibility Issue(s) within the agreed-upon timeline,

Failure to comply with the requirements of this section shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement and shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement by Pinellas County and subject Supplier to section 14(b) of this Agreement, "Indemnification."

13. Public Entities Crimes

Contractor is directed to the Florida Public Entities Crime Act, Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, as well as Florida Statute 287.135 regarding Scrutinized Companies, and represents to County that Contractor is qualified to transact business with public entities in Florida, and to enter into and fully perform this Agreement subject to the provisions state therein. Failure to comply with any of the above provisions shall be considered a material breach of the Agreement.

14. Liability and Insurance.

- **A. Insurance.** Contractor shall comply with the insurance requirements set out in Exhibit ______, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.
- B. Indemnification. Contractor agrees to indemnify, pay the cost of defense, including attorney's fees, and hold harmless the County, its officers, employees and agents from all damages, suits, actions or claims, including reasonable attorney's fees incurred by the County, of any character brought on account of any injuries or damages received or sustained by any person, persons, or property, or in any way relating to or arising from the Agreement; or on account of any act or omission, neglect or misconduct of Contractor; or by, or on account of, any claim or amounts recovered under the Workers' Compensation Law; or of any other laws, regulations, ordinance, order or decree; or arising from or by reason of any actual or claimed trademark, patent or copyright infringement or litigation based thereon; or for any violation of requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as may be amended, and all rules and regulations issued pursuant thereto (collectively the "ADA") except when such injury, damage, or violation was caused by the sole negligence of the County.
- C. Liability. Neither the County nor Contractor shall make any express or implied agreements, guaranties or representations, or incur any debt, in the name of or on behalf of the other Party. Neither the County nor Contractor shall be obligated by or have any liability under any agreements or representations made by the other that are not expressly authorized hereunder. The County shall have no liability or obligation for any damages to any person or property directly or indirectly arising out of the operation by Contractor of its business, whether caused by Contractor's negligence or willful action or failure to act.
- D. Contractor's Taxes. The County will have no liability for any sales, service, value added, use, excise, gross receipts, property, workers' compensation, unemployment compensation, withholding or other taxes, whether levied upon Contractor or Contractor's assets, or upon the County in connection with Services performed or business conducted by Contractor. Payment of all such taxes and liabilities shall be the responsibility of Contractor.
- 15. County's Funding. The Agreement is not a general obligation of the County. It is understood that neither this Agreement nor any representation by any County employee or officer creates any obligation to appropriate or make monies available for the purpose of the Agreement beyond the fiscal year in which this Agreement is executed. No liability shall be incurred by the County, or any department, beyond the monies budgeted and available for this purpose. If funds are not appropriated by the County for any or all of this Agreement, the County shall not be obligated to pay any sums provided pursuant to this Agreement beyond the portion for which funds are appropriated. The County agrees to promptly notify Contractor in writing of such failure of appropriation, and upon receipt of such notice, this Agreement, and all rights and obligations contained herein, shall terminate without liability or penalty to the County.
- **16.** Acceptance of Services. For all Services deliverables that require County acceptance as provided in the Statement of Work, the County, through the Director of Human Services Department or designee, will have ten (10) calendar days to review the deliverable(s) after receipt or completion of same by Contractor, and either accept or reject the deliverable(s) by written notice to [*Proposer*] _____. If a deliverable is rejected, the written notice from the County will specify any required changes, deficiencies, and/or additions necessary. Contractor shall then have seven (7) calendar days to review the deliverable(s) to resubmit and/or complete the deliverable(s) for review and approval by the County, who will then have seven (7) calendar days to review and approve, or reject the deliverable(s); provided however, that Contractor shall not be responsible for any delays in the overall project schedule that result from the County's failure to timely approve or reject deliverable(s) as provided herein. Upon final acceptance of the deliverable(s), the County will accept the deliverable(s) in writing.

17. Subcontracting/Assignment.

A. Subcontracting. Contractor is fully responsible for completion of the Services required by this Agreement and for completion of all subcontractor work, if authorized as provided herein. Contractor shall not subcontract any work under this Agreement to any subcontractor other than the subcontractors specified in the proposal and previously approved by the County, without the prior written consent of the County, which shall be determined by the County in its sole discretion.

B. Assignment.

- This Agreement, and any rights or obligations hereunder, shall not be assigned, transferred or delegated to any other person or entity. Any purported assignment in violation of this section shall be null and void.
- **18.** <u>Survival.</u> The following provisions shall survive the expiration or termination of the Term of this Agreement: 7, 9, 10, 13 20, 23, and any other which by their nature would survive termination.
- 19. <u>Notices.</u> All notices, authorizations, and requests in connection with this Agreement shall be deemed given on the day they are: (1) deposited in the U.S. mail, postage prepaid, certified or registered, return receipt requested; or (2) sent by air express courier (e.g., Federal Express, Airborne, etc.), charges prepaid, return receipt requested; or (iii) sent via email and addressed as set forth below, which designated person(s) may be amended by either Party by giving written notice to the other Party:

For County: For Contractor:

Attn: Ms. Abigail Stanton, Director of Contracts Human Services Department 440 Court Street, 2nd Floor Clearwater, FL 33756

Attn:

with a copy to:
Ms. Merry Celeste
Purchasing and Risk Management Division Director
Pinellas County Purchasing Department
400 South Fort Harrison Avenue
Clearwater, FL 33756

20. Conflict of Interest.

- **A.** The Contractor represents that it presently has no interest and shall acquire no interest, either direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner with the performance of the Services required hereunder, and that no person having any such interest shall be employed by Contractor during the agreement term and any extensions; and during the term of this Agreement.
- **B.** The Contractor shall promptly notify the County in writing of any business association, interest, or other circumstance which constitutes a conflict of interest as provided herein. If the Contractor is in doubt as to whether a prospective business association, interest, or other circumstance constitutes a conflict of interest, the Contract may identify the prospective business association, interest or circumstance, the nature of work that the Contractor may undertake and request an opinion as to whether the business association, interest or circumstance constitutes a conflict of interest if entered into by the Contractor. The County agrees to notify the Contractor of its opinion within (10) calendar days of receipt of notification by the Contractor, which shall be binding on the Contractor.

- 21. Right to Ownership. All work created, originated and/or prepared by Contractor in performing Services pursuant to the Agreement, including reports and other documentation or improvements related thereto, to the extent that such work, products, documentation, materials or information are described in or required by the Services (collectively, the "Work Product") shall be County's property when completed and accepted, if acceptance is required in this Agreement, and the County has made payment of the sums due therefore. The ideas, concepts, know-how or techniques developed during the course of this Agreement by the Contractor or jointly by Contractor and the County may be used by the County without obligation of notice or accounting to the Contractor. Any data, information or other materials furnished by the County for use by Contractor under this Agreement shall remain the sole property of the County.
- 22. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended by mutual written agreement of the Parties hereto.
- 23. <u>Severability.</u> The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be deemed to be severable. Consequently, if any clause, term, or condition hereof shall be held to be illegal or void, such determination shall not affect the validity or legality of the remaining terms and conditions, and notwithstanding any such determination, this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect unless the particular clause, term, or condition held to be illegal or void renders the balance of the Agreement impossible to perform.
- **24.** Applicable Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida (without regard to principles of conflicts of laws). The Parties agree that all actions or proceedings arising in connection with this Agreement shall be tried and litigated exclusively in the state or federal (if permitted by law and a Party elects to file an action in federal court) courts located in or for Pinellas County, Florida. This choice of venue is intended by the Parties to be mandatory and not permissive in nature, and to preclude the possibility of litigation between the Parties with respect to, or arising out of, this Agreement in any jurisdiction other than that specified in this section. Each Party waives any right it may have to assert the doctrine of *forum non conveniens* or similar doctrine or to object to venue with respect to any proceeding brought in accordance with this section.
- **25.** <u>Waiver.</u> No waiver by either Party of any breach or violation of any covenant, term, condition, or provision of this Agreement or of the provisions of any ordinance or law, shall be construed to waive any other term, covenant, condition, provisions, ordinance or law, or of any subsequent breach or violation of the same.
- **26.** <u>Due Authority.</u> Each Party to this Agreement represents and warrants that: (i) it has the full right and authority and has obtained all necessary approvals to enter into this Agreement; (ii) each person executing this Agreement on behalf of the Party is authorized to do so; (iii) this Agreement constitutes a valid and legally binding obligation of the Party, enforceable in accordance with its terms.
- **27.** No Third Party Beneficiary. The Parties hereto acknowledge and agree that there are no third party beneficiaries to this Agreement. Persons or entities not a party to this Agreement may not claim any benefit from this Agreement or as third party beneficiaries hereto.
- **28.** Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the Parties and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements either oral or written.

(Signature Page Follows)

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement the day and year first written.

PINELLAS COUNTY, FLORIDA		
By and through its		
Board of County Commissioners	Name of Firm	
	By:	
By: Charlie Justice	Signature	
	Print Name	
ATTEST:	Title	
Ken Burke,		
Clerk of the Circuit Court		
By:		
Deputy Clerk	_	
Approved as to Form		
D		
By:		
Office of the County Attorney		

PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

(Document to be Provided Prior to Agreement Execution)

RFP #22-0317-P(LN)
RFP TITLE: Adult Drug Court Treatment - Division N and Z

ATTACHMENT 1 Page 75 of 172

[INSERT INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS PRIOR TO EXECUTION]

PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

(Document to be Provided Prior to Agreement Execution)

PAYMENT/INVOICES:

SUPPLIER shall submit invoices for payment due as provided herein with such documentation as required by Pinellas County and all payments shall be made in accordance with the requirements of Section 218.70 et. seq. Florida Statutes, "The Local Government Prompt Payment Act." Invoices shall be submitted to the address below unless instructed otherwise on the purchase order, or if no purchase order, by the ordering department:

Finance Division Accounts Payable Pinellas County Board of County Commissioners P. O. Box 2438 Clearwater, FL 33757

Each invoice shall include, at a minimum, the Supplier's name, contact information and the standard purchase order number. In order to expedite payment, it is recommended the Supplier also include the information shown in below. The County may dispute any payments invoiced by SUPPLIER in accordance with the County's Dispute Resolution Process for Invoiced Payments, established in accordance with Section 218.76, Florida Statutes, and any such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the County's Dispute Resolution Process.

INVOICE INFORMATION:

Supplier Information Company name, mailing address, phone number, contact name and email address as provided on the PO

Remit To Billing address to which you are requesting payment be sent

Invoice Date Creation date of the invoice **Invoice Number** Company tracking number

Shipping Address Address where goods and/or services were delivered

contact person

Ordering Department Name of ordering department, including name and phone number of

PO Number Standard purchase order number

Ship Date Date the goods/services were sent/provided

Quantity of goods or services billed Quantity

Description Description of services or goods delivered

Unit Price Unit price for the quantity of goods/services delivered

Line Total Amount due by line item

Invoice Total Sum of all of the line totals for the invoice

Pinellas County offers a credit card payment process (ePayables) through Bank of America. Pinellas County does not charge vendors to participate in the program; however, there may be a charge by the company that processes your credit card transactions. For more information please visit Pinellas County purchasing website at www.pinellascounty.org/purchase.

Payment of invoices for work performed for Pinellas County Board of County Commissioners (County) is made, by standard, in arrears in accordance with Section 218.70, et. seq., Florida Statutes, the Local Government Prompt Payment Act.

If a dispute should arise as a result of non-payment of a payment request or invoice the following Dispute Resolution process shall apply:

- A. Pinellas County shall notify a vendor in writing within ten (10) days after receipt of an improper invoice, that the invoice is improper. The notice should indicate what steps the vendor should undertake to correct the invoice and resubmit a proper invoice to the County. The steps taken by the vendor shall be that of initially contacting the requesting department to validate their invoice and receive a sign off from that entity that would indicate that the invoice in question is in keeping with the terms and conditions of the agreement. Once sign off is obtained, the vendor should then resubmit the invoice as a "Corrected Invoice" to the requesting department which will initiate the payment timeline.
 - 1.) Requesting department for this purpose is defined as the County department for whom the work is performed.
 - 2.) Proper invoice for this purpose is defined as an invoice submitted for work performed that meets prior agreed upon terms or conditions to the satisfaction of Pinellas County.
- B. Should a dispute result between the vendor and the County about payment of a payment request or an invoice then the vendor should submit their dissatisfaction in writing to the Requesting Department. Each Requesting Department shall assign a representative who shall act as a "Dispute Manager" to resolve the issue at departmental level.
- C. The Dispute Manager shall first initiate procedures to investigate the dispute and document the steps taken to resolve the issue in accordance with section 218.76 Florida Statutes. Such procedures shall be commenced no later than forty-five (45) days after the date on which the payment request or invoice was received by Pinellas County, and shall not extend beyond sixty (60) days after the date on which the payment request or invoice was received by Pinellas County.
- D. The Dispute Manager should investigate and ascertain that the work, for which the payment request or invoice has been submitted, was performed to Pinellas County's satisfaction and duly accepted by the Proper Authority. Proper Authority for this purpose is defined as the Pinellas County representative who is designated as the approving authority for the work performed in the contractual document. The Dispute Manager shall perform the required investigation and arrive at a solution before or at the sixty (60) days timeframe for resolution of the dispute, per section 218.76, Florida Statutes. The County Administrator or his or her designee shall be the final arbiter in resolving the issue before it becomes a legal matter. The County Administrator or his or her designee will issue their decision in writing.
- E. Pinellas County Dispute Resolution Procedures shall not be subject to Chapter 120 of the Florida Statutes. The procedures shall also, per section 218.76, Florida Statutes, not be intended as an administrative proceeding which would prohibit a court from ruling again on any action resulting from the dispute.

- F. Should the dispute be resolved in the County's favor interest charges begin to accrue fifteen (15) days after the final decision made by the County. Should the dispute be resolved in the vendor's favor the County shall pay interest as of the original date the payment was due.
- G. For any legal action to recover any fees due because of the application of sections 218.70 et. seq., Florida Statutes, an award shall be made to cover court costs and reasonable attorney fees, including those fees incurred as a result of an appeal, to the prevailing party If it is found that the non-prevailing party held back any payment that was the reason for the dispute without having any reasonable lawful basis or fact to dispute the prevailing party's claim to those amounts.

Data Sharing Agreement

WHEREAS, homelessness, substance abuse, mental health services, and human services are issues which cross many systems; and

WHEREAS, Pinellas County is interested in including program and service related information in the Pinellas County Data Collaborative (hereinafter referred to as ("Data Collaborative"), to better understand cross-system involvement; and

WHEREAS, organizations within Pinellas County are interested in understanding the extent that client populations move within systems to better serve the population needs; and

WHEREAS, the County is a member of the Data Collaborative; and

WHEREAS, the Data Collaborative has the ability to receive and analyze data in a secure manner to provide valuable system information.

NOW, THEREFORE in consideration of the following agreements, the parties do hereby covenant and agree to the following:

- 1. The Agency will provide program information to include operational, fiscal, client service, and other program information in electronic format to the County for the sole purpose of research and policy development. This information will be provided quarterly or on an as needed basis as defined by the County.
- 2. This information will be crossed through the Data Collaborative with systems containing state and local information about involvement in criminal justice, human services, mental health, substance abuse, EMS and other systems as available for the sole purpose of understanding cross-system involvement for policy and planning.
- 3. The County will assure that the information used by the Data Collaborative will not be released, shared, or transferred in an identifiable manner to any organization and will be stored in a HIPAA compliant location.
- 4. The County will assure that confidential nature of any and all information with respect to any records and reports created or disseminated is maintained. The Parties also agree that the information will be used only for the purpose for which it was provided.
- 5. Modification of this agreement shall be made only by the consent of both Parties and shall include a written document setting forth the modifications and signed by both Parties. This agreement may be terminated with 30 days written notice to the other party.
- 6. The Parties shall assist in the investigation of injury or damages for or against either party pertaining to their respective areas of responsibility or activities under this contract and shall contact the other party regarding the legal actions deemed appropriate to remedy such damage or claims.

REV 06/17 ATTACHMENT A

HIPAA BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

This Agreement (hereinafter referred to as AGREEMENT) is entered into by and between Pinellas County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida (hereinafter referred to as COVERED ENTITY) and the business associate named on the signature page hereof (hereinafter referred to as BUSINESS ASSOCIATE) (each hereinafter referred to as PARTY and collectively hereinafter referred to as the PARTIES) on this _____ day of _______, 2022.

WHEREAS, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE performs functions, activities, or services for, or on behalf of COVERED ENTITY, and BUSINESS ASSOCIATE receives, has access to or creates Health Information in order to perform such functions, activities or services; and

WHEREAS, COVERED ENTITY is subject to the Administrative Simplification requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and regulations promulgated there under (hereinafter referred to as HIPAA), including but not limited to, the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information and the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health Information found at 45 Code of Federal Regulations Parts 160, 162 and 164; and

WHEREAS, HIPAA requires COVERED ENTITY to enter into a contract with BUSINESS ASSOCIATE to provide for the protection of the privacy and security of Health Information, and HIPAA prohibits the disclosure to or use of Health Information by BUSINESS ASSOCIATE if such a contract is not in place; and

WHEREAS, as a result of the requirements of the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (hereinafter referred to as HITECH ACT), as incorporated in the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, and its implementing regulations and guidance issued by the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as SECRETARY), all as amended from time to time, the PARTIES agree to this AGREEMENT in order to document the PARTIES' obligations under the HITECH ACT.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged, the PARTIES agree as follows:

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS

1.1 "Business Associate" shall generally have the same meaning as the term "business associate" at 45 CFR 160.103, and in reference to the party to this agreement, shall mean

^{1.2 &}quot;Covered Entity" shall generally have the same meaning as the term "covered entity" at 45 CFR 160.103, and in reference to the party to this agreement, shall mean Pinellas County by and through its Department of Human Services.

- 1.3 "<u>Disclose</u>" and "<u>Disclosure</u>" shall mean, with respect to Health Information, the release, transfer, provision of access to, or divulging in any other manner of Health Information outside BUSINESS ASSOCIATE's internal operations or to other than its employees.
- 1.4 "<u>Health Information</u>" shall mean information that: (a) relates to the past, present or future physical or mental health or condition of an individual; the provision of health care to an individual, or the past, present or future payment for the provision of health care to an individual; (b) identifies the individual (or for which there is a reasonable basis for believing that the information can be used to identify the individual); and (c) is received by BUSINESS ASSOCIATE from or on behalf of COVERED ENTITY, or is created by BUSINESS ASSOCIATE, or is made accessible to BUSINESS ASSOCIATE by COVERED ENTITY.
- 1.5 "<u>HIPAA Rules</u>". "HIPAA Rules" shall mean the Privacy, Security, Breach Notification, and Enforcement Rules at 45 CFR Part 160 and Part 164.
- 1.6 "<u>Privacy Regulations</u>" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Covered Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 Code of Federal Regulations Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA.
- 1.7 "Services" shall mean the services provided by BUSINESS ASSOCIATE pursuant to the Underlying Agreement, or if no such agreement is in effect, the services BUSINESS ASSOCIATE performs with respect to the COVERED ENTITY.
- 1.8 "<u>Underlying Agreement</u>" shall mean the services agreement executed by the COVERED ENTITY and BUSINESS ASSOCIATE, if any.
- 1.9 "<u>Use</u>" or "<u>Uses</u>" shall mean, with respect to Health Information, the sharing, employment, application, utilization, examination or analysis of such Health Information within BUSINESS ASSOCIATE's internal operations.
- 1.10 <u>Catch-all definition</u>: The following terms used in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as those terms in the HIPAA Rules: Breach, Data Aggregation, Designated Record Set, Disclosure, Health Care Operations, Individual, Minimum Necessary, Notice of Privacy Practices, Protected Health Information, Required By Law, Secretary, Security Incident, Subcontractor, Unsecured Protected Health Information, and Use, unless otherwise specifically defined or referred under this Agreement.

ARTICLE II OBLIGATIONS OF BUSINESS ASSOCIATE

- 2.1 <u>Initial Effective Date of Performance</u>. The obligations created under this AGREEMENT shall become effective immediately upon execution of this AGREEMENT or the agreement to which it is appended.
 - 2.2 Obligations and Activities of Business Associate. Business Associate agrees to:

- a. Not use or disclose protected health information other than as permitted or required by the Agreement or as required by law.
- b. Use appropriate safeguards, and comply with Subpart C of 45 CFR Part 164 with respect to electronic protected health information, to prevent use or disclosure of protected health information other than as provided for by the Agreement.
- c. Report to covered entity any unauthorized acquisition, access, use or disclosure of protected health information not provided for by the Agreement of which it becomes aware, including breaches of unsecured protected health information as required at 45 CFR 164.410, and any security incident of which it becomes aware.
- d. In accordance with 45 CFR 164.502(e)(1)(ii) and 164.308(b)(2), if applicable, ensure that any subcontractors that create, receive, maintain, or transmit protected health information on behalf of the business associate agree to the same restrictions, conditions, and requirements that apply to the business associate with respect to such information.
- e. Make available protected health information in a designated record set to the COVERED ENTITY as necessary to satisfy covered entity's obligations under 45 CFR 164.524.
- f. Make any amendment(s) to protected health information in a designated record set as directed or agreed to by the covered entity pursuant to 45 CFR 164.526, or take other measures as necessary to satisfy covered entity's obligations under 45 CFR 164.526.
- g. Maintain and make available the information required to provide an accounting of disclosures to the "covered entity" as necessary to satisfy covered entity's obligations under 45 CFR 164.528.
- h. To the extent the business associate is to carry out one or more of covered entity's obligation(s) under Subpart E of 45 CFR Part 164, comply with the requirements of Subpart E that apply to the covered entity in the performance of such obligation(s).
- i. Make its internal practices, books, and records available to the Secretary for purposes of determining compliance with the HIPAA Rules.
- 2.3 <u>Permitted Uses and Disclosures of Health Information</u>. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE is authorized to:
 - a. Use and Disclose Health Information as necessary to perform Services for, or on behalf of COVERED ENTITY.

- b. Use Health Information to create aggregated or de-identified information consistent with the requirements of the Privacy Regulations.
- c. Use or Disclose Health Information (including aggregated or de-identified information) as otherwise directed by COVERED ENTITY provided that COVERED ENTITY shall not request BUSINESS ASSOCIATE to use or disclose Health Information in a manner that would not be permissible if done by COVERED ENTITY.
- d. To the extent required by the HITECH ACT, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall limit its use, disclosure or request of PHI to the Limited Data Set or, if needed, to the minimum necessary to accomplish the intended use, disclosure or request, respectively. Effective on the date the SECRETARY issues guidance on what constitutes "minimum necessary" for purposes of HIPAA, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall limit its use, disclosure or request of PHI to only the minimum necessary as set forth in such guidance.
- BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall not use Health Information for any other purpose that would violate Subpart E of 45 CFR Part 164, except that if necessary, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE may use Health Information for the proper management and administration of BUSINESS ASSOCIATE or to carry out its legal responsibilities; provided that any use or disclosure described herein will not violate the Privacy Regulations or Florida law if done by COVERED ENTITY. Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE may disclose Health Information for the proper management and administration of the BUSINESS ASSOCIATE, provided that with respect to any such disclosure either: (a) the disclosure is required by law (within the meaning of the Privacy Regulations) or (b) the disclosure would not otherwise violate Florida law and BUSINESS ASSOCIATE obtains reasonable written assurances from the person to whom the information is to be disclosed that such person will hold the information in confidence and will not use or further disclose such information except as required by law or for the purpose(s) for which it was disclosed by BUSINESS ASSOCIATE to such person, and that such person will notify BUSINESS ASSOCIATE of any instances of which it is aware in which the confidentiality of the information has been breached.

2.4 Compliance with Security Provisions. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall:

- a. Implement and maintain administrative safeguards as required by 45 CFR § 164.308, physical safeguards as required by 45 CFR § 164.310 and technical safeguards as required by 45 CFR § 164.312.
- b. Implement and document reasonable and appropriate policies and procedures as required by 45 CFR § 164.316.

- c. Be in compliance with all requirements of the HITECH ACT related to security and applicable as if BUSINESS ASSOCIATE were a covered entity, as such term is defined in HIPAA.
- d. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall use its best efforts to implement and maintain technologies and methodologies that render PHI unusable, unreadable or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals as specified in the HITECH ACT.
- 2.5 <u>Compliance with Privacy Provisions</u>. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall only use and disclose PHI in compliance with each applicable requirement of 45 CFR § 164.504(e). BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall comply with all requirements of the HITECH ACT related to privacy and applicable as if BUSINESS ASSOCIATE were a covered entity, as such term is defined in HIPAA.
- 2.6 <u>Mitigation</u>. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE agrees to mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that is known to BUSINESS ASSOCIATE of a use or disclosure of Health Information by BUSINESS ASSOCIATE in violation of the requirements of this AGREEMENT.
- 2.7 <u>Breach of Unsecured PHI</u>. The provisions of this Section are effective with respect to the discovery of a breach of unsecured PHI occurring on or after September 23, 2009.
 - a. With respect to any unauthorized acquisition, access, use or disclosure of COVERED ENTITY'S PHI by BUSINESS ASSOCIATE, its agents or subcontractors, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall:
 - 1) Investigate such unauthorized acquisition, access, use or disclosure;
 - 2) Determine whether such unauthorized acquisition, access, use or disclosure constitutes a reportable breach under the HITECH ACT; and
 - 3) Document and retain its findings under clauses 1) and 2) of this Section.
 - b. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall notify COVERED ENTITY of all suspected breaches within five (5) business days of discovery. If the BUSINESS ASSOCIATE discovers that a reportable breach has occurred, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall notify COVERED ENTITY of such reportable breach in writing within three (3) days of the date BUSINESS ASSOCIATE discovers and determines that such breach is reportable. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall notify COVERED ENTITY immediately upon discovering a reportable breach of more than 500 individuals.
 - c. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall be deemed to have discovered a breach as of the first day that breach is either known to BUSINESS ASSOCIATE or any of its employees, officers or agents, other than the person who committed the breach, or by

through exercise of reasonable diligence, should have been known to BUSINESS ASSOCIATE or any of its employees, officers or agents, other than the person who committed the breach.

- d. To the extent the information is available to BUSINESS ASSOCIATE, it's written notice shall include the information required by 45 CFR §164.410.
- e. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall promptly supplement the written report with additional information regarding the breach as it obtains such information.
- f. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall cooperate with COVERED ENTITY in meeting the COVERED ENTITY's obligations under the HITECH ACT with respect to such breach. COVERED ENTITY shall have sole control over the timing and method of providing notification of such breach to the affected individual(s), the SECRETARY and, if applicable, the media, as required by the HITECH ACT.
- g. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall reimburse COVERED ENTITY for its reasonable costs and expenses in providing the notification, including, but not limited to, any administrative costs associated with providing notice, printing and mailing costs, and costs of mitigating the harm for affected individuals whose PHI has or may have been compromised as a result of the breach. In order to be reimbursed by BUSINESS ASSOCIATE, COVERED ENTITY must provide to BUSINESS ASSOCIATE a written accounting of COVERED ENTITY's actual costs and to the extent applicable, copies of receipts or bills with respect thereto.
- 2.8 <u>Availability of Internal Practices, Books and Records</u>. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE agrees to make its internal practices, books and records relating to the use and disclosure of Health Information available to the SECRETARY, for purposes of determining COVERED ENTITY's compliance with the Privacy Regulations.
- 2.9 Agreement to Restriction on Disclosure. If COVERED ENTITY is required to comply with a restriction on the disclosure of PHI pursuant to Section 13405 of the HITECH ACT, then COVERED ENTITY shall, to the extent needed to comply with such restriction, provide written notice to BUSINESS ASSOCIATE of the name of the individual requesting the restriction and the PHI affected thereby. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall, upon receipt of such notification, not disclose the identified PHI to any health plan for the purposes of carrying out payment or health care operations, except as otherwise required by law.
- 2.10 <u>Accounting of Disclosures</u>. Upon COVERED ENTITY's request, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall:
 - a. Provide to COVERED ENTITY an accounting of each disclosure of Health Information made by BUSINESS ASSOCIATE or its employees, agents, representatives or subcontractors as required by the Privacy Regulations. For each Disclosure that requires an accounting under this Section 2.10, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE

shall track the information required by the Privacy Regulations, and shall securely maintain the information for six (6) years from the date of the Disclosure.

- b. If BUSINESS ASSOCIATE is deemed to use or maintain an Electronic Health Record on behalf of COVERED ENTITY, then BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall maintain an accounting of any disclosures made through an Electronic Health Record for treatment, payment and health care operations, as applicable. Such accounting shall comply with the requirements of the HITECH ACT.
- c. Upon request by COVERED ENTITY, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall provide such accounting to COVERED ENTITY in the time and manner specified by the HITECH ACT.
- d. Where COVERED ENTITY responds to an individual's request for an accounting of disclosures made through an Electronic Health Record by providing the requesting individual with a list of all business associates acting on behalf of COVERED ENTITY; BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall provide such accounting directly to the requesting individual in the time and manner specified by the HITECH ACT.
- 2.11 <u>Use of Subcontractors and Agents</u>. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall require each of its agents and subcontractors that receive Health Information from BUSINESS ASSOCIATE to execute a written agreement obligating the agent or subcontractor to comply with all the terms of this AGREEMENT with respect to such Health Information.

2.12 Access to Electronic Health Records.

- a. If BUSINESS ASSOCIATE is deemed to use or maintain an Electronic Health Record on behalf of COVERED ENTITY with respect to PHI, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall provide an individual with a copy of the information contained in such Electronic Health Record in an electronic format and, if the individual so chooses, transmit such copy directly to an entity or person designated by the individual upon request, to the extent an individual has the right to request a copy of the PHI maintained in such Electronic Health Record pursuant to 45 CFR § 164.524 and makes such a request to BUSINESS ASSOCIATE.
- b. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE may charge a fee to the individual for providing a copy of such information, but such fee may not exceed BUSINESS ASSOCIATE's labor costs in responding to the request for the copy.
- c. The provisions of 45 CFR § 164.524, including the exceptions to the requirement to provide a copy of PHI shall otherwise apply and BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall comply therewith as if BUSINESS ASSOCIATE were the COVERED ENTITY.
- d. At COVERED ENTITY's request, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall provide COVERED ENTITY with a copy of an individual's PHI maintained in an

Electronic Health Record in an electronic format in a time and manner designated by COVERED ENTITY in order for COVERED ENTITY to comply with 45 CFR § 164.524, as amended by the HITECH ACT.

2.13 <u>Limitations on Use of PHI for Marketing Purposes.</u>

- a. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall not use or disclose PHI for the purpose of making a communication about a product or service that encourages recipients of the communication to purchase or use the product or service, unless such communication:
 - 1) Complies with the requirements the definition of marketing contained in 45 CFR § 164.501; and
 - 2) Complies with the requirements of Subparagraphs a, b or c of Section 13406(a)(2) of the HITECH ACT.
- b. COVERED ENTITY shall cooperate with BUSINESS ASSOCIATE to determine if the foregoing requirements are met with respect to any such marketing communication.

ARTICLE III TERM AND TERMINATION

3.1 <u>Term.</u> Subject to the provisions of Sections 3.2 and 3.3, the term of this AGREEMENT shall be the term of the Underlying Agreement.

3.2 Termination of AGREEMENT.

- a. Upon becoming aware of a pattern of activity or practice of either PARTY that constitutes a material breach or violation of obligations under the AGREEMENT, the non-breaching PARTY shall immediately notify the PARTY in breach.
- b. Notification shall be provided in writing and shall specify the nature of the breach.
- c. With respect to such breach or violation, upon receiving notice of the violation the non-breaching PARTY shall:
 - 1) Allow the breaching PARTY thirty (30) days to take reasonable steps to cure such breach or end such violation; and
 - 2) Terminate this AGREEMENT, if cure is either not possible or unsuccessful; and
 - 3) Report the breach or violation to the SECRETARY if such termination is not feasible.

- d. Upon termination of this AGREEMENT for any reason, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall return or destroy all PHI consistent with Section 3.4 as follows:
 - 1) BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall destroy PHI in a manner that renders the PHI unusable, unreadable or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals as specified in the HITECH ACT and shall certify in writing to COVERED ENTITY that such PHI has been destroyed in compliance with such standards; or
 - 2) Return of PHI shall be made in a mutually agreed upon format and timeframe and at no additional cost to BUSINESS ASSOCIATE.
- e. Where return or destruction are not feasible, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall continue to extend the protections of the AGREEMENT to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction of such PHI not feasible.
- 3.3 <u>Termination for Breach.</u> COVERED ENTITY may terminate the Underlying Agreement and this AGREEMENT upon thirty (30) days written notice in the event: (a) BUSINESS ASSOCIATE does not promptly enter into negotiations to amend this AGREEMENT when requested by COVERED ENTITY pursuant to Section 4.2 or (b) BUSINESS ASSOCIATE does not enter into an amendment to this AGREEMENT providing assurances regarding the safeguarding of Health Information that the COVERED ENTITY, deems sufficient to satisfy the standards and requirements of HIPAA and the HITECH ACT.
- 3.4 <u>Disposition of Health Information Upon Termination or Expiration</u>. Upon termination or expiration of this AGREEMENT, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall either return or destroy, in COVERED ENTITY's sole discretion and in accordance with any instructions by COVERED ENTITY, all Health Information in the possession or control of BUSINESS ASSOCIATE and its agents and subcontractors. In such event, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall retain no copies of such Health Information. If BUSINESS ASSOCIATE determines that neither return nor destruction of Health Information is feasible, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall notify COVERED ENTITY of the conditions that make return or destruction infeasible, and may retain Health Information provided that BUSINESS ASSOCIATE: (a) continues to comply with the provisions of this AGREEMENT for as long as it retains Health Information, and (b) further limits uses and disclosures of Health Information to those purposes that make the return or destruction of Health Information infeasible.

ARTICLE IV MISCELLANEOUS

4.1 <u>Indemnification</u>. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Underlying Agreement, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless COVERED ENTITY and COVERED ENTITY's employees, directors, officers, subcontractors or agents against all damages, losses, lost profits, fines, penalties, costs or expenses (including

reasonable attorneys' fees) and all liability to third parties arising from any breach of this AGREEMENT by BUSINESS ASSOCIATE or its employees, directors, officers, subcontractors, agents or other members of BUSINESS ASSOCIATE's workforce. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE's obligation to indemnify shall survive the expiration or termination of this AGREEMENT.

- 4.2 Amendment to Comply with Law. The PARTIES acknowledge that state and federal laws relating to electronic data security and privacy are rapidly evolving and that amendment of this AGREEMENT may be required to provide for procedures to ensure compliance with such developments. The PARTIES specifically agree to take such action as is necessary to implement the standards and requirements of HIPAA, the HITECH ACT and other applicable laws relating to the security or confidentiality of Health Information. The PARTIES understand and agree that COVERED ENTITY must receive satisfactory written assurance from BUSINESS ASSOCIATE that BUSINESS ASSOCIATE will adequately safeguard all Health Information that it receives or creates on behalf of COVERED ENTITY. Upon COVERED ENTITY's request, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE agrees to promptly enter into negotiations with COVERED ENTITY, concerning the terms of any amendment to this AGREEMENT embodying written assurances consistent with the standards and requirements of HIPAA, the HITECH ACT or other applicable laws.
- 4.3 <u>Modification of Agreement</u>. No alteration, amendment, or modification of this AGREEMENT shall be valid or effective unless in writing and signed the PARTIES.
- 4.4 <u>Non-Waiver.</u> A failure of any PARTY to enforce at any time any term, provision or condition of this AGREEMENT, or to exercise any right or option herein, shall in no way operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise preclude any other right or option herein. Waiver of any term, provision or condition of this AGREEMENT shall not be valid unless in writing, signed by the waiving PARTY and only to the extent set forth in such writing.
- 4.5 Agreement Drafted By All Parties. This AGREEMENT is the result of arm's length negotiations between the PARTIES and shall be construed to have been drafted by all PARTIES such that any ambiguities in this AGREEMENT shall not be construed against either PARTY.
- 4.6 <u>Severability</u>. If any provision of this AGREEMENT is found to be invalid or unenforceable by any court, such provision shall be ineffective only to the extent that it is in contravention of applicable laws without invalidating the remaining provisions hereof.
- 4.7 <u>No Third Party Beneficiaries</u>. There are no third party beneficiaries to this AGREEMENT.
- 4.8 <u>Counterparts</u>. This AGREEMENT may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and will become effective and binding upon the PARTIES as of the effective date at such time as all the signatories hereto have signed a counterpart of this AGREEMENT.

4.9 <u>Notices</u> . The PARTIES designates	ate the following to accept notice on their behalf:
If to BUSINESS ASSOC	CIATE:
If to COVERED ENTIT Abigail Stanton, HIPAA 440 Court Street, 2 nd Flo Clearwater, FL 33756	Privacy Officer
construed in accordance with the laws of the actions or proceedings arising in connection w exclusively in the state or federal courts located	This AGREEMENT shall be governed by and a State of Florida. The PARTIES agree that all with this AGREEMENT shall be tried and litigated in or nearest to Pinellas County, Florida.
	he undersigned has caused this AGREEMENT to
be duly executed in its name and on its benaif	effective as of thisday of, 2022.
COVERED ENTITY:	BUSINESS ASSOCIATE:
Pinellas County Human Services	
By:	By:
Print Name:	Print Name:
Print Title:	Print Title:
APPROVED AS TO FORM OFFICE OF COUNTY ATTORNEY	
By:	
Assistant County Attorney	

ATTACHMENT 2 Page 92 of 159

RFP # 22-0317-P(LN)
RFP Title: Adult Drug Court Treatment - Division N and Z

Proposal No: 22-0371-P
Services: Adult Drug Court Treatment – Division N and Z
Group 2 and Group 3
Submitted By: Center for Rational Living

May 5, 2022

The Center for Rational Living is pleased to submit a proposal for the Adult Drug Court Treatment Program for the County of Pinellas. Over the last 25 years, CRL has focused on providing quality treatment to the mandated substance abuse populations. All of CRL's treatment is done under the Department of Children and Family Services License (#1045809) and meets 65D-30 codes. CRL also believes in providing therapy to our clients, and therefore requires all our therapists to have a minimum of a master's level education. This allows us to provide top quality services to our clients and to the drug court.

The Center for Rational Living is bidding for Drug Court Division N and Z, Group 2 (OP II), Group 3 (OP III) as well as post-treatment drug screens for both groups. CRL is currently providing OP II and OP III treatment for Drug Court Division N and these programs are meeting the Pinellas County Drug Court's stipulated structure. This includes but is not limited to; two hour groups, twice a week for a minimum of 24 sessions for OPII and four days a week for a minimum of 48 sessions, placement of clients in group program within 14 days of referral, group times in both the day and night, individual sessions, random drug testing (minimum of once a week with no less than a six panel test), community support substance abuse meetings, referrals to the appropriate outside agencies, submitting treatment updates and recommendations in a timely manner to both the Pinellas County Drug Court and the client's probation officer and providing a CRL representative in the court house for the client's judicial review.

The aforementioned services are understood to meet the drug courts current needs. The Center for Rational Living is willing and able to provide services to both Drug Court divisions N and Z. CRL understands that additional challenges have come up and we have responded to meet these challenges. CRL will continue to keep an ongoing, open dialogue of the needs of the drug court and the clients, to make additional modifications to the treatment and reporting structure as deemed necessary.

Over the last nine years, the Center for Rational Living has helped individuals in the Pinellas County Drug Court system live a healthier, clean and sober life. The staff of the Center for Rational Living has enjoyed working closely with the Drug Court staff in a professional, therapeutic way that has led to so many successful outcomes for people participating in the Drug Court program. CRL looks forward to continuing this mission of providing the best quality services to both the individual client and the Pinellas County Drug Court.

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

Leanne Cura, M.A., President

Leeve Curp mit

RFP # 22-0317-P(LN)

RFP Title: Adult Drug Court Treatment - Division N and Z

ATTACHMENT 2

Page 94 of 159

<u>Section B – Special Conditions</u> 2. Proposal Requirements

a. Qualifications and Experience

The Center for Rational Living is pleased to submit a proposal for the Adult Drug Court Treatment Program for the County of Pinellas. Over the last 32 years, CRL has focused on providing quality treatment to the substance abuse population. With the last 25 focusing on the mandated substance abuse populations. Additionally, starting in October 2007, CRL opened a Pinellas County office utilizing Pinellas county's requirements for outpatient level II and III programs. During this time, the Center for Rational Living was rewarded a partial contract for the drug court's (Division N and Z) outpatient services which began in October 2010, and again in 2017. All of CRL's treatment is done under the Department of Children and Family Services License (#1329AD167801) and meets 65D-30 codes. Additionally, CRL is CARF accredited and meets all standards set by the national accreditation agency. The Center for Rational Living (CRL), Pinellas County vendor number 69821, has been a contracted provider with the Department of Corrections to provide outpatient substance abuse treatment services to offenders since 1996. During that time, CRL has developed positive relationships with the contracted managers and designees to ensure clients receive needed services.

CRL also believes in providing therapy to our clients, and therefore requires all of our therapists to have a minimum of a master level education or a certified additions professional. This allows us to provide top quality services to our clients and to the drug court. CRL will be conducting all therapy with in house clinicians, without the use of subcontractors. Currently on staff we have the following individuals ready and able to work with the drug court clients

- Leanne Cura, M.A., B.C.P.C. President/CEO/Therapist: Ms. Cura has been with the Center for Rational Living since 1999. Ms. Cura has a Master's degree in Mental Health Counseling and Gerontology from the University of South Florida. She has worked with wide range of populations including: court mandated, marriage and family, substance abuse, children and teenagers, hospice, chronically mentally ill, dual diagnosis, and gerontology. She has been extensively trained and utilizes Rational Emotive Behavioral Therapy (REBT), Cognitive Behavioral Therapy (CBT), Solutions Focused Therapy, and Family Systems. Ms. Cura has 24 years' experience in Substance abuse. She has worked with the Department of Corrections, DUI-Counterattack and Drug Court providing outstanding services. Leanne Cura is a Board-Certified Professional Counselor.
- Bradley Callahan, LCSW-Clinical Director/Therapist: Mr. Callahan graduated with honors from the University of South Florida with a Master's degree in Social Work. He has obtained his LCSW and is a Certified Supervisor for Licensure. Mr. Callahan has worked with wide range of populations including: court mandated, military, substance abusing, children and adults, foster family, chronically mentally ill, dual

diagnosis, and mental health. He has been extensively trained and utilizes Accelerated Resolution Therapy (ART), Rational Emotive Behavioral Therapy (REBT), Cognitive Behavioral Therapy (CBT), Solutions Focused Therapy, Reality Therapy, MATRX and Seeking Safety. Mr. Callahan started working at the Center for Rational Living in June of 2006. For the past fifth teen (15) years he has been Director of Substance Abuse Services and a therapist for CRL. Mr. Callahan will perform therapist responsibilities in additional to being a qualified professional/clinical supervisor for this contract. He has extensive experience working with the mandated population and the organizations connected to the clients, i.e., Department of Corrections, Drug Court and the military. Mr. Callahan's dedication in the field of social work has allowed him to fine tune his skills as a highly effective therapist and supervisor. In the last thirteen (13) years he has almost exclusively focused on forming and operating therapeutic programs which serve Drug Court clients.

- Ruth W. McLauchlin, CAP: Ms. McLauchlin graduated from University of South Florida in May 1994 with a Double Bachelor of Arts Degree majoring in Criminology and Psychology. This was followed by a Florida Certification Board Certificate as a Prevention Professional in September 2002, Addiction Professional Certification in July 2011 and International Certification in Alcohol and Drug Counseling in July 2011. She is currently working with drug court mandated clients in both, traditional and intensive substance abuse treatment programs. She has been trained in REBT, CBT, Reality Therapy and Solutions Focus Therapy.
- Patrick Smith, MSW-Clinician: Mr. Smith graduated from Salisbury University with a master's degree in social work and is currently working on his Doctorate in Community Counseling specializing in Traumatology. Mr. Smith started working at CRL in June of 2020. He is currently working with drug court mandated clients in both traditional and intensive substance abuse treatment programs. He has been trained in REBT, CBT, Reality Therapy, Solution Focus Therapy, and Accelerated Resolution Therapy (ART). Currently, Mr. Smith is a registered intern working towards his LCSW.

Upon receiving the contract for outpatient substance abuse services CRL will increase the number of primary counselors as needed. The Center has a core group of trained clinicians who are available to begin the project and ensure there are no waiting lists for assessments or treatment services while additional staff is hired.

The Center for Rational Living is bidding for Drug Court Division N and Z, Group 2 (OP II), Group 3 (OP III), which includes post-treatment drug screens for both groups. CRL is currently providing OP II and OP III treatment for Drug Court Division N and Z, with these programs meeting the Pinellas County Drug Court's stipulated structure. This includes but is not limited to; two hour groups, twice a week for a minimum of 24 sessions for OPII and four days a week for a minimum of 48 sessions, placement of clients in group program within 14 days of referral, group times in both the day and night, individual sessions, random drug testing (minimum of once a week with no less than a six panel test), community support substance abuse meetings, referrals to the appropriate

outside agencies, submitting treatment updates and recommendations in a timely manner to both the Pinellas County Drug Court and the client's probation officer and providing a CRL representative in the court house for the client's judicial review.

To date the Center for Rational Living has been servicing the north and south county population with two office locations (Clearwater and St. Petersburg). Additionally, CRL has a color code system for clients' court ordered to have continued drug screens for up to an additional 40 weeks post-treatment. Community based substance abuse meetings are not a stipulation for treatment but are encouraged by staff for clients to attend.

The aforementioned services are understood to meet the drug courts current needs. Center for Rational Living is willing and able to provide services to both Drug Court divisions N and Z. CRL understands that additional challenges have and will arise and are willing to respond and meet these challenges. CRL will continue to keep an ongoing, open dialogue of the needs of the drug court and the clients, in order to make additional modifications to the treatment and reporting structure as deemed necessary.

Over the last 15 years, the Center for Rational Living has helped individuals in the Pinellas County Drug Court system live a healthier, clean and sober life. The staff of the Center for Rational Living has enjoyed working closely with the Drug Court staff in a professional, therapeutic way that has led to so many successful outcomes for people participating in the Drug Court program. CRL looks forward to continuing this mission of providing the best quality services to both the individual client and the Pinellas County Drug Court.

CRL's references provided in Section D include: Curt Murtha P.A., Daniel Hartpence P.A., Michael Mastrogiovanni P.A, and Marc Pelletir P.A. All have shared past and current clients with CRL for the past several years.

b. Methods for Scope of Work

The Center for Rational Living is submitting this proposal to provide community-based Group 2 (OP2) and Group 3 (OP3) substance abuse treatment services, and for Pinellas County. The Center will provide substance abuse orientation, intakes/assessments, individual counseling, treatment plan reviews, group counseling, aftercare, substance abuse education and referrals to other treatment services. In addition, the Center will provide urine drug screen testing, both during and post treatment as required by the court. All services exceed applicable local, state, and federal regulations. CRL is licensed and audited by the Department of Children and Family Services (License number 1045809) and the last audit in May of 2020 resulted in a score of 98.8% and rating of Exemplary Practices.

The Center for Rational Living has a successful twenty-five-year history of providing substance abuse treatment services to the criminal justice population. CRL utilizes Rational Emotive Behavior Therapy/Cognitive Behavior Therapy as the evidence-based practice to assist clients in addressing substance abuse and criminal thinking. The goal of the approach is to help clients recognize, change and cope with thoughts that lead to self-

defeating behaviors. The structured approach is well received in both group and individual settings and can be done in brief treatment setting. These services will be available in multiple locations in the county. CRL offers both a north county location in Clearwater, FL and a south county location in St Petersburg, FL. Both offices are located on major bus lines for easy accessibility for the drug court clients.

Research has shown that cognitive-behavioral coping skill therapies lead to a significant decrease in rates of duration, frequency, and quantity of one's substance use. In addition, many evidence-based practices for reducing criminal thinking focus on the cognitive behavioral model.

The Center for Rational Living has an outstanding staff all of whom have a master's degree at minimum. All staff members are highly skilled in their ability to provide quality substance abuse treatment. CRL fully understands the requirements put forth in this request for proposal for outpatient services. The Center for Rational Living has demonstrated its ability to manage a contract of this scope. CRL currently and will maintained the required levels of insurance and endorsement in accordance with the insurance requirements in Section C of the RFP. The Center for Rational Living has in place backup systems to protect the personal and health information of the client. CRL follows all HIPAA rules and privacy regulations. CRL has implemented security processes and will continue to do so as technology changes.

The Center for Rational Living's goal is to continue to provide outstanding treatment services for defendants in Adult Drug Court, as well as continue to work closely with Pinellas County Drug Court staff.

c. Statement of Work

CRL will provide the following services to meet or exceed the requirements for Group 2 (OP2) and Group 3 (OP3):

- 1. CRL will conduct OP2 and OP3 to meet and/or exceed all requirements set forth by the RFP.
- 2. OP2 and OP3 will be offered in both north (Clearwater) and south (St. Petersburg) county.
- 3. OP2 and OP3 will be offered during the day and evening/night for both locations.
- 4. CRL will offer weekly orientations for both locations for the OP2 and OP3 programs.
- 5. CRL will conduct orientations for clients on dates set by the drug court. Once the orientation is complete, CRL will conduct an intake/assessment within one week of orientation date. Once intake/orientation is complete, the individual will start the group sessions the following Monday. This will ensure all individual will start within fourteen (14) days from referral.

- 6. OP2 group sessions will be held two (2) times per week for a minimum of thirty-two (32) sessions (sixteen (16) weeks). Each session will be two (2) hour session.
- 7. OP3 group sessions will be offered with a step-down component. OP3 will start with individuals attending group sessions four (4) times per week for a minimum of forty-eight (48) sessions (twelve (12) weeks). Once the forty-eight (48) sessions are completed successfully, the client will step down to two (2) times per week for a minimum of twelve (12) sessions (six (6) weeks)
- 8. CRL will attempt to offer one (1) OP3 time slot specifically for veterans of the US military. Availability of a veterans only group will be based on total referrals and ability to staff the group. This group will be held either at the north or south location based on staffing and court's preference. The veteran's group will meet all of the OP3 criteria listed above.
- 9. CRL will offer individual sessions to clients who could benefit from one-on-one therapy in addition to the group sessions set forth in OP2 and OP3.
- 10. CRL will conduct urine analysis (UA's) on average once every four sessions or one (1) per week using no less than a six (6) panel test. All results will be uploaded into the drug court tracking system.
- 11. CRL will have a color code system in place for clients required to receive post treatment UA's. Client will be required to call a dedicated color code phone line. If the client's color is called they will have between 10am and 7pm to show at their designated office to provide a sample. All results will be uploaded into the drug court tracking system.
- 12. CRL will provide court reports to court staff no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the client's court hearing.
- 13. CRL will provide probation and PTI officers monthly updates of client's status
- 14. CRL will provide monthly invoices for all work rendered in previous month no later than thirty (30) days post end of billing month. The invoice will break down the number of session/post-treatment UA per client, by week and day. Additionally, CRL will provide signed attendance sheets per client to verify dates attended and/or post-treatment UA's received.
- 15. CRL will provide a staff member to attend the weekly court dates. The CRL representative will provide updated information and therapeutic assessment for all clients on the court docket.

d. Compensation

Pricing is inclusive of all requirements for services as specified in the Scope of Work; including compensation for all standard day-to-day administrative, reporting, court

RFP # 22-0317-P(LN)

RFP Title: Adult Drug Court Treatment - Division N and Z

ATTACHMENT 2

Page 99 of 159

appearances, communication with the County or Court, overhead and internal expenses; including administrative support, office supplies, consumables, other consulting services, special presentations, regular and certified postage, computer/soil ware usage, telephone charges, emails, electronic data transmission fees, standard copier usage, and fax charges, etc., (i.e., inclusive of all costs).

Pinellas County will compensate the Contractor for services as specified in the Scope of Service, as delineated below:

Group: 2 Outpatient Level II \$40.00 per counseling session w/ drug screen.

Group: 3 Outpatient Level III \$40.00 per counseling session w/ drug screen.

\$25 per post-treatment drug screen, as ordered.

Offender Co-Payment

A copay additional to the \$40.00 paid by Pinellas County of \$7.00 per counseling session is recommended by the Center for Rational Living. The purpose of the \$7 copay is to minimize the cost of treatment to Drug Court as well as to allow the maximum amount of clients to be served. More importantly, copays create an environment where clients have more of an investment in their treatment and recovery. CRL has had a long history of positive treatment outcomes based on minimal copay investment from clients.

The Court and the Center for Rational Living shall agree upon the co-payment rate in writing. The Court is not responsible for collecting any payment from the offenders, including collection of overdue or unpaid amounts the offender might owe to the Contractor. Offenders will be required to pay all fees in full prior to successfully completing treatment.

The Center for Rational Living shall provide a receipt to the offender for payments made to CRL and shall follow acceptable accounting practices and procedures in processing all co-payments. CRL shall require the offender to sign an attendance report/sign-in sheet for each treatment event. The attendance report/sign -in sheet shall identify the date, time, place, treatment counselor, and co-payment amount paid by the offender. The offender's signature on the attendance/sign-in sheet will verify the offender's attendance at the treatment event (individual session group session, assessment, etc.), and the co-payment the offender made for treatment on that date.

Value-Added Services

CRL will conduct and include the following services at no additional cost to the Court

- 1) Orientations for all clients entering Outpatient II & III
- 2) Substance Abuse Training for Court Staff
- 3) Background checks for all CRL employees

- 4) Court appearances by CRL staff for offender's judicial reviews
- 5) Only Master level counselors.

If requested by the Court and at no cost to the Court, the Center for Rational Living shall provide up to twenty (20) hours of substance abuse training for Court employees. Training topics, time allocations, and the number of Court staff to be determined by the Contractor and the Contract Manager, or designee.

e. Exceptions to RFP

CRL is not asking for any exceptions to the RFP

E. Scope of Work

1. Target Population

- a. The Center for Rational Living was established in 1989, with Vincent E. Parr, PhD. as the president. In 2000, CRL became Curaparr Corporation DBA Center for Rational Living. The primary business is providing substance abuse treatment services at the outpatient level of care, mental health counseling and psychotherapy services.
 - Over the last 25 years, CRL has focused on providing quality treatment to the mandated substance abuse populations. During this time CRL has worked with Department of Probation and Drug Court referred clients. This has allowed CRL to have a comprehensive understanding of the needs of the not only the clients attending CRL, but also their referral sources.
- b. CRL has provided community-based outpatient substance abuse treatment and aftercare services to the criminal justice population since 1996. The Center has provided Outpatient and Intensive Outpatient Day/Night services to the Pinellas County Drug Court Division N (2007-current), Outpatient and Intensive Outpatient Day/Night services to the Pinellas County Drug Court Division Z (2017-current), Department of Corrections (Hillsborough 1996- current and Pinellas County 2007-current), DUI-Counterattack (Hillsborough 1996- current), Sun Coast Safety Counsel (Pinellas 2008-current), clients referred by defense lawyers and self-referred clients. Prior to 1996, CRL provided mental health and substance abuse treatment to self-referred clients since 1973.

CRL held the Day/Night Intensive Outpatient Treatment contract for the Department of Corrections from 1996 to 2008. CRL chose not to continue with contract due to budget cuts.

CRL currently provides services for clients referred from Pinellas County Drug Court Division N, DUI-Counterattack (Hillsborough), Department of Corrections (Hillsborough and Pinellas County, FL), Sun Coast Safety Counsel (Pinellas County) and self-referred clients.

CRL utilizes available community resources to link clients with services not provided at the Center. In the event a client has a need to additional services, the staff have working relationships with a variety of community resources such as the local detoxification providers, mental health centers, providers of services for clients with HIV. CRL is aware of the array of issues criminal justice clients may be experiencing and understands the key to successful outcomes for substance abuse treatment as reducing recidivism is in networking and partnering with community resources.

CRL has an existing group of counselors who are committed to the Center's goal of providing quality services. The existing staff will be immediately available to provide services outlined in this proposal. In addition to their experience in providing substance abuse treatment, the counselors have backgrounds in, cognitive behavioral counseling for anger reduction, faith-based counseling, and holistic approaches to recovery.

CRL has consistently had positive results on annual monitoring visits/evaluations with the Department of Corrections for past contracts held by CRL and by Division of Children and Family licensure audits.

The outpatient group curriculum will utilize evidence-based practices associated with Rational Emotive Behavioral Therapy and Cognitive Behavioral Therapy. The minimum credentials of the group facilitator will be a master's level inter in the counseling field with prior experience in counseling and/or working with the criminal justice population. They will be supervised by a qualified licensed professional following the guidelines found in 65D-30.

For the last ten (10) years CRL has been providing services to anywhere from sixty (60) to one hundred twenty (120) Pinellas County Drug Court clients at a given time. During said time, CRL has provided group therapy, individual therapy, UA's, court reports and a weekly court liaison. This experience has allowed CRL to structure their outpatient programs to specifically meet the needs of the Pinellas County Drug Court and their clientele.

c. Starting in October 2007, CRL opened a Pinellas County office utilizing Pinellas county's requirements for outpatient level II and III programs. During this time, the Center for Rational Living was rewarded a partial contract for the drug court's (Division N and Z) outpatient services which began in October 2010, and again in 2017.

All of CRL's treatment is done under the Department of Children and Family Services License (#1329AD167801) and meets 65D-30 codes. Additionally, CRL is CARF accredited and meets all standards set by the national accreditation agency. The Center has provided Outpatient and Intensive Outpatient Day/Night services to the Pinellas County Drug Court Division N (2007-current), Outpatient and Intensive Outpatient Day/Night services to the Pinellas County Drug Court Division Z (2017-current), Department of Corrections (Hillsborough 1996-current and Pinellas County 2007-current), DUI-Counterattack (Hillsborough 1996- current), Sun Coast Safety Counsel (Pinellas 2008-current), clients referred by defense lawyers and self-referred clients. Prior to 1996, CRL provided mental health and substance abuse treatment to self-referred clients since 1973.

d. CRL will provide all substance abuse therapeutic services for appropriately referred clients under the CRL umbrella of care. For clients who require additional services, CRL will utilize the local network of mental health organizations, transitional housing, residential substance abuse treatment providers, occupational services, department of corrections, housing serves and any and all services which can help the success of the individual.

Consultation or referral arrangements will be made where psychiatric, medical or other social services are deemed appropriate. CRL shall refer all offenders assessed who require a treatment modality, other than Outpatient II or III Substance Abuse treatment services, to an appropriate Court treatment program. Exceptions to this requirement shall be considered on a case- by-case basis and shall be approved, in writing, by the Contract Manager.

2. Services to be Performed

b. Group 2 – Outpatient Level II Services for Drug Court

The services to be provided under this Contract shall include an Outpatient Level II Substance Abuse Treatment Program for adult offenders on community supervision with the Pinellas County Drug Court (PCDC). The program shall provide quality short term substance abuse treatment for offenders who are not in need of residential treatment and are not in prison confinement. All services will be provided in accordance with Chapter 65D-30, Florida Administrative code. In addition to the standards proscribed in 65D-30.010(1), each defendant/respondent will be provided with counseling services that are consistent with Drug Court Level II outpatient treatment. The following required services exceed the standards for outpatient treatment as defined in 65D-30.010(1).

The Center for Rational Living will provide the following services to defendants and respondents within 14 days of receipt of Court referral:

i. Services will be offered in both north and south Pinellas County

- ii. Group counseling shall be available day and night. Services will be provided in both north and south Pinellas County.
- iii. Group counseling shall consist of a minimum of sixteen (16) weeks, two (2) times per week, two (2) hour sessions of treatment, meeting the criteria for an Outpatient II program set forth by RFP. Individual sessions will be offered on an as needed basis.
- iv. Screening: The Center for Rational Living conducts intake screenings of offenders within 10 days or less of receipt of the Drug Court's referral. The purpose of the intake screening is to determine the offender's appropriateness and eligibility for the recommended substance abuse treatment services.

The rationale for the recommendation or action taken as a result of the screening will be documented and shared with the referring Drug Court and/or probation officer. All offenders identified during the intake screening who are identified as having a substance abuse problem (by admitted drug usage, positive urinalysis, a drug offense, significant other reports, etc.) will be entered into the appropriate treatment level regardless of whether the offender admits to a drug problem or desires to enter treatment.

If requested by the Court or Department of Corrections, a urinalysis will be completed during the intake process if the screening indicates the offender is appropriate for Outpatient Substance Abuse Treatment Services. The urinalysis will be done at no cost to the Court or Department of Corrections.

In the event an offender fails to appear for a scheduled appointment, the Center for Rational Living will advise the referring Court or probation officer via email.

Assessment: Each client who attends an intake screening appointment will complete a physical health history and psychosocial assessment. The forms for the physical health history and psychosocial assessment will conform to the requirements of Rule 65D-30, F.A.C. and any revisions/updates. The physical health assessment and psychosocial assessment will be completed within the time frames specified by Rule 65D-30, F.A.C. and any revisions/ updates.

Center for Rational Living will notify the Court if any subsequent recommendations are made.

Written Progress Reports for each offender in treatment are to be completed by the Contractor on a monthly basis and distributed to the Supervising Officer by the first (1st) day of the following month. Additionally, Contractor will submit to the Drug Court reports at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the offender's judicial review. Contractor will follow up the report by attending the judicial review to provide any additional information needed by the court. At minimum,

ATTACHMENT 2 Page 104 of 159

RFP # 22-0317-P(LN)
RFP Title: Adult Drug Court Treatment - Division N and Z

the progress report must include information on the offender's drug screens, participation, attendance, progress in the program, and prognosis.

v. Within 30 days of referral by the Court, the individual treatment plan will at a minimum contain goals or objectives addressing substance use, criminal thinking, the offender's financial responsibilities for treatment services and the fact that the offender is on community supervision. A sample individualized outpatient treatment plan is included in this tab.

Treatment plan reviews will be conducted in accordance with the requirements and time frames (within every thirty (30) days) of Rule 65D-60, F.A.C. and any revisions/updates. The treatment plan reviews will be completed with the counselor and offender during a face-to-face session. The treatment plan reviews will be reviewed by a qualified professional.

CRL shall notify the offender's supervising Probation Officer, PTI Officer and Court in writing of an offender's discharge from the program.

Additionally, a written Discharge Report shall be completed by CRL for each offender discharged from the program and submitted to the offender's supervising party and PCDC. This Discharge report must specifically state when an offender has been successfully or unsuccessfully discharged from their treatment program and must outline an aftercare plan and/or additional treatment recommendations.

Offenders may be discharged from the program when one of the following conditions is met:

Successful Discharge

An offender must meet the following criteria to receive a successful discharge from the program:

- 1) Offender must have successfully completed all required components of the program described in this contract; and
- 2) Offender must have demonstrated the ability to appropriately cope with everyday stress without resorting to substance abuse.
- 3) Client has fulfilled or made significant progress toward treatment plan goals

Unsuccessful Discharge

Offenders may receive an unsuccessful discharge from the treatment program for violation or for non-compliance with program rules and/or for failure to meet the requirements of a successful discharge as outlined above. The Contractor shall take the following steps in order to complete an unsuccessful discharge on an offender:

- 1) The decision to discharge shall take place following a clinical staffing session;
- 2) The final decision shall be made by the Clinical Qualified Supervisor
- 3) The supervising Probation Officer, PT Officer and PCDC shall be notified; and

4) Supporting rationale for the discharge shall be documented in the offender's clinical file.

Administrative Discharge

- 1) a medical or mental health condition which prohibits an offender from participation in the program;
- 2) expiration of the offender's sentence
- 3) death of an offender; or
- 4) other approved reasons outside the control of the offender or program and unrelated to program compliance
- vi. Random Urine Drug Screenings or Oral Swab Drug Screenings will be given on a random basis at least weekly for multiple drugs during the course of treatment and up to 40 weeks post treatment on a frequency basis as ordered by the Court.

CRL shall conduct random and unannounced urinalysis at a minimum of one urinalysis every seven (7) days on average for each offender participating in accordance with Drug Court protocol. All test results shall be reported to the supervising Probation officer in monthly reports and to the court at the offender's judicial review. Documentation of all test results shall be maintained in the offender's clinical file and recorded on the drug courts urinalysis log detailing the dates, drugs for which the offender was tested, and the results of all urinalyses for each offender.

CRL will use a "full panel" test (i.e., test for a minimum of six (6) drugs) for all offenders for the course of treatment. Any deviation from this testing procedure must be approved by the Contract Manager or designee.

In the event of a positive, the treatment counselor is required to contact the supervising Officer, Court and to convene a meeting of the treatment team to discuss sanctions to be applied. The treatment staff shall notify the supervising Officer, in writing, of all positive urinalysis results and admissions to drug usage within seventy-two (72) hours of knowledge thereof by the Contractor and shall notify the Drug Court at the offender's judicial review.

vii. Participation by clients in community self-help groups, such as NA or AA, will be encouraged. Attendance at these meetings shall not, however, constitute part of the requirement for substance abuse counseling.

viii. Counseling groups will be no larger than 20 persons per group.

RFP # 22-0317-P(LN) RFP Title: Adult Drug Court Treatment - Division N and Z

CRL will provide Adult Drug Court with the following:

- i. Center for Rational Living will provide notification of client's arrival for screening process inclusive of client's acceptance or non-acceptance into treatment setting.
- ii. Center for Rational Living will provide notification of treatment start date to Drug Court.
- iii. Center for Rational will provide evaluation recommendations to the Drug Court.
- iv. Center for Rational Living will provide reports for judicial reviews no later than 48 hours prior to a regularly schedules judicial review hearing (including attendance, UDS results, treatment progress reports); Reports will be electronically submitted to the drug court via secure connections, which can include direct submission through the drug court's web-based drug court case management system.
- v. Center for Rational Living will provide immediate notification of termination, discharge, or elopements.
- vi. Center for Rational Living will provide immediate notification of violation of terms of treatment (i.e., failed drug screens, missed treatment appointments, etc.)
- vii. Center for Rational Living will provide immediate notification of hospitalization or significant disruption of treatment process
- viii. Center for Rational Living will provide discharge information will be supplied to the Court, and a copy will be forwarded to the Department of Corrections
- ix. Center for Rational Living will make court appearances as required by the court.
- x. Center for Rational Living will provide client-related data and status information in a manner and format as required by the Court.
- xi. Center for Rational Living will provide a weekly written report to Court on treatment availability status and size of wait lists.

c. Group 3 - Outpatient Level III Services for Drug Court

The services to be provided under this Contract shall include an Outpatient Level III Substance Abuse Treatment Program for adult offenders on community supervision with the Pinellas County Drug Court (PCDC). The program shall provide quality short term substance abuse treatment for offenders who are not in need of residential treatment and are not in prison confinement. All services will be provided in accordance with Chapter 65D-30, Florida Administrative code. In addition to the standards proscribed in 65D-30.010(1), each defendant/respondent will be provided with counseling services that are consistent with Drug Court Level II outpatient treatment. The following required services exceed the standards for outpatient treatment as defined in 65D-30.010(1).

The Center for Rational Living will provide the following services to defendants and respondents within 14 days of receipt of Court referral:

- i. Services will be offered in both north and south Pinellas County
- ii. Group counseling shall be available day and night. Services will be provided in both north and south Pinellas County.
- iii. Group counseling shall consist of a minimum of twelve (12) weeks of four (4) times per week group sessions followed by six (6) weeks of two (2) times per week group sessions. All groups will be two (2) hour sessions of treatment, meeting the criteria for an Outpatient III program set forth by RFP. Individual sessions will be offered on an as needed basis.
- iv. Screening: The Center for Rational Living conducts intake screenings of offenders within 10 days or less of receipt of the Drug Court's referral. The purpose of the intake screening is to determine the offender's appropriateness and eligibility for the recommended substance abuse treatment services.

The rationale for the recommendation or action taken as a result of the screening will be documented and shared with the referring Drug Court and/or probation officer. All offenders identified during the intake screening who are identified as having a substance abuse problem (by admitted drug usage, positive urinalysis, a drug offense, significant other reports, etc.) will be entered into the appropriate treatment level regardless of whether the offender admits to a drug problem or desires to enter treatment.

If requested by the Court or Department of Corrections, a urinalysis will be completed during the intake process if the screening indicates the offender is appropriate for Outpatient Substance Abuse Treatment Services. The urinalysis will be done at no cost to the Court or Department of Corrections.

In the event an offender fails to appear for a scheduled appointment, the Center for Rational Living will advise the referring Court or probation officer via email.

Assessment: Each client who attends an intake screening appointment will complete a physical health history and psychosocial assessment. The forms for the physical health history and psychosocial assessment will conform to the requirements of Rule 65D-30, F.A.C. and any revisions/updates. The physical health assessment and psychosocial assessment will be completed within the time frames specified by Rule 65D-30, F.A.C. and any revisions/ updates.

Center for Rational Living will notify the Court if any subsequent recommendations are made.

Written Progress Reports for each offender in treatment are to be completed by the Contractor on a monthly basis and distributed to the Supervising Officer by the first (1st) day of the following month. Additionally, Contractor will submit to the Drug Court reports at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the offender's judicial review. Contractor will follow up the report by attending the judicial review to provide any additional information needed by the court. At minimum, the progress report must include information on the offender's drug screens, participation, attendance, progress in the program, and prognosis.

v. Within 30 days of referral by the Court, the individual treatment plan will at a minimum contain goals or objectives addressing substance use, criminal thinking, the offender's financial responsibilities for treatment services and the fact that the offender is on community supervision. A sample individualized outpatient treatment plan is included in this tab.

Treatment plan reviews will be conducted in accordance with the requirements and time frames (within every thirty (30) days) of Rule 65D-60, F.A.C. and any revisions/updates. The treatment plan reviews will be completed with the counselor and offender during a face-to-face session. The treatment plan reviews will be reviewed by a qualified professional.

CRL shall notify the offender's supervising Probation Officer, PTI Officer and Court in writing of an offender's discharge from the program.

Additionally, a written Discharge Report shall be completed by CRL for each offender discharged from the program and submitted to the offender's supervising party and PCDC. This Discharge report must specifically state where an offender has been successfully or unsuccessfully discharged from their treatment program and must outline an aftercare plan and/or additional treatment recommend at ions.

Offenders may be discharged from the program when one of the following conditions is met:

Successful Discharge

An offender must meet the following criteria to receive a successful discharge from the program:

- 1) Offender must have successfully completed all required components of the program described in this contract; and
- 2) Offender must have demonstrated the ability to appropriately cope with everyday stress without resorting to substance abuse.
- 3) Client has fulfilled or made significant progress toward treatment plan goals

Unsuccessful Discharge

Offenders may receive an unsuccessful discharge from the treatment program for violation or for non-compliance with program rules and/or for failure to meet the requirements of a successful discharge as outlined above. The Contractor shall take the following steps in order to complete an unsuccessful discharge on an offender:

- 1) The decision to discharge shall take place following a clinical staffing session;
- 2) The final decision shall be made by the Clinical Qualified Supervisor
- 3) The supervising Probation Officer, PT Officer and PCDC shall be notified; and
- 4) Supporting rationale for the discharge shall be documented in the offender's clinical file.

Administrative Discharge

- 1) a medical or mental health condition which prohibits an offender from participation in the program;
- 2) expiration of the offender's sentence
- 3) death of an offender; or
- 4) other approved reasons outside the control of the offender or program and unrelated to program compliance
- vi. Random Urine Drug Screenings or Oral Swab Drug Screenings will be given on a random basis at least weekly for multiple drugs during the course of treatment and up to 40 weeks post treatment on a frequency basis as ordered by the Court.

CRL shall conduct random and unannounced urinalysis at a minimum of one urinalysis every seven (7) days on average for each offender participating in accordance with Drug Court protocol. All test results shall be reported to the supervising Probation officer in monthly reports and to the court at the offender's judicial review. Documentation of all test results shall be maintained in the offender's clinical file and recorded on the drug courts urinalysis log detailing the dates, drugs for which the offender was tested, and the results of all urinalyses for each offender.

CRL will use a "full panel" test (i.e., test for a minimum of six (6) drugs) for all offenders for the course of treatment. Any deviation from this testing procedure must be approved by the Contract Manager or designee.

In the event of a positive, the treatment counselor is required to contact the supervising Officer, Court and to convene a meeting of the treatment team to discuss sanctions to be applied. The treatment staff shall notify the supervising Officer, in writing, of all positive urinalysis results and admissions to drug usage within seventy-two (72) hours of knowledge thereof by the Contractor and shall notify the Drug Court at the offender's judicial review.

vii. Consultation or referral arrangements will be made where psychiatric, medical or other social services are deemed appropriate. CRL shall refer all offenders assessed who require a treatment modality, other than Outpatient III Substance Abuse treatment services, to an appropriate Court treatment program. Exceptions to this requirement shall be considered on a case- by-case basis and shall be approved, in writing, by the Contract Manager.

viii. Participation by clients in community self-help groups, such as NA or AA, will be encouraged. Attendance at these meetings shall not, however, constitute part of the requirement for substance abuse counseling.

ix. Counseling groups will be no larger than 20 persons per group.

CRL will provide Adult Drug Court with the following:

- i. Center for Rational Living will provide notification of client's arrival for screening process inclusive of client's acceptance or non-acceptance into treatment setting.
- ii. Center for Rational Living will provide notification of treatment start date to Drug Court.
- iii. Center for Rational will provide evaluation recommendations to the Drug Court.
- iv. Center for Rational Living will provide reports for judicial reviews no later than 48 hours prior to a regularly schedules judicial review hearing (including attendance, UDS results, treatment progress reports); Reports will be electronically submitted to the drug court via secure connections, which can include direct submission through the drug court's web-based drug court case management system.
- v. Center for Rational Living will provide immediate notification of termination, discharge or elopements.

- vi. Center for Rational Living will provide immediate notification of violation of terms of treatment (i.e., failed drug screens, missed treatment appointments, etc.)
- vii. Center for Rational Living will provide immediate notification of hospitalization or significant disruption of treatment process
- viii. Center for Rational Living will provide discharge information will be supplied to the Court, and a copy will be forwarded to the Department of Corrections
- ix. Center for Rational Living will make court appearances as required by the court.
- x. Center for Rational Living will provide client-related data and status information in a manner and format as required by the Court.
- xi. Center for Rational Living will provide a weekly written report to Court on treatment availability status and size of wait lists.

3. Approach (Best Practices, Models, Timeline):

- a. CRL currently has a Pinellas County OP2, OP3 and color code post-treatment drug programs and staff in place. If rewarded the upcoming contract, CRL will be able to adjust and continue current services to deliver services immediately.
 - i. The current staff has an established working relationship with the Pinellas County Drug Court staff going back fourteen (14) years. CRL will continue to have open dialogue with the judge, lawyers, drug court manager and case managers. This communication takes place via email, phone and in person. CRL will enter all UA results and court reports into the drug court database. While having daily interaction via email and phone. In person communication will occur during pre-court staffing, scheduled meetings and site visits.
 - ii. CRL has worked closely with the Pinellas County Drug Court in many crisis situations since first working together in 2007. CRL has open communication with the drug court team and will alert them of any and all crisis situations. CRL has utilized the walk-in policy implemented by the court to staff and have the client seen by the judge immediately. If the situation is of immediate danger, CRL will call the proper agencies to ensure the safety of the individual and others.
- b. The Center for Rational Living has a successful twenty-five-year history of providing substance abuse treatment services to the criminal justice population. CRL utilizes Rational Emotive Behavior Therapy/Cognitive Behavior Therapy as the evidence-based practice to assist clients in addressing substance abuse and criminal thinking.

The goal of the approach is to help clients recognize, change and cope with thoughts that lead to self-defeating behaviors. The structured approach is well received in both group and individual settings and can be done in brief treatment setting.

Research has shown that cognitive-behavioral coping skill therapies lead to a significant decrease in rates of duration, frequency, and quantity of one's substance use. In addition, many evidence-based practices for reducing criminal thinking focus on the cognitive behavioral model.

- c. Clients will enter the OP2 or OP3 treatment level which will consist of group sessions as outlined in Section E, 2, b, ii and Section E, 2, b, iii. Prior to starting group sessions, each client will attend an assessment which will identify the individual needs of each client. This will be followed up with a treatment plan update within every 30days. Client's treatment will be geared towards the needs presented by each individual. This individual approach can include topics discussed in group sessions and additional individual sessions when the groups are not meeting the needs of the client.
- d. CRL utilizes Rational Emotive Behavioral Therapy approach which research has shown cognitive-behavioral coping skill therapies lead to a significant decrease in rates of duration, frequency and quantity of one's substance use. The therapeutic model used along with random UA's helps the client develop accountability, along with healthy living practices.
- e. CRL recognizes the fluid nature of individuals and agencies. Due to this, CRL is constantly evaluating current situations and adapting to meet the growing and changing needs of our clients and referring agencies. This is done by continuous communication with the drug court and department of corrections. Once an area of need is identified, CRL works with said entities to find ways to best meet the needs of our clients and referring agencies.
- f. CRL attends court sessions on a weekly basis. While in court, CRL staff often speaks with potential clients as to the nature of the program and what the client is hoping to achieve while in drug court. CRL reaches out to clients when appropriate to help assist in the clients success and build a healthy therapeutic relationship.
- g. CRL offers a post treatment color code UA system which the drug court utilizes for continued monitoring of drug court clients. Additionally, CRL is open to clients who complete the OP2 and OP3 programs contacting and engaging with CRL staff. CRL has the "alumni status" which allows a client to come and sit in their old group for no charge. CRL doesn't want financials to be a barrier for an individual reaching out for help. Once the client reaches out, CRL will sit with the client and help construct a treatment plan for the individual. This can include but is not limited to attending 12 step meetings, increasing support system or re-enrolling in a program.

- h. With CRL having an established drug court OP2 and OP3 program, there are minimal, if any, barriers to implementing the contracted programs. CRL will use communication with the drug court team to identify any barriers and to overcome them.
- i. CRL has demonstrated with its current and past contacts with the drug court a willingness to attend off sight court dates and meetings. CRL will continue to have a staff representative at judicial review court dates and any meetings with the court staff.
- j. CRL currently has two locations in Pinellas County that meet all of DCF 65D-30 requirements for a substance abuse facility. These locations are fully licensed by DCF and are operating under all local and state laws. CRL has locations established in Clearwater and St Petersburg to allow accessibility to both the north and south populations of the county. Additionally, CRL's locations are situated on major bus lines allowing accessibility for individuals without personal transportation.
- k. CRL will provide foreign language interpreters in order to effectively communicate with clients during delivery of service when needed.
- 1. CRL is requesting a \$7.00 per session co-pay additional the \$40.00 per session contracted rate. This co-pay will be made known to all clients at time of orientation. CRL will be responsible for all collections of co-pays. All payments are recorded on the client's daily sheet which will be provided to the court for billing purposes. Receipts will be provided to clients for payments made.
- m. CRL will provide drug court with weekly orientation calendar logs for each location. The log will include the clients name, treatment level, phone number and court ID number. CRL will update the court post orientation of which individuals attended or no showed. For the individuals who showed, CRL will provide a start date. This start date will be no more than fourteen (14) after the referred date.
- n. Qualifications of treatment staff are an important component of the Outpatient Level II & III Substance Abuse Treatment Program. All professional staff/agencies performing Outpatient Level II & III Substance Abuse Treatment services shall do so in accordance with all applicable local, state, and federal laws, rules, and regulations. The Contractor shall provide the Court a copy of the counselor's and supervisor's resumes upon request.

Acceptable Counselor Qualifications are as follows:

- (1) a master's degree from an accredited college or university in any of the social sciences and one (1) years of professional experience in chemical addiction counseling; or
- (2) a master's degree from an accredited college or university in any unrelated area of study and two (2) years of professional experience in chemical addiction counseling; or

- (3) a Ph.D. from an accredited college or university in chemical addiction counseling; or
- (4) a Ph.D. from an accredited college or university in any unrelated area of study and one (1) year of professional experience in chemical addiction counseling; or
- (5) Certification as one of the following: Certified Addictions Professional (CAP), Certified Criminal Justice Addictions Professional (CCJAP), Certificate Associate Addictions Professional 1 or 2 (CCJAAI); or
- (6) CRL shall maintain job descriptions for all positions.

CRL Staff Scheduling

CRL shall provide staff to deliver the services described in this Contract. CRL 's staff shall be scheduled to work during the hours offenders are available, including morning, day and evening hours, so that services are convenient for the offenders as determined by the Contract Manager, or designee.

CRL Staffing Levels

CRL shall ensure the provision of sufficient staff and treatment space to provide the services listed at the approved site, based on appropriate funding, in order to ensure that there will be no waiting lists for assessments or treatment services. The Contractor shall comply with all counselor-to-client ratios established in applicable sections of Rule 65D-30, F.A.C.

Staff Vacancies and Absences

CRL shall have and utilize a written back-up plan and staff fill- in for assessment and treatment staff who may be absent from work (i.e., unexpected emergency, illness, or vacation) to ensure that treatment services to offenders (i.e., assessments, groups, and individual sessions) will not be canceled or rescheduled. CRL shall inform the contract Manager (or their designee), in writing, of all staffing emergencies, vacancies, changes, etc., within five (5) working days. Quality Assurance In accordance with Rule 65D-30.004(2), F.A.C., CRL shall have a quality assurance/quality management program which complies with the requirements established in Sections 397.4 19, Florida Statutes, and which ensures the use of a continuous quality improvement process.

- i. CRL will have no more than a 45 to 1 ration of client to clinician. This is the acceptable ratio outlined for group therapy in DCF's 65D-30
- ii. Bradley Callahan, LCSW will be the clinical supervisor for the drug court OP2 and OP3 programs. He will supervise all program clinicians and be the point of contact the drug court manager. Additionally, Mr. Callahan will maintain a case load of drug court clients and attend the court judicial reviews. Currently on CRL staff, Ruth McLauchlin, CAP and Patrick Smith, MSW Registered Intern will be clinicians working with

the OP2 and OP3 clients. CRL will be looking to hire an additional clinician to fulfill the final opening.

- iii. CRL will be able to accept referrals day one of the contract and will be fully staffed within forty-five (45) days of contract award.
- o. CRL will track staff hours and time spent working on drug court contract on a weekly time sheet.
- p. In addition to paper files, CRL uses a secure computer program to track client's bio data, treatment start and end dates, treatment level and last group attended. Additional, CRL is familiar with the drug court ETO data system for communicating UA results and court reports. All information is stored and shared in accordance with HIPAA Laws.
- q. CRL has a series of surveys the clients will take the beginning, middle and end of treatment to self-report their treatment experience and how one is progressing or regressing. CRL also monitors the clients progress with their monthly treatment plan updates and court judicial review. With the monthly monitoring CRL can adjust treatment to help meet the needs of the client. Completion of the program will require sustained absences for a minimum of 30 days. Once an individual completes the program successfully, CRL has the color code system in place the drug court can order for a client to have continued accountability.

Page 3 of 39

CONTRACTOR MUST COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING

CONTRACTORS ARE CAUTIONED THAT THE POLICY OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, PINELLAS COUNTY, IS TO ACCEPT THE LOWEST RESPONSIVE AND RESPONSIBLE SUBMITTAL RECEIVED MEETING SPECIFICATIONS. NO CHANGES REQUESTED BY A CONTRACTOR DUE TO AN ERROR IN PRICING WILL BE CONSIDERED AFTER THE SOLICITATION OPENING DATE AS ADVERTISED. BY SIGNING THIS SUBMITTAL FORM, CONTRACTORS ARE ATTESTING TO THEIR AWARENESS OF THIS POLICY AND ARE AGREEING TO ALL OTHER SOLICITATION TERMS AND CONDITIONS, INCLUDING ANY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS CONTAINED

HEREIN.		
CONTRACTOR NAME	Curaparr	_ (As shown on W-9)
DBA:	Center for Retional Living	_ (If applicable)
MAILING ADDRESS:	730 S. Sterling Ave Suite 209	_ (As shown on W-9)
CITY / STATE / ZIP:	Tampe, FL. 33609	_ (As shown on W-9)
CONTRACTOR EMAI	L: beallahan@crl-recovery.com	_ (Primary Company Email Address)
REMIT TO NAME:	Center for Retional Living	_ (As Shown on contractors Invoice)
FEIN#:	20-0221678	_ (As shown on W-9)
PAYMENT TERMS: 1	00 % 30 DAYS, NET 45 (PER F.S. 218.73)	
DEPOSIT, IF REQUIR	RED, IS ATTACHED IN THE AMOUNT OF \$	
	ntity is needed when you submit your quote, especially howns. Please visit dos.myflorida.com/sunbiz/ for this information from the complex transfer of	
CONTRACTOR CONT	TACT INFORMATION	
CONTACT NAME:	Bradley Cellchen	
PHONE NUMBER:	727-230-9157	
FAX NUMBER:	727-216-8742	
EMAIL ADDRESS:	beallehen ecrl-recovery.com	
	O ABIDE BY ALL TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS RE URANCE REQUIREMENTS & CERTIFY I AM AUTHORIZE	하는 어림이 가게 하나 없는 물을 하다면 하는 것이 되었다. 그리는 사람들이 되었다면 하나 없는 것이다.
AUTHORIZED SIGNA	TURE: 17 Cell cusu	
PRINT NAME: B.	edley Cellehen	
TITLE: Direct	or	
SEE SECTION F FOR	R PRICING SUMMARY	
THIS FORM MUST B	E RETURNED WITH YOUR RESPONSE	

Adult Drug Court Treatment - Division N and Z

ATTACHMENT 2 Page 117 of 159

Page 21 of 39

SECTION D – VENI	DOR REFERENCES
SECTION D - CONTRACTOR REFERENCE	CES
THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION IS REQUIRED IN ORDE PROPERLY EVALUATED.	R THAT YOUR PROPOSAL MAY BE REVIEWED AND
COMPANY NAME: Center for Retional	Living
LENGTH OF TIME COMPANY HAS BEEN IN BUSINESS:	49 years
BUSINESS ADDRESS: 50 3. Belcher Rd. Suit	re 120 Cleanater FL 33765
HOW LONG IN PRESENT LOCATION: 10 years	
TELEPHONE NUMBER: 727-230-9157	
FAX NUMBER: 727- 216-8742	
TOTAL NUMBER OF CURRENT EMPLOYEES:	ULL TIME PART TIME
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES YOU PLAN TO USE TO SERVI	CE THIS CONTRACT:
All references will be contacted by a County Designee via en applicable before an evaluation decision is made.	nail, fax or phone call to obtain answers to questions, as
Bidders must have experience in work of the same or similar County. Proposer must furnish a reference list of at least four services. EITHER LOCAL COMMERCIAL OR GOVERNMEN GOVERNMENT REFERENCES WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED CONTRACT SERVICES FOR:	r (4) customers for whom they have performed similar NTAL REFERENCE(S) (PINELLAS COUNTY
1.	2.
COMPANY: R. Curtis Murtha, NA	COMPANY: Clay Law
ADDRESS: 304 So. Belcher Rd Ste B	ADDRESS: 10812 Gandy Blud N StPete FL 337
TELEPHONE/FAX: + PL 393711-142-2800	
CONTACT: Auct Mucha	CONTACT: Daviel Hortpunce
CONTACT EMAIL:	CONTACT EMAIL: danie 1@ tampatay forda kuyers.
COMPANY EMAIL ADDRESS: Jan 100. Com	COMPANY EMAIL ADDRESS:
3.	4.
COMPANY: MICHAEL MASTEUGIOVANNI MASTEUGIOVANUI LAW	COMPANY: Russa Pelletar & Sullian PA
ADDRESS: 239 EWING AVE	ADDRESS: 9721 Executive Ch D. N #170
TELEPHONE/EAX: - 547- 3454	TELEPHONE/FAX: 717-578-0303
CONTACT: MICHAEL MASTROCIONANNI	CONTACT: Marc PelleTiv
CONTACT EMAIL: MIKE @ MASTRULAW. COM	CONTACT EMAIL: Manc C Rps/Aw. com
COMPANY EMAIL ADDRESS:	COMPANY EMAIL ADDRESS:

Page 33 of 39

SECTION F - PROPOSAL SUMMARY

SECTION F - PROPOSAL SUMMARY

Proposal Title: ADULT DRUG COURT TREATMENT - DIVISIONS N and Z

Proposal Number: 22-0371-P(LN)

Pricing is to be ALL INCLUSIVE of all requirements for services as specified in the Scope of Work, including, but not limited to:

- · Compensation for all standard day-to-day administration
- Reporting
- Court Appearances
- Communications with the County or Court
- · Overhead and internal expenses, including:
 - administrative support
 - office supplies
 - consumables
 - other consulting services
 - special presentations
 - regular and certified postage
 - travel

- computer/software usage
- telephone charges
- e-mails
- electronic data transmission fees
- standard copier usage
- fax charges

GROU P	DESCRIPTION	UNIT COST	s 1/4
1	Residential Drug Court Treatment Services	s N/A	Per Bed Per Day
4	Aftercare Counseling Sessions	s N/A	Optional Services- Per Counseling Session
2	Outpatient Level II Services for Drug Court	s 4000	Per counseling session with requisite drug screening and ALL-INCLUSIVE services
		s 25 00	Optional Services - Per post-treatment drug screen as ordered
3	Outpatient Level III Services for Drug Court	\$ 4000	Per counseling session with requisite drug screening and ALL-INCLUSIVE services
		s 25°°	Optional Services - Per post-treatment drug screen as ordered
4	Substance Abuse / Mental Health Screening Assessments	s N/A	Per Assessment
5	Transitional Housing	s N/A	Per Bed Day

OPTIONAL SERVICES WILL NOT BE USED IN COMPENSATION SCORING

Note: The referrals to different types of services may vary based on the needs of each client.

^{*}Referral level of clients may fluctuate.

ATTACHMENT 2 Page 119 of 159

Page 34 of 39

SECTION F - PROPOSAL SUMMARY

DELIVERY 30 DAYS AFTER RECEIPT OF ORDER

Center for Retional

An award may not be issued without proof that your firm is registered with the Florida Division of Corporations, as per Florida Statute §607.1501 www.flsenate.gov/Laws/Statutes/2011/607.1501.

A foreign corporation (foreign to the State of Florida) may not transact business in this state until it obtains a certificate of authority from the Department of State. Please visit dos.myflorida.com/sunbiz/ for this information on how to become registered.

Company Name

Adult Drug Court Treatment - Division N and Z

ATTACHMENT 2 Page 120 of 159

Page 37 of 39

SECTION G - ADDENDUM

SECTION G - ADDENDUM

PLEASE ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF ADDENDA FOR THIS SOLICITATION BY SIGNING AND DATING BELOW:

ADDENDA NO.	SIGNATURE/PRINTED NAME	DATE RECEIVED				

Note: Prior to submitting the response to this solicitation, it is the responsibility of the firm submitting a response to confirm if any addenda have been issued. If such document(s) have been issued, acknowledge receipt by signature and date in section above. Failure to do so may result in response being considered non-responsive or result in lowering the rating of a firm's proposal.

Information regarding addenda issued is available on the Pinellas ePro website, www.ebids.pinellas.gov/bso/, listed under the bid attachments.

22-037P|Tiple: Adult Drug Court Treatment - Division N and Z Adult Drug Court Treatment - Division N and Z

Page 39 of 39

APPENDIX 1 - E-VERIFY AFFIDAVIT

APPENDIX 1 - E-VERII	Y AFFIDAVIT
I hereby certify that CORAPO or subcontract with an unauthorize	Insert contractor company name] does not employ, contract with, and is otherwise in full compliance with Section 448.095, Florida Statutes.
All employees hired on or after Ja system.	nuary 1, 2021, have had their work authorization status verified through the E-Verify
A true and correct copy of in the E-Verify system is attached	to this Affidavit.
	Signature: Leave Curt
	Print Name: Learne CURA
	Date: 05 08 2022
	Federal Work Authorization User Identification No.: 1738503
	Name of Pinellas County Contract and Contract No.:
STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY O	
The foregoing instrument was ack , this	nowledged before me by means of 1) physical presence or 2) online notarization (date) by Lewne (mame of officer or agent, title of (name of contractor company acknowledging), a (state or place of incorporation) corporation, on behalf of the known to me or has produced (type of
[Notary Seal]	
	Notary Public: Makial Callahan
MARIAH CALLAHAN Notary Public - State of Florida	Name typed, printed, or stamped: MARIAH CALLAHAN
Commission # HH 248115 My Comm. Expires Apr 1, 2026 Bonded through National Notary Assn.	My Commission Expires: April 1, 2026



TACHMENT 2 Page 122 of 159

Company ID Number: 1738503

Approved by:

Employer		
CuraParr, Inc.		
Name (Please Type or Print)	Title	
Leanne M Cura		
Signature	Date	
Electronically Signed	09/16/2021	
Department of Homeland Security – Verificat	tion Division	
Name (Please Type or Print)	Title	=
USCIS Verification Division		
Signature	Date	
Electronically Signed	09/16/2021	



Page 123 pt 159

Company ID Number: 1738503

Informati Information relating to your Cor	on Required for the E-Verify Program
Company Name	CuraParr, Inc.
Company Facility Address	730 S. Sterling Ave. Suite 209 Tampa, FL 33609
Company Alternate Address	
County or Parish	HILLSBOROUGH
Employer Identification Number	200221678
North American Industry Classification Systems Code	624
Parent Company	
Number of Employees	5 to 9
Number of Sites Verified for	3 site(s)

ELECTRONIC PAYMENT (EPAYABLES)

ELECTRONIC PAYMENT (EPAYABLES)

The Board of County Commissioners (County) is offering faster payments. The County would prefer to make payment using credit card through the ePayables system. See above.

Would your company accept to participate in the ePayables credit card program? Yes No	
For more information about ePayables credit card program please visit Purchasing Department website www.pinellascounty.org/purchase/	
CURAPAN, INC. DBA CENTER FOR Rational Living	
Leaune Curt	
Signature Leanne Cura	
913 944-2215	
Phone Number	
Leanne CURA & G mail. Com	
Email	

Adult Drug Court Treatment - Division N and Z

Page 36 of 39

W-9 REQUEST FOR TAXPAYER ID NUMBER AND CERTIFICATION

W-9 REQUEST FOR TAXPAYER ID NUMBER AND CERTIFICATION

*Instructions to form W-9 available upon request

The contractor must complete and submit to the County Form W-9 available; Through the following link:

www.irs.gov/forms-pubs/about-form-w-9

Section 119.071(5), Florida Statutes Notice:

Your Tax Identification Number (which for individuals is your social security number) is collected on Form W9 for use in filing information returns with the IRS as described more fully below. Collection of the Internal Revenue Code (26 U.S.C § 6109).

Privacy Act Notice:

Section 6109 of the Internal Revenue Code requires you to provide your correct TIN to persons who must file information returns with the IRS to report interest, dividends, and certain other income paid to you, mortgage interest you paid, the acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, or contributions you made to an IRA, or Archer MSA or HAS. The IRS may also provide this information to the Department of Justice for civil and criminal litigation, and to cities, states, and District of Columbia, and U.S. possessions to carry out their tax laws. We may also disclose this information to other countries under the tax treaty, to federal and state agencies to enforce federal nontax criminal laws, or to federal law enforcement and intelligence agencies to combat terrorism.

You must provide your TIN whether or not you are required to file a tax return. Payers must generally withhold 28% of taxable interest, dividend, and certain other payments to a payee who does not give a TIN to a payer.

RFP # 22-0317-P(LN)

Form

(Rev. October 2018)

Department of the Treasury

Internal Revenue Service

EP Title: Adult Drug Court Treatment - Division N and Z

Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification

Go to www.irs.gov/FormW9 for instructions and the latest information.

ATTACHMENT 2 Page 126 of 159

> Give Form to the requester. Do not send to the IRS.

	1 Name (as shown on your income tax return). Name is required on this line; do not leave this line bla	ink.										
	2 Business name/disregarded entity name, if different from above											
	DBA/ CENTER FOR RutiONal Living											
on page 3.	Check appropriate box for federal tax classification of the person whose name is entered on line 1. tollowing seven boxes.	Check only one of the	4 Exemptions (codes apply only to certain entities, not individuals; see instructions on page 3):									
s. Is on	☐ Individual/sole proprietor or ☐ C Corporation ☒ S Corporation ☐ Partnership single-member LLC	☐ Trust/estate	Exempt payee code (if any)									
type	Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=Par	tnership) ▶	Exempt payde dode (ii arty)									
Print or type. Specific Instructions	Note: Check the appropriate box in the line above for the tax classification of the single-member LLC if the LLC is classified as a single-member LLC that is disregarded from the owner unless transfer LLC that is not disregarded from the owner for U.S. federal tax purposes. Otherwise, a is disregarded from the owner should check the appropriate box for the tax classification of its of the control of the cont	Exemption from FATCA reporting code (if any)										
eci	☐ Other (see instructions) ►	200	(Applies to accounts maintained outside the U.S.)									
Sp	5 Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.) See instructions.	Requester's name a	and address (optional)									
See	730 S. Stading AVE SUITE 209											
0,	6 City, state, and ZIP code U Town PA, FI 33609	-										
		4										
	7 List account number(s) here (optional)											
Par	Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)											
	your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on line 1 to	sucial Social con	curity number									
backı reside	up withholding. For individuals, this is generally your social security number (SSN). Howeve ent alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the instructions for Part I, later. For othe es, it is your employer identification number (EIN), If you do not have a number, see <i>How to</i>	er, for a										
20000	: If the account is in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1. Also see What Nar		identification number									
Numb	ber To Give the Requester for guidelines on whose number to enter.	2 0	-0221678									
Par	t II Certification	12 0	1014-1-1-1									
A PROPERTY AND ADDRESS.	r penalties of perjury, I certify that:											
	Province of Polisida Court of the Court of t											

- 1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me); and
- 2. I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am no longer subject to backup withholding; and
- 3. I am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and
- 4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that I am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct.

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding because you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage interest paid, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the instructions for Part II, later.

Sign Signature of Here U.S. person >

General Instructions

Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise noted.

Future developments. For the latest information about developments related to Form W-9 and its instructions, such as legislation enacted after they were published, go to www.irs.gov/FormW9.

Purpose of Form

An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer identification number (TIN) which may be your social security number (SSN), individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN), adoption taxpayer identification number (ATIN), or employer identification number (EIN), to report on an information return the amount paid to you, or other amount reportable on an information return. Examples of information returns include, but are not limited to, the following.

· Form 1099-INT (interest earned or paid)

- Form 1099-DIV (dividends, including those from stocks or mutual
- · Form 1099-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross proceeds)
- · Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other transactions by brokers)
- Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions)
- Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions)
- Form 1098 (home mortgage interest), 1098-E (student loan interest), 1098-T (tuition)
- Form 1099-C (canceled debt)
- Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property)

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident alien), to provide your correct TIN.

If you do not return Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might be subject to backup withholding. See What is backup withholding, later.

Page 1 of 16

SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS SERVICES AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made as of this _____ day of _____, 2022 ("Effective Date"), by and between Pinellas County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida ("County"), and _____, ___ ("Contractor") (individually, "Party," collectively, "Parties").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the County requested proposals pursuant to 22-0371-P(LN) ("RFP") for Adult Drug Court Treatment – Division N and Z services; and

WHEREAS, based upon the County's assessment of Contractor's proposal, the County selected the Contractor to provide the Services as defined herein; and

WHEREAS, Contractor represents that it has the experience and expertise to perform the Services as set forth in this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals, the mutual covenants, agreements, terms and conditions herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby mutually acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Definitions.

- A. "Agreement" means this Agreement, including all Exhibits, which are expressly incorporated herein by reference, and any amendments thereto.
- **B.** "County Confidential Information" means any County information deemed confidential and/or exempt from Section 119.07, Florida Statutes, and Section 24(a), Article 1 of the Florida Constitution, or other applicable law, including, but not limited to, data or information referenced in <u>HIPAA</u>, and any other information designated in writing by the County as County Confidential Information.
- C. "Contractor Confidential Information" means any Contractor information that is designated as confidential and/or exempt by Florida's public records law, including information that constitutes a trade secret pursuant to Chapter 688, Florida Statutes, and is designated in this Agreement or in writing as a trade secret by Contractor (unless otherwise determined to be a public record by applicable Florida law). Notwithstanding the foregoing, Contractor Confidential Information does not include information that: (i) becomes public other than as a result of a disclosure by the County in breach of the Agreement; (ii) becomes available to the County on a non-confidential basis from a source other than Contractor, which is not prohibited from disclosing such information by obligation to Contractor; (iii) is known by the County prior to its receipt from Contractor without any obligation or confidentiality with respect thereto; or (iv) is developed by the County independently of any disclosures made by Contractor.
- D. "Contractor Personnel" means all employees of Contractor, and all employees of subcontractors of Contractor, including, but not limited to temporary and/or leased employees, who are providing the Services at any time during the project term.
- E. "Services" means the work, duties and obligations to be carried out and performed safely by Contractor under this Agreement, as described throughout this Agreement and as specifically described in Exhibit A ("Statement of Work") attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. As used in this Agreement, Services shall include any component task, subtask, service, or function inherent, necessary, or a customary part of the Services, but not specifically described in this Agreement, and shall include the provision of all standard day-to-day administrative, overhead, and internal expenses, including costs of bonds and insurance as required herein, labor, materials, equipment, safety equipment, products, office supplies, consumables, tools, postage, computer hardware/software, telephone charges, copier usage, fax charges, travel, lodging, and per diem and all other costs required to perform Services except as otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement.

2. <u>Conditions Precedent.</u> This Agreement, and the Parties' rights and obligations herein, are contingent upon and subject to the Contractor securing and/or providing the performance security, if required in Section 3, and the insurance coverage(s) required in Section 13, within ten (10) days of the Effective Date. No Services shall be performed by the Contractor and the County shall not incur any obligations of any type until Contractor satisfies these conditions. Unless waived in writing by the County, in the event the Contractor fails to satisfy the conditions precedent within the time required herein, the Agreement shall be deemed not to have been entered into and shall be null and void.

3. Services.

- **A.** Services. The County retains Contractor, and Contractor agrees to provide the Services. All Services shall be performed to the satisfaction of the County, and shall be subject to the provisions and terms contained herein and the Exhibits attached hereto.
- B. Services Requiring Prior Approval. Contractor shall not commence work on any Services requiring prior written authorization in the Statement of Work without approval from Director of the Human Services Department.
- C. Additional Services. From the Effective Date and for the duration of the project, the County may elect to have Contractor perform Services that are not specifically described in the Statement of Work attached hereto but are related to the Services ("Additional Services"), in which event Contractor shall perform such Additional Services for the compensation specified in the Statement of Work attached hereto. Contractor shall commence performing the applicable Additional Services promptly upon receipt of written approval as provided herein.
- **D.** De-scoping of Services. The County reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to de-scope Services upon written notification to the Contractor by the County. Upon issuance and receipt of the notification, the Contractor and the County shall enter into a written amendment reducing the appropriate Services Fee for the impacted Services by a sum equal to the amount associated with the de-scoped Services as defined in the payment schedule in this Agreement, if applicable, or as determined by mutual written consent of both Parties based upon the scope of work performed prior to issuance of notification.
- E. Independent Contractor Status and Compliance with the Immigration Reform and Control Act. Contractor is and shall remain an independent contractor and is neither agent, employee, partner, nor joint venturer of County. Contractor acknowledges that it is responsible for complying with the provisions of the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 located at 8 U.S.C. 1324, et seq, and regulations relating thereto, as either may be amended from time to time. Failure to comply with the above provisions shall be considered a material breach of the Agreement.
- F. Non-Exclusive Services. This is a non-exclusive Agreement. During the term of this Agreement, and any extensions thereof, the County reserves the right to contract for another provider for similar services as it determines necessary in its sole discretion.
- G. Project Monitoring. During the term of the Agreement, Contractor shall cooperate with the County, either directly or through its representatives, in monitoring Contractor's progress and performance of this Agreement.

4. Term of Agreement.

A. Initial Term. The term of this Agreement for Division N shall commence on the Effective Date; and shall remain in full force and for five (5) years, or until termination of the Agreement, whichever occurs first.

The term of this Agreement for Division Z shall commence on the Effective Date; and shall remain in full force through June 30, 2027.

Page 3 of 16

B. Term Extension.

The term of this Agreement may not be extended. All Services shall be completed by the expiration of the initial term as defined in 4.A.

5. Compensation and Method of Payment.

- A. Services Fee. As total compensation for the Services, the County shall pay the Contractor the sums as provided in this Section 5 ("Services Fee"), pursuant to the terms and conditions as provided in this Agreement. It is acknowledged and agreed by Contractor that this compensation constitutes a limitation upon County's obligation to compensate Contractor for such Services required by this Agreement, but does not constitute a limitation upon Contractor's obligation to perform all of the Services required by this Agreement. In no event will the Services Fee paid exceed the not-to-exceed sums set out in subsections 5.B. and C., unless the Parties agree to increase this sum by written amendment as authorized in Section 21 of the Agreement.
- **B.** The County agrees to pay the Contractor the not-to-exceed sum of \$_____, for Services completed and accepted as provided in Section 15 herein if applicable, payable on a fixed-fee basis for the deliverables as set out in Exhibit_C, payable upon submittal of an invoice as required herein.

C. Travel Expenses.

- The Services Fee includes all travel, lodging and per diem expenses incurred by Contractor in performing the Services.
- D. Taxes. Contractor acknowledges that the County is not subject to any state or federal sales, use, transportation and certain excise taxes.
- E. Payments. Contractor shall submit invoices for payments due as provided herein and authorized reimbursable expenses incurred with such documentation as required by County. Invoices shall be submitted to:
- the designated person as set out in Section 19 herein:

For time and materials Services, all Contractor Personnel shall maintain logs of time worked, and each invoice shall state the date and number of hours worked for Services authorized to be billed on a time and materials basis. All payments shall be made in accordance with the requirements of Section 218.70 et seq., Florida Statutes, "The Local Government Prompt Payment Act." The County may dispute any payments invoiced by Contractor in accordance with the County's Invoice Payments Dispute Resolution Process established in accordance with Section 218.76, Florida Statutes, and any such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the County's Dispute Resolution Process.

6. Personnel.

A. E-Verify. The Contractor and Subcontractor must register with and use the E-verify system in accordance with Florida Statute 448.095. A Contractor and Subcontractor may not enter into a contract with the County unless each party registers with and uses the E-verify system.

If a Contractor enters a contract with a Subcontractor, the Subcontractor must provide the Contractor with an affidavit stating that the Subcontractor does not employ, contract with, or subcontract with unauthorized aliens. The Contractor must maintain a copy of the affidavit for the duration of the contract.

If the County, Contractor, or Subcontract has a good faith belief that a person or entity with which it is contracting has knowingly violated Florida Statute 448.09(1) shall immediately terminate the contract with the person or entity.

Page 4 of 16

If the County has a good faith belief that a Subcontractor knowingly violated this provision, but the Contractor otherwise complied with this provision, the County will notify the Contractor and order that the Contractor immediately terminate the contract with the Subcontractor.

A contract terminated under the provisions of this section is not a breach of contract and may not considered such. Any contract termination under the provisions of this section may be challenged to Section 448.095(2)(d), Florida Statute. Contractor acknowledges upon termination of this agreement by the County for violation of this section by Contractor, Contractor may not be awarded a public contract for at least one (1) year. Contractor acknowledges that Contractor is liable for any additional costs incurred by the County as a result of termination of any contract for a violation of this section.

Contractor or Subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in this section, requiring the subcontracts to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. Contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any Subcontractor or Lower Tier Subcontractor with the clause set for in this section.

- B. Qualified Personnel. Contractor agrees that each person performing Services in connection with this Agreement shall have the qualifications and shall fulfill the requirements set forth in this Agreement.
- C. Approval and Replacement of Personnel. The County shall have the right to approve all Contractor Personnel assigned to provide the Services, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. Prior to commencing the Services, the Contractor shall provide at least ten (10) days written notice of the names and qualifications of the Contractor Personnel assigned to perform Services pursuant to the Agreement. Thereafter, during the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall promptly and as required by the County provide written notice of the names and qualifications of any additional Contractor Personnel assigned to perform Services. The County, on a reasonable basis, shall have the right to require the removal and replacement of any of the Contractor Personnel performing Services, at any time during the term of the Agreement. The County will notify Contractor in writing in the event the County requires such action. Contractor shall accomplish any such removal within forty-eight (48) hours after receipt of notice from the County and shall promptly replace such person with another person, acceptable to the County, with sufficient knowledge and expertise to perform the Services assigned to such individual in accordance with this Agreement. In situations where individual Contractor Personnel shall be immediate and not subject to such forty-eight (48) hour replacement timeframe and the provisions of Section 7, A.1, shall apply if minimum required staffing is not maintained.

7. Termination.

A. Contractor Default Provisions and Remedies of County.

- 1. Events of Default. Any of the following shall constitute a "Contractor Event of Default" hereunder: (i) Contractor fails to maintain the staffing necessary to perform the Services as required in the Agreement, fails to perform the Services as specified in the Agreement, or fails to complete the Services within the completion dates as specified in the Agreement; (ii) Contractor breaches Section 9 (Confidential Information); (iii) Contractor fails to gain acceptance of a deliverable per Section 15, if applicable, for two (2) consecutive iterations; or (iv) Contractor fails to perform or observe any of the other material provisions of this Agreement.
- 2. <u>Cure Provisions.</u> Upon the occurrence of a Contractor Event of Default as set out above, the County shall provide written notice of such Contractor Event of Default to Contractor ("Notice to Cure"), and Contractor shall have thirty (30) calendar days after the date of a Notice to Cure to correct, cure, and/or remedy the Contractor Event of Default described in the written notice.

Page 5 of 16

3. Termination for Cause by the County. In the event that Contractor fails to cure a Contractor Event of Default as authorized herein, or upon the occurrence of a Contractor Event of Default as specified in Section 7.A.1.(iii), the County may terminate this Agreement in whole or in part, effective upon receipt by Contractor of written notice of termination pursuant to this provision, and may pursue such remedies at law or in equity as may be available to the County.

B. County Default Provisions and Remedies of Contractor.

- 1. Events of Default. Any of the following shall constitute a "County Event of Default" hereunder: (i) the County fails to make timely undisputed payments as described in this Agreement; (ii) the County breaches Section 9 (Confidential Information); or (iii) the County fails to perform any of the other material provisions of this Agreement.
- 2. <u>Cure Provisions.</u> Upon the occurrence of a County Event of Default as set out above, Contractor shall provide written notice of such County Event of Default to the County ("Notice to Cure"), and the County shall have thirty (30) calendar days after the date of a Notice to Cure to correct, cure, and/or remedy the County Event of Default described in the written notice.
- 3. <u>Termination for Cause by Contractor.</u> In the event the County fails to cure a County Event of Default as authorized herein, Contractor may terminate this Agreement in whole or in part effective on receipt by the County of written notice of termination pursuant to this provision, and may pursue such remedies at law or in equity as may be available to the Contractor.
- C. Termination for Convenience. Notwithstanding any other provision herein, the County may terminate this Agreement, without cause, by giving thirty (30) days advance written notice to the Contractor of its election to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this provision.
- 8. <u>Time is of the Essence.</u> Time is of the essence with respect to all provisions of this Agreement that specify a time for performance, including the Services as described in Exhibits attached hereto; provided, however, that the foregoing shall not be construed to limit a Party's cure period allowed in the Agreement.

9. Confidential Information and Public Records.

- A. County Confidential Information. Contractor shall not disclose to any third party County Confidential Information that Contractor, through its Contractor Personnel, has access to or has received from the County pursuant to its performance of Services pursuant to the Agreement, unless approved in writing by the County Contract Manager. All such County Confidential Information will be held in trust and confidence from the date of disclosure by the County, and discussions involving such County Confidential Information shall be limited to Contractor Personnel as is necessary to complete the Services.
- B. Contractor Confidential Information. All Contractor Confidential Information received by the County from Contractor will be held in trust and confidence from the date of disclosure by Contractor and discussions involving such Contractor Confidential Information shall be limited to the members of the County's staff and the County's subcontractors who require such information in the performance of this Agreement. The County acknowledges and agrees to respect the copyrights, registrations, trade secrets and other proprietary rights of Contractor in the Contractor Confidential Information during and after the term of the Agreement and shall at all times maintain the confidentiality of the Contractor Confidential Information provided to the County, subject to federal law and the laws of the State of Florida related to public records disclosure. Contractor shall be solely responsible for taking any and all action it deems necessary to protect its Contractor Confidential Information except as provided herein. Contractor acknowledges that the County is subject to public records legislation, including but not limited to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and the Florida Rules of Judicial Administration, and that any of the County's obligations under this Section may be superseded by its obligations under any requirements of said laws.

Page 6 of 16

C. Public Records. Contractor acknowledges that information and data it manages as part of the services may be public records in accordance with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes and Pinellas County public records policies. Contractor agrees that prior to providing services it will implement policies and procedures to maintain, produce, secure, and retain public records in accordance with applicable laws, regulations, and County policies, including but not limited to the Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement relating to compensation, the Contractor agrees to charge the County, and/or any third parties requesting public records only such fees allowed by Section 119.07, Florida Statutes, and County policy for locating and producing public records during the term of this Agreement.

If the Contractor has questions regarding the application of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, to the Contractor's duty to provide public records relating to this contract, contact the Pinellas County Board of County Commissioners, Purchasing and Risk Management Department, Operations Manager custodian of public records at 727-464-3311, purchase@pinellascounty.org, Pinellas County Government, Purchasing and Risk Management Department, Operations Manager, 400 S. Ft. Harrison Ave, 6th Floor, Clearwater, FL 33756.

10. <u>Audit.</u> Contractor shall retain all records relating to this Agreement for a period of at least five (5) years after final payment is made. All records shall be kept in such a way as will permit their inspection pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. In addition, County reserves the right to examine and/or audit such records.

11. Compliance with Laws.

Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, state, county and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations in the performance of its obligations under this Agreement, including the procurement of permits and certificates where required, and including but not limited to laws related to Workers Compensation, Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Minority Business Enterprise (MBE), occupational safety and health and the environment, equal employment opportunity, privacy of medical records and information, as applicable. Failure to comply with any of the above provisions shall be considered a material breach of the Agreement.

12. Digital Accessibility

Suppler acknowledges and warrants that all digital content and services provided under this contract conforms and shall continue to conform during the Term of this Agreement to the W3C Web Content Accessibility Guidelines, version 2.0 ("WCAG 2.0") at conformance Level A and AA. If all digital content and services does not fully conform to WCAG 2.0 A and AA, Supplier shall advise Pinellas County in writing of the nonconformance prior to execution of this Agreement and shall provide Pinellas County a plan to achieve conformance to WCAG 2.0 A and AA, including but not limited to, an intended timeline for conformance. Failure to achieve conformance, as determined in Pinellas County's sole discretion, on its intended timeline shall be considered a material breach of this Agreement and grounds for termination by Pinellas County.

If during the Term of this Agreement, Supplier fails to maintain compliance with WCAG 2.0 A and AA or Pinellas County otherwise identifies an issue related to accessibility of the product (the "Accessibility Issue") that renders the product inaccessible, then Pinellas County shall notify Supplier of non-compliance. Within 30 days of Supplier's receipt of a non-compliance notice ("Notice"), Supplier and Pinellas County shall meet and mutually agree upon an appropriate timeline for resolution of the Accessibility Issue(s) ("Initial Meeting").

Should Supplier:

- i. fail to acknowledge receipt of the notice within 30 days of receipt of the Notice;
- unreasonably and solely withhold agreement regarding a timeline for resolution for more than 30 days following the Initial Meeting; or
- iii. fail to materially resolve the Accessibility Issue(s) within the agreed-upon timeline,

Failure to comply with the requirements of this section shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement and shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement by Pinellas County and subject Supplier to section 14(b) of this Agreement, "Indemnification."

Page 7 of 16

13. Public Entities Crimes

Contractor is directed to the Florida Public Entities Crime Act. Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, as well as Florida Statute 287.135 regarding Scrutinized Companies, and represents to County that Contractor is qualified to transact business with public entities in Florida, and to enter into and fully perform this Agreement subject to the provisions state therein. Failure to comply with any of the above provisions shall be considered a material breach of the Agreement.

14. Liability and Insurance.

- A. Insurance. Contractor shall comply with the insurance requirements set out in Exhibit _____, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.
- B. Indemnification. Contractor agrees to indemnify, pay the cost of defense, including attorney's fees, and hold harmless the County, its officers, employees and agents from all damages, suits, actions or claims, including reasonable attorney's fees incurred by the County, of any character brought on account of any injuries or damages received or sustained by any person, persons, or property, or in any way relating to or arising from the Agreement; or on account of any act or omission, neglect or misconduct of Contractor; or by, or on account of, any claim or amounts recovered under the Workers' Compensation Law; or of any other laws, regulations, ordinance, order or decree; or arising from or by reason of any actual or claimed trademark, patent or copyright infringement or litigation based thereon; or for any violation of requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as may be amended, and all rules and regulations issued pursuant thereto (collectively the "ADA") except when such injury, damage, or violation was caused by the sole negligence of the County.
- C. Liability. Neither the County nor Contractor shall make any express or implied agreements, guaranties or representations, or incur any debt, in the name of or on behalf of the other Party. Neither the County nor Contractor shall be obligated by or have any liability under any agreements or representations made by the other that are not expressly authorized hereunder. The County shall have no liability or obligation for any damages to any person or property directly or indirectly arising out of the operation by Contractor of its business, whether caused by Contractor's negligence or willful action or failure to act.
- D. Contractor's Taxes. The County will have no liability for any sales, service, value added, use, excise, gross receipts, property, workers' compensation, unemployment compensation, withholding or other taxes, whether levied upon Contractor or Contractor's assets, or upon the County in connection with Services performed or business conducted by Contractor. Payment of all such taxes and liabilities shall be the responsibility of Contractor.
- 15. County's Funding. The Agreement is not a general obligation of the County. It is understood that neither this Agreement nor any representation by any County employee or officer creates any obligation to appropriate or make monies available for the purpose of the Agreement beyond the fiscal year in which this Agreement is executed. No liability shall be incurred by the County, or any department, beyond the monies budgeted and available for this purpose. If funds are not appropriated by the County for any or all of this Agreement, the County shall not be obligated to pay any sums provided pursuant to this Agreement beyond the portion for which funds are appropriated. The County agrees to promptly notify Contractor in writing of such failure of appropriation, and upon receipt of such notice, this Agreement, and all rights and obligations contained herein, shall terminate without liability or penalty to the County.
- 16. Acceptance of Services. For all Services deliverables that require County acceptance as provided in the Statement of Work, the County, through the Director of Human Services Department or designee, will have ten (10) calendar days to review the deliverable(s) after receipt or completion of same by Contractor, and either accept or reject the deliverable(s) by written notice to \(\frac{Proposer!}{----} \). If a deliverable is rejected, the written notice from the County will specify any required changes, deficiencies, and/or additions necessary. Contractor shall then have seven (7) calendar days to revise the deliverable(s) to resubmit and/or complete the deliverable(s) for review and approval by the County, who will then have seven (7) calendar days to review and approve, or reject the deliverable(s); provided however, that Contractor shall not be responsible for any delays in the overall project schedule that result from the County's failure to timely approve or reject deliverable(s) as provided herein. Upon final acceptance of the deliverable(s), the County will accept the deliverable(s) in writing.

RFP # 22-0317-P(LN)

RFP Title: Adult Drug Court Treatment - Division N and Z

ATTACHMENT 2

Page 134 of 159

Page 8 of 16

17. Subcontracting/Assignment.

A. Subcontracting. Contractor is fully responsible for completion of the Services required by this Agreement and for completion of all subcontractor work, if authorized as provided herein. Contractor shall not subcontract any work under this Agreement to any subcontractor other than the subcontractors specified in the proposal and previously approved by the County, without the prior written consent of the County, which shall be determined by the County in its sole discretion.

B. Assignment.

- This Agreement, and any rights or obligations hereunder, shall not be assigned, transferred or delegated to any other person or entity. Any purported assignment in violation of this section shall be null and void.
- 18. <u>Survival</u>. The following provisions shall survive the expiration or termination of the Term of this Agreement: 7, 9, 10, 13, 20, 23, and any other which by their nature would survive termination.
- 19. Notices. All notices, authorizations, and requests in connection with this Agreement shall be deemed given on the day they are: (1) deposited in the U.S. mail, postage prepaid, certified or registered, return receipt requested; or (2) sent by air express courier (e.g., Federal Express, Airborne, etc.), charges prepaid, return receipt requested; or (iii) sent via email and addressed as set forth below, which designated person(s) may be amended by either Party by giving written notice to the other Party:

For County:

For Contractor:

Attn: Ms. Abigail Stanton, Director of Contracts Human Services Department 440 Court Street, 2nd Floor Clearwater, FL 33756 Attn:

with a copy to:
Ms. Merry Celeste
Purchasing and Risk Management Division Director
Pinellas County Purchasing Department
400 South Fort Harrison Avenue
Clearwater, FL 33756

20. Conflict of Interest.

- A. The Contractor represents that it presently has no interest and shall acquire no interest, either direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner with the performance of the Services required hereunder, and that no person having any such interest shall be employed by Contractor during the agreement term and any extensions; and during the term of this Agreement.
- B. The Contractor shall promptly notify the County in writing of any business association, interest, or other circumstance which constitutes a conflict of interest as provided herein. If the Contractor is in doubt as to whether a prospective business association, interest, or other circumstance constitutes a conflict of interest, the Contract may identify the prospective business association, interest or circumstance, the nature of work that the Contractor may undertake and request an opinion as to whether the business association, interest or circumstance constitutes a conflict of interest if entered into by the Contractor. The County agrees to notify the Contractor of its opinion within (10) calendar days of receipt of notification by the Contractor, which shall be binding on the Contractor.

- 21. Right to Ownership. All work created, originated and/or prepared by Contractor in performing Services pursuant to the Agreement, including reports and other documentation or improvements related thereto, to the extent that such work, products, documentation, materials or information are described in or required by the Services (collectively, the "Work Product") shall be County's property when completed and accepted, if acceptance is required in this Agreement, and the County has made payment of the sums due therefore. The ideas, concepts, know-how or techniques developed during the course of this Agreement by the Contractor or jointly by Contractor and the County may be used by the County without obligation of notice or accounting to the Contractor. Any data, information or other materials furnished by the County for use by Contractor under this Agreement shall remain the sole property of the County.
- 22. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended by mutual written agreement of the Parties hereto.
- 23. Severability. The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be deemed to be severable. Consequently, if any clause, term, or condition hereof shall be held to be illegal or void, such determination shall not affect the validity or legality of the remaining terms and conditions, and notwith tanding any such determination, this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect unless the particular clause, term, or condition held to be illegal or void renders the balance of the Agreement impossible to perform.
- 24. Applicable Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida (without regard to principles of conflicts of laws). The Parties agree that all actions or proceedings arising in connection with this Agreement shall be tried and litigated exclusively in the state or federal (if permitted by law and a Party elects to file an action in federal court) courts located in or for Pinellas County, Florida. This choice of venue is intended by the Parties to be mandatory and not permissive in nature, and to preclude the possibility of litigation between the Parties with respect to, or arising out of, this Agreement in any jurisdiction other than that specified in this section. Each Party waives any right it may have to assert the doctrine of forum non conveniens or similar doctrine or to object to venue with respect to any proceeding brought in accordance with this section.
- 25. <u>Waiver.</u> No waiver by either Party of any breach or violation of any covenant, term, condition, or provision of this Agreement or of the provisions of any ordinance or law, shall be construed to waive any other term, covenant, condition, provisions, ordinance or law, or of any subsequent breach or violation of the same.
- 26. <u>Due Authority.</u> Each Party to this Agreement represents and warrants that: (i) it has the full right and authority and has obtained all necessary approvals to enter into this Agreement; (ii) each person executing this Agreement on behalf of the Party is authorized to do so; (iii) this Agreement constitutes a valid and legally binding obligation of the Party, enforceable in accordance with its terms.
- 27. No Third Party Beneficiary. The Parties hereto acknowledge and agree that there are no third party beneficiaries to this Agreement. Persons or entities not a party to this Agreement may not claim any benefit from this Agreement or as third party beneficiaries hereto.
- 28. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the Parties and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements either oral or written.

(Signature Page Follows)

Page 10 of 16

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement the day and year first written.

PINELLAS COUNTY, FLORIDA	
By and through its	Center for Retional Living
Board of County Commissioners	Name of Firm
	By: 3266
By: Charlie Justice	Signature
	Bradley Collabor
	Print Name
A PROPERTY OF	Director
ATTEST:	Title
Ken Burke,	
Clerk of the Circuit Court	
Ву:	
Deputy Clerk	
Approved as to Form	
By:	
Office of the County Attorney	

RFP # 22-0317-P(LN)
RFP Title: Adult Drug Court Treatment - Division N and Z

ATTACHMENT 2 Page 137 of 159

SERVICES AGREEMENT EXHIBIT A

Page 11 of 16

STATEMENT OF WORK

PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

(Document to be Provided Prior to Agreement Execution)

RFP # 22-0317-P(LN)

RFP Title: Adult Drug Court Treatment - Division N and Z

ATTACHMENT 2 Page 138 of 159

SERVICES AGREEMENT

EXHIBIT B

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Page 12 of 16

[INSERT INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS PRIOR TO EXECUTION]

RFP # 22-0317-P(LN)
RFP Title: Adult Drug Court Treatment - Division N and Z

ATTACHMENT 2 Page 139 of 159

SERVICES AGREEMENT

EXHIBIT C

PAYMENT SCHEDULE

Page 13 of 16

PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

(Document to be Provided Prior to Agreement Execution)

RFP # 22-0317-P(LN) RFP Title: Adult Drug Court Treatment - Division N and Z

ATTACHMENT 2

Page 140 of 159

Page 14 of 16

EXHIBIT D

SERVICES AGREEMENT

PAYMENT/INVOICES

PAYMENT/INVOICES:

SUPPLIER shall submit invoices for payment due as provided herein with such documentation as required by Pinellas County and all payments shall be made in accordance with the requirements of Section 218.70 et. seq, Florida Statutes, "The Local Government Prompt Payment Act." Invoices shall be submitted to the address below unless instructed otherwise on the purchase order, or if no purchase order, by the ordering department:

Finance Division Accounts Payable Pinellas County Board of County Commissioners P. O. Box 2438 Clearwater, FL 33757

Each invoice shall include, at a minimum, the Supplier's name, contact information and the standard purchase order number. In order to expedite payment, it is recommended the Supplier also include the information shown in below. The County may dispute any payments invoiced by SUPPLIER in accordance with the County's Dispute Resolution Process for Invoiced Payments. established in accordance with Section 218.76, Florida Statutes, and any such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the County's Dispute Resolution Process.

INVOICE INFORMATION:

Supplier Information Company name, mailing address, phone number, contact name and email address as provided on the PO

Remit To Billing address to which you are requesting payment be sent

Invoice Date Creation date of the invoice Invoice Number Company tracking number

Shipping Address Address where goods and/or services were delivered

contact person

Ordering Department Name of ordering department, including name and phone number of

PO Number Standard purchase order number

Ship Date Date the goods/services were sent/provided

Quantity Quantity of goods or services billed

Description Description of services or goods delivered

Unit Price Unit price for the quantity of goods/services delivered

Line Total Amount due by line item

Invoice Total Sum of all of the line totals for the invoice

Pinellas County offers a credit card payment process (ePayables) through Bank of America. Pinellas County does not charge vendors to participate in the program; however, there may be a charge by the company that processes your credit card transactions. For more information please visit Pinellas County purchasing website at www.pinellascounty.org/purchase.

SERVICES AGREEMENT

Page 15 of 16

EXHIBIT E

DISPUTE RESOLUTION FOR PINELLAS COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS IN MATTERS OF INVOICE PAYMENTS:

Payment of invoices for work performed for Pinellas County Board of County Commissioners (County) is made, by standard, in arrears in accordance with Section 218.70, et. seq., Florida Statutes, the Local Government Prompt Payment Act.

If a dispute should arise as a result of non-payment of a payment request or invoice the following Dispute Resolution process shall apply:

- A. Pinellas County shall notify a vendor in writing within ten (10) days after receipt of an improper invoice, that the invoice is improper. The notice should indicate what steps the vendor should undertake to correct the invoice and resubmit a proper invoice to the County. The steps taken by the vendor shall be that of initially contacting the requesting department to validate their invoice and receive a sign off from that entity that would indicate that the invoice in question is in keeping with the terms and conditions of the agreement. Once sign off is obtained, the vendor should then resubmit the invoice as a "Corrected Invoice" to the requesting department which will initiate the payment timeline.
 - Requesting department for this purpose is defined as the County department for whom the work is performed.
 - 2.) Proper invoice for this purpose is defined as an invoice submitted for work performed that meets prior agreed upon terms or conditions to the satisfaction of Pinellas County.
- B. Should a dispute result between the vendor and the County about payment of a payment request or an invoice then the vendor should submit their dissatisfaction in writing to the Requesting Department. Each Requesting Department shall assign a representative who shall act as a "Dispute Manager" to resolve the issue at departmental level.
- C. The Dispute Manager shall first initiate procedures to investigate the dispute and document the steps taken to resolve the issue in accordance with section 218.76 Florida Statutes. Such procedures shall be commenced no later than forty-five (45) days after the date on which the payment request or invoice was received by Pinellas County, and shall not extend beyond sixty (60) days after the date on which the payment request or invoice was received by Pinellas County.
- D. The Dispute Manager should investigate and ascertain that the work, for which the payment request or invoice has been submitted, was performed to Pinellas County's satisfaction and duly accepted by the Proper Authority. Proper Authority for this purpose is defined as the Pinellas County representative who is designated as the approving authority for the work performed in the contractual document. The Dispute Manager shall perform the required investigation and arrive at a solution before or at the sixty (60) days timeframe for resolution of the dispute, per section 218.76, Florida Statutes. The County Administrator or his or her designee shall be the final arbiter in resolving the issue before it becomes a legal matter. The County Administrator or his or her designee will issue their decision in writing.
- E. Pinellas County Dispute Resolution Procedures shall not be subject to Chapter 120 of the Florida Statutes. The procedures shall also, per section 218.76, Florida Statutes, not be intended as an administrative proceeding which would prohibit a court from ruling again on any action resulting from the dispute.

SERVICES AGREEMENT

Page 16 of 16

EXHIBIT E

DISPUTE RESOLUTION FOR PINELLAS COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS IN MATTERS OF INVOICE PAYMENTS:

- F. Should the dispute be resolved in the County's favor interest charges begin to accrue fifteen (15) days after the final decision made by the County. Should the dispute be resolved in the vendor's favor the County shall pay interest as of the original date the payment was due.
- G. For any legal action to recover any fees due because of the application of sections 218.70 et. seq., Florida Statutes, an award shall be made to cover court costs and reasonable attorney fees, including those fees incurred as a result of an appeal, to the prevailing party If it is found that the non-prevailing party held back any payment that was the reason for the dispute without having any reasonable lawful basis or fact to dispute the prevailing party's claim to those amounts.

ATTACHMENT 2 Page 143 of 159

Data Sharing Agreement

WHEREAS, homelessness, substance abuse, mental health services, and human services are issues which cross many systems; and

WHEREAS, Pinellas County is interested in including program and service related information in the Pinellas County Data Collaborative (hereinafter referred to as ("Data Collaborative"), to better understand cross-system involvement; and

WHEREAS, organizations within Pinellas County are interested in understanding the extent that client populations move within systems to better serve the population needs; and

WHEREAS, the County is a member of the Data Collaborative; and

WHEREAS, the Data Collaborative has the ability to receive and analyze data in a secure manner to provide valuable system information.

NOW, THEREFORE in consideration of the following agreements, the parties do hereby covenant and agree to the following:

- 1. The Agency will provide program information to include operational, fiscal, client service, and other program information in electronic format to the County for the sole purpose of research and policy development. This information will be provided quarterly or on an as needed basis as defined by the County.
- 2. This information will be crossed through the Data Collaborative with systems containing state and local information about involvement in criminal justice, human services, mental health, substance abuse, EMS and other systems as available for the sole purpose of understanding cross-system involvement for policy and planning.
- 3. The County will assure that the information used by the Data Collaborative will not be released, shared, or transferred in an identifiable manner to any organization and will be stored in a HIPAA compliant location.
- 4. The County will assure that confidential nature of any and all information with respect to any records and reports created or disseminated is maintained. The Parties also agree that the information will be used only for the purpose for which it was provided.
- 5. Modification of this agreement shall be made only by the consent of both Parties and shall include a written document setting forth the modifications and signed by both Parties. This agreement may be terminated with 30 days written notice to the other party.
- 6. The Parties shall assist in the investigation of injury or damages for or against either party pertaining to their respective areas of responsibility or activities under this contract and shall contact the other party regarding the legal actions deemed appropriate to remedy such damage or claims.

HIPAA BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

This Agreement (hereinafter referred to as AGREEMENT) is entered into by and between Pinellas County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida (hereinafter referred to as COVERED ENTITY) and the business associate named on the signature page hereof (hereinafter referred to as BUSINESS ASSOCIATE) (each hereinafter referred to as PARTY and collectively hereinafter referred to as the PARTIES) on this _____ day of ________, 2022.

WHEREAS, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE performs functions, activities, or services for, or on behalf of COVERED ENTITY, and BUSINESS ASSOCIATE receives, has access to or creates Health Information in order to perform such functions, activities or services; and

WHEREAS, COVERED ENTITY is subject to the Administrative Simplification requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and regulations promulgated there under (hereinafter referred to as HIPAA), including but not limited to, the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information and the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health Information found at 45 Code of Federal Regulations Parts 160, 162 and 164; and

WHEREAS, HIPAA requires COVERED ENTITY to enter into a contract with BUSINESS ASSOCIATE to provide for the protection of the privacy and security of Health Information, and HIPAA prohibits the disclosure to or use of Health Information by BUSINESS ASSOCIATE if such a contract is not in place; and

WHEREAS, as a result of the requirements of the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (hereinafter referred to as HITECH ACT), as incorporated in the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, and its implementing regulations and guidance issued by the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as SECRETARY), all as amended from time to time, the PARTIES agree to this AGREEMENT in order to document the PARTIES' obligations under the HITECH ACT.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged, the PARTIES agree as follows:

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS

1.1	"Bus	iness	Associate"	shal	l go	enerally	have	the	same	me	eaning	g as th	e terr	n "bu	siness
associate"	at 45	CFR	160.103,	and	in	reference	e to	the	party	to	this	agreen	nent,	shall	mean

^{1.2 &}quot;Covered Entity" shall generally have the same meaning as the term "covered entity" at 45 CFR 160.103, and in reference to the party to this agreement, shall mean Pinellas County by and through its Department of Human Services.

- 1.3 "<u>Disclose</u>" and "<u>Disclosure</u>" shall mean, with respect to Health Information, the release, transfer, provision of access to, or divulging in any other manner of Health Information outside BUSINESS ASSOCIATE's internal operations or to other than its employees.
- 1.4 "Health Information" shall mean information that: (a) relates to the past, present or future physical or mental health or condition of an individual; the provision of health care to an individual, or the past, present or future payment for the provision of health care to an individual; (b) identifies the individual (or for which there is a reasonable basis for believing that the information can be used to identify the individual); and (c) is received by BUSINESS ASSOCIATE from or on behalf of COVERED ENTITY, or is created by BUSINESS ASSOCIATE, or is made accessible to BUSINESS ASSOCIATE by COVERED ENTITY.
- 1.5 "HIPAA Rules". "HIPAA Rules" shall mean the Privacy, Security, Breach Notification, and Enforcement Rules at 45 CFR Part 160 and Part 164.
- 1.6 "Privacy Regulations" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Covered Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 Code of Federal Regulations Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA.
- 1.7 "Services" shall mean the services provided by BUSINESS ASSOCIATE pursuant to the Underlying Agreement, or if no such agreement is in effect, the services BUSINESS ASSOCIATE performs with respect to the COVERED ENTITY.
- 1.8 "<u>Underlying Agreement</u>" shall mean the services agreement executed by the COVERED ENTITY and BUSINESS ASSOCIATE, if any.
- 1.9 "<u>Use</u>" or "<u>Uses</u>" shall mean, with respect to Health Information, the sharing, employment, application, utilization, examination or analysis of such Health Information within BUSINESS ASSOCIATE's internal operations.
- 1.10 <u>Catch-all definition</u>: The following terms used in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as those terms in the HIPAA Rules: Breach, Data Aggregation, Designated Record Set, Disclosure, Health Care Operations, Individual, Minimum Necessary, Notice of Privacy Practices, Protected Health Information, Required By Law, Secretary, Security Incident, Subcontractor, Unsecured Protected Health Information, and Use, unless otherwise specifically defined or referred under this Agreement.

ARTICLE II OBLIGATIONS OF BUSINESS ASSOCIATE

- 2.1 <u>Initial Effective Date of Performance</u>. The obligations created under this AGREEMENT shall become effective immediately upon execution of this AGREEMENT or the agreement to which it is appended.
 - 2.2 Obligations and Activities of Business Associate. Business Associate agrees to:

RFP # 22-0317-P(LN)

RFP Title: Adult Drug Court Treatment - Division N and Z

ATTACHMENT 2

Page 146 of 159

a. Not use or disclose protected health information other than as permitted or required by the Agreement or as required by law.

- b. Use appropriate safeguards, and comply with Subpart C of 45 CFR Part 164 with respect to electronic protected health information, to prevent use or disclosure of protected health information other than as provided for by the Agreement.
- c. Report to covered entity any unauthorized acquisition, access, use or disclosure of protected health information not provided for by the Agreement of which it becomes aware, including breaches of unsecured protected health information as required at 45 CFR 164.410, and any security incident of which it becomes aware.
- d. In accordance with 45 CFR 164.502(e)(1)(ii) and 164.308(b)(2), if applicable, ensure that any subcontractors that create, receive, maintain, or transmit protected health information on behalf of the business associate agree to the same restrictions, conditions, and requirements that apply to the business associate with respect to such information.
- e. Make available protected health information in a designated record set to the COVERED ENTITY as necessary to satisfy covered entity's obligations under 45 CFR 164.524.
- f. Make any amendment(s) to protected health information in a designated record set as directed or agreed to by the covered entity pursuant to 45 CFR 164.526, or take other measures as necessary to satisfy covered entity's obligations under 45 CFR 164.526.
- g. Maintain and make available the information required to provide an accounting of disclosures to the "covered entity" as necessary to satisfy covered entity's obligations under 45 CFR 164.528.
- h. To the extent the business associate is to carry out one or more of covered entity's obligation(s) under Subpart E of 45 CFR Part 164, comply with the requirements of Subpart E that apply to the covered entity in the performance of such obligation(s).
- i. Make its internal practices, books, and records available to the Secretary for purposes of determining compliance with the HIPAA Rules.
- 2.3 <u>Permitted Uses and Disclosures of Health Information</u>. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE is authorized to:
 - a. Use and Disclose Health Information as necessary to perform Services for, or on behalf of COVERED ENTITY.

ATTACHMENT 2 Page 147 of 159

- b. Use Health Information to create aggregated or de-identified information consistent with the requirements of the Privacy Regulations.
- c. Use or Disclose Health Information (including aggregated or de-identified information) as otherwise directed by COVERED ENTITY provided that COVERED ENTITY shall not request BUSINESS ASSOCIATE to use or disclose Health Information in a manner that would not be permissible if done by COVERED ENTITY.
- d. To the extent required by the HITECH ACT, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall limit its use, disclosure or request of PHI to the Limited Data Set or, if needed, to the minimum necessary to accomplish the intended use, disclosure or request, respectively. Effective on the date the SECRETARY issues guidance on what constitutes "minimum necessary" for purposes of HIPAA, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall limit its use, disclosure or request of PHI to only the minimum necessary as set forth in such guidance.
- BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall not use Health Information for any other purpose that would violate Subpart E of 45 CFR Part 164, except that if necessary, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE may use Health Information for the proper management and administration of BUSINESS ASSOCIATE or to carry out its legal responsibilities; provided that any use or disclosure described herein will not violate the Privacy Regulations or Florida law if done by COVERED ENTITY. Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE may disclose Health Information for the proper management and administration of the BUSINESS ASSOCIATE, provided that with respect to any such disclosure either: (a) the disclosure is required by law (within the meaning of the Privacy Regulations) or (b) the disclosure would not otherwise violate Florida law and BUSINESS ASSOCIATE obtains reasonable written assurances from the person to whom the information is to be disclosed that such person will hold the information in confidence and will not use or further disclose such information except as required by law or for the purpose(s) for which it was disclosed by BUSINESS ASSOCIATE to such person, and that such person will notify BUSINESS ASSOCIATE of any instances of which it is aware in which the confidentiality of the information has been breached.

2.4 <u>Compliance with Security Provisions</u>. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall:

- a. Implement and maintain administrative safeguards as required by 45 CFR § 164.308, physical safeguards as required by 45 CFR § 164.310 and technical safeguards as required by 45 CFR § 164.312.
- b. Implement and document reasonable and appropriate policies and procedures as required by 45 CFR § 164.316.

- c. Be in compliance with all requirements of the HITECH ACT related to security and applicable as if BUSINESS ASSOCIATE were a covered entity, as such term is defined in HIPAA.
- d. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall use its best efforts to implement and maintain technologies and methodologies that render PHI unusable, unreadable or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals as specified in the HITECH ACT.
- 2.5 <u>Compliance with Privacy Provisions</u>. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall only use and disclose PHI in compliance with each applicable requirement of 45 CFR § 164.504(e), BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall comply with all requirements of the HITECH ACT related to privacy and applicable as if BUSINESS ASSOCIATE were a covered entity, as such term is defined in HIPAA.
- 2.6 <u>Mitigation</u>. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE agrees to mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that is known to BUSINESS ASSOCIATE of a use or disclosure of Health Information by BUSINESS ASSOCIATE in violation of the requirements of this AGREEMENT.
- 2.7 <u>Breach of Unsecured PHI</u>. The provisions of this Section are effective with respect to the discovery of a breach of unsecured PHI occurring on or after September 23, 2009.
 - a. With respect to any unauthorized acquisition, access, use or disclosure of COVERED ENTITY'S PHI by BUSINESS ASSOCIATE, its agents or subcontractors, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall:
 - Investigate such unauthorized acquisition, access, use or disclosure;
 - 2) Determine whether such unauthorized acquisition, access, use or disclosure constitutes a reportable breach under the HITECH ACT; and
 - 3) Document and retain its findings under clauses 1) and 2) of this Section.
 - b. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall notify COVERED ENTITY of all suspected breaches within five (5) business days of discovery. If the BUSINESS ASSOCIATE discovers that a reportable breach has occurred, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall notify COVERED ENTITY of such reportable breach in writing within three (3) days of the date BUSINESS ASSOCIATE discovers and determines that such breach is reportable. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall notify COVERED ENTITY immediately upon discovering a reportable breach of more than 500 individuals.
 - c. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall be deemed to have discovered a breach as of the first day that breach is either known to BUSINESS ASSOCIATE or any of its employees, officers or agents, other than the person who committed the breach, or by

through exercise of reasonable diligence, should have been known to BUSINESS ASSOCIATE or any of its employees, officers or agents, other than the person who committed the breach.

- d. To the extent the information is available to BUSINESS ASSOCIATE, it's written notice shall include the information required by 45 CFR §164.410.
- e. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall promptly supplement the written report with additional information regarding the breach as it obtains such information.
- f. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall cooperate with COVERED ENTITY in meeting the COVERED ENTITY's obligations under the HITECH ACT with respect to such breach. COVERED ENTITY shall have sole control over the timing and method of providing notification of such breach to the affected individual(s), the SECRETARY and, if applicable, the media, as required by the HITECH ACT.
- g. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall reimburse COVERED ENTITY for its reasonable costs and expenses in providing the notification, including, but not limited to, any administrative costs associated with providing notice, printing and mailing costs, and costs of mitigating the harm for affected individuals whose PHI has or may have been compromised as a result of the breach. In order to be reimbursed by BUSINESS ASSOCIATE, COVERED ENTITY must provide to BUSINESS ASSOCIATE a written accounting of COVERED ENTITY's actual costs and to the extent applicable, copies of receipts or bills with respect thereto.
- 2.8 <u>Availability of Internal Practices, Books and Records.</u> BUSINESS ASSOCIATE agrees to make its internal practices, books and records relating to the use and disclosure of Health Information available to the SECRETARY, for purposes of determining COVERED ENTITY's compliance with the Privacy Regulations.
- 2.9 Agreement to Restriction on Disclosure. If COVERED ENTITY is required to comply with a restriction on the disclosure of PHI pursuant to Section 13405 of the HITECH ACT, then COVERED ENTITY shall, to the extent needed to comply with such restriction, provide written notice to BUSINESS ASSOCIATE of the name of the individual requesting the restriction and the PHI affected thereby. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall, upon receipt of such notification, not disclose the identified PHI to any health plan for the purposes of carrying out payment or health care operations, except as otherwise required by law.
- 2.10 <u>Accounting of Disclosures</u>. Upon COVERED ENTITY's request, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall:
 - a. Provide to COVERED ENTITY an accounting of each disclosure of Health Information made by BUSINESS ASSOCIATE or its employees, agents, representatives or subcontractors as required by the Privacy Regulations. For each Disclosure that requires an accounting under this Section 2.10, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE

shall track the information required by the Privacy Regulations, and shall securely maintain the information for six (6) years from the date of the Disclosure.

- b. If BUSINESS ASSOCIATE is deemed to use or maintain an Electronic Health Record on behalf of COVERED ENTITY, then BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall maintain an accounting of any disclosures made through an Electronic Health Record for treatment, payment and health care operations, as applicable. Such accounting shall comply with the requirements of the HITECH ACT.
- c. Upon request by COVERED ENTITY, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall provide such accounting to COVERED ENTITY in the time and manner specified by the HITECH ACT.
- d. Where COVERED ENTITY responds to an individual's request for an accounting of disclosures made through an Electronic Health Record by providing the requesting individual with a list of all business associates acting on behalf of COVERED ENTITY; BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall provide such accounting directly to the requesting individual in the time and manner specified by the HITECH ACT.
- 2.11 <u>Use of Subcontractors and Agents</u>. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall require each of its agents and subcontractors that receive Health Information from BUSINESS ASSOCIATE to execute a written agreement obligating the agent or subcontractor to comply with all the terms of this AGREEMENT with respect to such Health Information.

2.12 Access to Electronic Health Records.

- a. If BUSINESS ASSOCIATE is deemed to use or maintain an Electronic Health Record on behalf of COVERED ENTITY with respect to PHI, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall provide an individual with a copy of the information contained in such Electronic Health Record in an electronic format and, if the individual so chooses, transmit such copy directly to an entity or person designated by the individual upon request, to the extent an individual has the right to request a copy of the PHI maintained in such Electronic Health Record pursuant to 45 CFR § 164.524 and makes such a request to BUSINESS ASSOCIATE.
- b. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE may charge a fee to the individual for providing a copy of such information, but such fee may not exceed BUSINESS ASSOCIATE's labor costs in responding to the request for the copy.
- c. The provisions of 45 CFR § 164.524, including the exceptions to the requirement to provide a copy of PHI shall otherwise apply and BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall comply therewith as if BUSINESS ASSOCIATE were the COVERED ENTITY.
- d. At COVERED ENTITY's request, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall provide COVERED ENTITY with a copy of an individual's PHI maintained in an

ATTACHMENT 2 Page 151 of 159

RFP # 22-0317-P(LN)
RFP Title: Adult Drug Court Treatment - Division N and Z

Electronic Health Record in an electronic format in a time and manner designated by COVERED ENTITY in order for COVERED ENTITY to comply with 45 CFR § 164.524, as amended by the HITECH ACT.

2.13 <u>Limitations on Use of PHI for Marketing Purposes</u>.

- a. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall not use or disclose PHI for the purpose of making a communication about a product or service that encourages recipients of the communication to purchase or use the product or service, unless such communication:
 - 1) Complies with the requirements the definition of marketing contained in 45 CFR § 164.501; and
 - 2) Complies with the requirements of Subparagraphs a, b or c of Section 13406(a)(2) of the HITECH ACT.
- b. COVERED ENTITY shall cooperate with BUSINESS ASSOCIATE to determine if the foregoing requirements are met with respect to any such marketing communication.

ARTICLE III TERM AND TERMINATION

3.1 <u>Term.</u> Subject to the provisions of Sections 3.2 and 3.3, the term of this AGREEMENT shall be the term of the Underlying Agreement.

3.2 Termination of AGREEMENT.

- a. Upon becoming aware of a pattern of activity or practice of either PARTY that constitutes a material breach or violation of obligations under the AGREEMENT, the non-breaching PARTY shall immediately notify the PARTY in breach.
- b. Notification shall be provided in writing and shall specify the nature of the breach.
- c. With respect to such breach or violation, upon receiving notice of the violation the non-breaching PARTY shall:
 - 1) Allow the breaching PARTY thirty (30) days to take reasonable steps to cure such breach or end such violation; and
 - Terminate this AGREEMENT, if cure is either not possible or unsuccessful; and
 - 3) Report the breach or violation to the SECRETARY if such termination is not feasible.

ATTACHMENT 2 Page 152 of 159

- d. Upon termination of this AGREEMENT for any reason, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall return or destroy all PHI consistent with Section 3.4 as follows:
 - BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall destroy PHI in a manner that renders the PHI unusable, unreadable or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals as specified in the HITECH ACT and shall certify in writing to COVERED ENTITY that such PHI has been destroyed in compliance with such standards; or
 - 2) Return of PHI shall be made in a mutually agreed upon format and timeframe and at no additional cost to BUSINESS ASSOCIATE.
- e. Where return or destruction are not feasible, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall continue to extend the protections of the AGREEMENT to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction of such PHI not feasible.
- 3.3 Termination for Breach. COVERED ENTITY may terminate the Underlying Agreement and this AGREEMENT upon thirty (30) days written notice in the event: (a) BUSINESS ASSOCIATE does not promptly enter into negotiations to amend this AGREEMENT when requested by COVERED ENTITY pursuant to Section 4.2 or (b) BUSINESS ASSOCIATE does not enter into an amendment to this AGREEMENT providing assurances regarding the safeguarding of Health Information that the COVERED ENTITY, deems sufficient to satisfy the standards and requirements of HIPAA and the HITECH ACT.
- 3.4 <u>Disposition of Health Information Upon Termination or Expiration</u>. Upon termination or expiration of this AGREEMENT, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall either return or destroy, in COVERED ENTITY's sole discretion and in accordance with any instructions by COVERED ENTITY, all Health Information in the possession or control of BUSINESS ASSOCIATE and its agents and subcontractors. In such event, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall retain no copies of such Health Information. If BUSINESS ASSOCIATE determines that neither return nor destruction of Health Information is feasible, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall notify COVERED ENTITY of the conditions that make return or destruction infeasible, and may retain Health Information provided that BUSINESS ASSOCIATE: (a) continues to comply with the provisions of this AGREEMENT for as long as it retains Health Information, and (b) further limits uses and disclosures of Health Information to those purposes that make the return or destruction of Health Information infeasible.

ARTICLE IV MISCELLANEOUS

4.1 <u>Indemnification</u>. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Underlying Agreement, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless COVERED ENTITY and COVERED ENTITY's employees, directors, officers, subcontractors or agents against all damages, losses, lost profits, fines, penalties, costs or expenses (including

reasonable attorneys' fees) and all liability to third parties arising from any breach of this AGREEMENT by BUSINESS ASSOCIATE or its employees, directors, officers, subcontractors, agents or other members of BUSINESS ASSOCIATE's workforce. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE's obligation to indemnify shall survive the expiration or termination of this AGREEMENT.

- 4.2 Amendment to Comply with Law. The PARTIES acknowledge that state and federal laws relating to electronic data security and privacy are rapidly evolving and that amendment of this AGREEMENT may be required to provide for procedures to ensure compliance with such developments. The PARTIES specifically agree to take such action as is necessary to implement the standards and requirements of HIPAA, the HITECH ACT and other applicable laws relating to the security or confidentiality of Health Information. The PARTIES understand and agree that COVERED ENTITY must receive satisfactory written assurance from BUSINESS ASSOCIATE that BUSINESS ASSOCIATE will adequately safeguard all Health Information that it receives or creates on behalf of COVERED ENTITY. Upon COVERED ENTITY's request, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE agrees to promptly enter into negotiations with COVERED ENTITY, concerning the terms of any amendment to this AGREEMENT embodying written assurances consistent with the standards and requirements of HIPAA, the HITECH ACT or other applicable laws.
- 4.3 <u>Modification of Agreement</u>. No alteration, amendment, or modification of this AGREEMENT shall be valid or effective unless in writing and signed the PARTIES.
- 4.4 <u>Non-Waiver.</u> A failure of any PARTY to enforce at any time any term, provision or condition of this AGREEMENT, or to exercise any right or option herein, shall in no way operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise preclude any other right or option herein. Waiver of any term, provision or condition of this AGREEMENT shall not be valid unless in writing, signed by the waiving PARTY and only to the extent set forth in such writing.
- 4.5 Agreement Drafted By All Parties. This AGREEMENT is the result of arm's length negotiations between the PARTIES and shall be construed to have been drafted by all PARTIES such that any ambiguities in this AGREEMENT shall not be construed against either PARTY.
- 4.6 <u>Severability</u>. If any provision of this AGREEMENT is found to be invalid or unenforceable by any court, such provision shall be ineffective only to the extent that it is in contravention of applicable laws without invalidating the remaining provisions hereof.
- 4.7 <u>No Third Party Beneficiaries</u>. There are no third party beneficiaries to this AGREEMENT.
- 4.8 <u>Counterparts</u>. This AGREEMENT may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and will become effective and binding upon the PARTIES as of the effective date at such time as all the signatories hereto have signed a counterpart of this AGREEMENT.

strued in accordance with the laws of the	This AGREEMENT shall be governed by and State of Florida. The PARTIES agree that all
Abigail Stanton, HIPAA 440 Court Street, 2 nd Floo Clearwater, FL 33756 4.10 Applicable Law and Venue. strued in accordance with the laws of the	Privacy Officer or This AGREEMENT shall be governed by and State of Florida. The PARTIES agree that all
Abigail Stanton, HIPAA 440 Court Street, 2 nd Floo Clearwater, FL 33756 4.10 Applicable Law and Venue. strued in accordance with the laws of the	Privacy Officer or This AGREEMENT shall be governed by and State of Florida. The PARTIES agree that all
strued in accordance with the laws of the	State of Florida. The PARTIES agree that all
struct in accordance with the laws of the	State of Florida. The PARTIES agree that all
ons or proceedings arising in connection wi usively in the state or federal courts located	
4.11 <u>Interpretation</u> . This AGREEME PARTIES to comply with the requirements	NT shall be construed in a manner that will cause
ARTIES to comply with the requirements of	of the AA and the HITECH ACT.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the duly executed in its name and on its behalf a	e undersigned has caused this AGREEMENT to effective as of thisday of, 2022.
VERED ENTITY:	BUSINESS ASSOCIATE:
ellas County Human Services	Center for Retional Civin
	By: Bold
t Name:	Print Name: Brad Collahan Print Title: Director
t Title:	Print Title: Director
PROVED AS TO FORM	
FICE OF COUNTY ATTORNEY	

ATTACHMENT 2 Page 155 of 159

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 04/25/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED.

ti	SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to his certificate does not confer rights to	o the term	is and conditions of the i	policy, certain polici	es may requir	e an endorsement. A st	atement o	on	
PRO	DUCER	the serie	notic noider in ned of su	CONTACT Laura T	avlor				
Ge	orge H. Odiorne Insurance Agency Inc.			PHONE (813)	(040) 6	(813) SPE 1933			
	Box 830			PHONE (A/C, No, Ext): (813) 685-7731 FAX (A/C, No): (813) 685-1 E-MAIL ADDRESS: Itaylor@odiorneinsurance.com					
Bra	ndon		W. Carrie	INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE					
-	1,111		FL 33509		AMERICAN IN	THE PERSON NAMED IN COLUMN		44393	
Curaparr Corporation 730 S Sterling Ave Ste 209 Suite 209				INSURER B: The H	artford Steam B	oiler		11452	
				INSURER C:					
				INSURER D :					
	Tampa		47.45.45	INSURER E :					
00	2010/11		FL 33609	INSURER F :					
TACE	HIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF IDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUI ERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERT. XCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH PO	INSURANC REMENT, 1 AIN, THE IN	ERM OR CONDITION OF AN SURANCE AFFORDED BY T	EN ISSUED TO THE INS Y CONTRACT OR OTH HE POLICIES DESCRIE	ER DOCUMENT	WITH DECDEOT TO MANOU	Time		
NSR LTR	TYPE OF INSURANCE	INSD WVD	POLICY NUMBER	POLICY EFF (MM/DD/YYYY		7.00	rro.		
	COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY	INSE WY	, octor namacić	(MM/DD/TYT)	(MM/DD/YYYY)	and have been been as a second	s 1,000	0.000	
	CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR	711				DAMAGE TO RENTED PREMISES (Ea occurrence)	s 1,000	0,000	
Α		1 1	DIMEDADORAS	10010000	San Service	MED EXP (Any one person)	s 15,00		
**	See Sharp Very 1973 St. W. 19		BLW58109846	10/12/2021	10/12/2022	PERSONAL & ADV INJURY	s 1,000		
	GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:					GENERAL AGGREGATE	\$ 2,000		
	OTHER:				in a	PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG	s 2,000	0,000	
	AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY				-	COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT	\$ 1.000	1000	
	ANYAUTO				1 - 7	(Ea accident)	s 1,000,000		
A	OWNED SCHEDULED	1 1	BAW58109846	10/12/2021	10/12/2022	BODILY INJURY (Per person)	S		
	AUTOS ONLY HIRED NON-OWNED		-0.000	10/12/2021	10/12/2022	BODILY INJURY (Per accident) PROPERTY DAMAGE	S		
	AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY	- 10 -				(Per accident)	S		
	UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR						\$		
	EVCESSIAR					EACH OCCURRENCE	Š		
	DED RETENTION S	1				AGGREGATE	\$		
	WORKERS COMPENSATION					I PER I LOTH	\$		
	AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y/N					PER OTH- STATUTE ER			
	ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? (Mandatory in NH)	N/A				E.L. EACH ACCIDENT	S		
	If yes, describe under DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below	AT MILY			17	E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE	S		
-	CAST AND CO.					E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT	S		
В	Cyber Liability		01-CY-0005512016-00	04/22/2022	04/22/2023	Limit:	\$1,00	0.000	
Cert	RIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLE ificate holder is added as additional insured \$96-Z345223 Table 167-0087 Table 167-0087 Table 167-0086 Table 167-0086 Table 167-0087 Table 167-0086 Table 167-0086 Table 167-0086 Table 167-0087 Table 167-0086 Table 167-0086 Table 167-0086 Table 167-0087 Table 167-0086 Table 167-0086 Table 167-0087 Ta	as their int	101, Additional Remarks Scheduk lerest may appear. Waiver o	e, may be attached if more f Subrogation in favor	space is required) of certificate hole	der.	1.		
CEF	TIFICATE HOLDER			CANCELLATION					
	Pinellas County, A Political Subd		ne Sta	SHOULD ANY OF THE EXPIRATION ACCORDANCE W	DATE THEREO	SCRIBED POLICIES BE CA F, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVE Y PROVISIONS.	NCELLED RED IN	BEFORE	
	Clearwater		FL 33756	8 Am 3 Pollet					

COPYRIGHT 2007, AMS SERVICES INC

OFAPPINF (02/2007)

ATTACHMENT 2

Page 157 of 159TE (MM/DD/YYYY)

04/25/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

this certificate does n	ot confer rights to	o the term o the certi	ns and conditions of the ificate holder in lieu of su	policy, ce uch endo	ertain policies rsement(s).	s may require	e an endorsemen	nt. A state	ement o	on
PRODUCER			ALDERSON DESCRIPTION OF THE STREET	CONTA NAME:		vlor			_	
George H. Odiorne Insuran	nce Agency Inc.	NAME: 2313 13701 PHONE (813) 685-7731 (A/C, No, Ext): (813) 685-182					85-1823			
PO Box 830		E-MAIL ADDRE	o, Ext):	odiorneinsuran	ce.com	(A/C, No):	10.07	100-1020		
		ACCOUNTS AND						ane.		
Brandon			FL 33509	INSURE	MEGEA	AMERICAN INS				NAIC # 44393
INSURED				INSURE	True I Co	rtford Steam Bo	Principle of the second		-	11452
Curaparr C	corporation			INSURER C:						11402
730 S Steri	ling Ave Ste 209			1 - 000						
Suite 209	The dist			INSURER D:						
Tampa			FL 33609	INSURE						
COVERAGES	CEI	TIFICATE	NUMBER: Master 22/2	INSURE 23	:RF:		REVISION NUME			
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISS	SUED OR MAY PERT DITIONS OF SUCH PO	TAIN. THE IN	CE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEI TERM OR CONDITION OF AN NSURANCE AFFORDED BY T MITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BE	THE POLICI EEN REDUC	ACT OR OTHER	R DOCUMENT ED HEREIN IS S LAIMS.	WITH RESPECT TO SUBJECT TO ALL TH	WHICH TI HE TERMS.	HIS	
COMMERCIAL GENE		INSD WV	POLICY NUMBER		(MM/DD/YYYY)	POLICY EXP (MM/DD/YYYY)		LIMIT		
	OCCUR						DAMAGE TO RENTE		4	0,000
CLAIMS-MADE	OCCUR			1			PREMISES (Ea occur	rrence)	9	0,000
A -			BLW58109846	1	10// 2/2004	1511210000	MED EXP (Any one pe	erson)	\$ 15,0	
100			DLVV30 103040	,	10/12/2021	10/12/2022	PERSONAL & ADV IN	JURY	3	0,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT POLICY PROJECT							GENERALAGGREGA	ATE	9	0,000
	T LOC					-	PRODUCTS - COMP/	OP AGG	Ψ	0,000
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY									\$	
ANY AUTO					- 1		(Ea accident)	300 W	\$ 1,000	000,0
—	SCHEDULED				dansatis	-coverage and	BODILY INJURY (Per	person)	S	
A OWNED AUTOS ONLY HIRED	AUTOS		BAW58109846		10/12/2021	10/12/2022	BODILY INJURY (Per	21000000	5	
AUTOS ONLY				1			PROPERTY DAMAGE (Per accident)		S	
					(S	
UMBRELLA LIAB	OCCUR	-				1	EACH OCCURRENCE	E	\$	
EXCESS LIAB	CLAIMS-MADE						AGGREGATE		\$	
WORKERS COMPENSATIO		G 11-3				4			s	
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILI	ITY Y/N						PER STATUTE	OTH- ER		
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNE OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLU	ER/EXECUTIVE	N/A					E.L. EACH ACCIDENT	T	\$	
(Mandatory in NH) If yes, describe under			7				E.L. DISEASE - EA EN	MPLOYEE	s	
DESCRIPTION OF OPERAT	TIONS below						E.L. DISEASE - POLIC	CYLIMIT	5	
B Cyber Liability			01-CY-0005512016-00		04/22/2022	04/22/2023	Limit:		\$1,00	000,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS. Certificate holder is added a Ref#96-Z345223 Contract# 167-0086/167-00	as additional insured	ES (ACORD	101, Additional Remarks Schedul terest may appear. Waiver o	le, may be at of Subroga	tached if more sp tion in favor of	ace is required) certificate hold	der.			
CERTIFICATE HOLDER					CANCELLATION					
	unty, A Political Subc Fort Harrison Avenue		he Sta	THE	EXPIRATION D	DATE THEREOF	SCRIBED POLICIES F, NOTICE WILL BE Y PROVISIONS.			BEFORE
100 000	OIL HOMOON AVOIDE			AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE						
Clearwater FL 33756					8 Aur Polut					

RFP Title: Adult Drug Court Treatment - Di	vision N and Z	TTACHMENT 2 age 158 of 159
RFP # 22-0317-P(LN) RFP Title: Adult Drug Court Treatment - Di	Additional Named Insureds	
Other Named Insureds		
Center For Rational Living	Doing Business As	
OFAPPINF (02/2007)	AGRUTION	007 AMO CERVICES ****
A LEAST OF THE PARTY OF THE PAR	COPYRIGHT 2	007, AMS SERVICES INC

WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY INSURANCE POLICY

FORM 09-5 (Ed. 10-19)

INFORMATION PAGE

ASCENDANT COMMERCIAL INSURANCE, INC.

A Stock Insurance Company NCCI Code #: 10233 PO BOX 141368 Coral Gables, FL 33114

POLICY NO. WC-70971-4

[] New Business

[X] A Renewal of: WC-70971-3

The Insured: CURAPARR CORPORATION - DBA CENTER FOR

RATIONAL LIVING Mailing Address:

730 S STERLING AVENUE SUITE 209

TAMPA, FL 33609

FEIN: 20-0221678

Risk ID: 093430964

[] Individual [] Partnership [X] Corporation [] Other

Other workplaces not shown above: (See WC 99 06 06)

- 2. The policy period is from June 1, 2021 12:01 AM to June 1, 2022 12:01 AM at the insured's mailing address.
- 3. Workers Compensation Insurance: Part One of the policy applies to the Workers Compensation Law of the states listed here: FL
 - B. Employers Liability Insurance: Part Two of the policy applies to work in each state listed in Item 3.A. The limits of our liability under Part Two are:

Bodily Injury by Accident \$500,000 each accident Bodily Injury by Disease \$500,000 policy limit Bodily Injury by Disease \$500,000 each employee

- C. Other States Insurance: Part Three of the policy applies to the states, if any, listed here:
- This policy includes these endorsements and schedules: (See WC 99 06 03)
- 4. The premium for this policy will be determined by our Manuals of Rules, Classifications, Rates and Rating Plans. All information required below is subject to verification and change by audit.

Classifications	Code	Premium Basis Total Estimated	Rate Per \$100 of	Estimated
	No.	Annual Remuneration	Remuneration	Annual Premium
		(See WC 99 06 04)		

Experience Rating Modification Factor: 0.00 (See WC 09 04 02 A)

Total Estimated Annual Premium: \$4.914.00 FL Workers Comp. Insurance Guaranty Assoc. Surcharge: \$0.00

> Total Amount Due: \$4,914.00

ATTACHMENT 3 Page 160 of 172

Agreement Modification Request

Human Services and Justice Coordination

For budget reallocation or minor agreement language modifications.

Autho	orized Official:				Date of Rec	quest:		
Agen	cy Name:		Effective Date:					
Program Name:				Modification Number:				
A.	REQUESTED MODIFIC supplies, operations)?					cted by this	change	(staff,
В.	BUDGET MODIFICATION documenting the new			nd complete t	he Revised Annua	al Budget Fo	rm	
	Program Budget Category:	Original Contract Amount:	Amount – Inc	t Modified rease & crease	New Budget Amount:	Amou Expended Effective	d as of	Modified Budget Balance:
	Contract Total:							
	Agency Authorized	Signature:					Date:	
	Nan	ne & Title:						
		DINITHA	COLINTY IIII	INAANI CEDVA	CEC OFFICE II	CE ONLY		
	DJECT MANAGER certifient the Contract Scope and Bud	s this modification			ditional project i		Date	
	proval GRANT/CONTAC	_					Date	
	proval CONTRACTS DIV		R				Date	
App	oroval HUMAN SERVICE	S DEPARTMEN				Date		

HIPAA BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

This Agreement (hereinafter referred to as AGREEMENT) is entered into by and between Pinellas County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida (hereinafter referred to as COVERED ENTITY) and the business associate named on the signature page hereof (hereinafter referred to as BUSINESS ASSOCIATE) (each hereinafter referred to as PARTY and collectively hereinafter referred to as the PARTIES) on this _____ day of _______, 2022.

WHEREAS, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE performs functions, activities, or services for, or on behalf of COVERED ENTITY, and BUSINESS ASSOCIATE receives, has access to or creates Health Information in order to perform such functions, activities or services; and

WHEREAS, COVERED ENTITY is subject to the Administrative Simplification requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and regulations promulgated there under (hereinafter referred to as HIPAA), including but not limited to, the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information and the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health Information found at 45 Code of Federal Regulations Parts 160, 162 and 164; and

WHEREAS, HIPAA requires COVERED ENTITY to enter into a contract with BUSINESS ASSOCIATE to provide for the protection of the privacy and security of Health Information, and HIPAA prohibits the disclosure to or use of Health Information by BUSINESS ASSOCIATE if such a contract is not in place; and

WHEREAS, as a result of the requirements of the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (hereinafter referred to as HITECH ACT), as incorporated in the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, and its implementing regulations and guidance issued by the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as SECRETARY), all as amended from time to time, the PARTIES agree to this AGREEMENT in order to document the PARTIES' obligations under the HITECH ACT.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged, the PARTIES agree as follows:

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS

 $1.1~{\rm ``Business~Associate''}$ shall generally have the same meaning as the term ``business associate'' at 45 CFR 160.103, and in reference to the party to this agreement, shall mean

1.2 "Covered Entity" shall generally have the same meaning as the term "covered entity" at 45 CFR 160.103, and in reference to the party to this agreement, shall mean Pinellas County by and through its Department of Human Services.

- 1.3 "<u>Disclose</u>" and "<u>Disclosure</u>" shall mean, with respect to Health Information, the release, transfer, provision of access to, or divulging in any other manner of Health Information outside BUSINESS ASSOCIATE's internal operations or to other than its employees.
- 1.4 "<u>Health Information</u>" shall mean information that: (a) relates to the past, present or future physical or mental health or condition of an individual; the provision of health care to an individual, or the past, present or future payment for the provision of health care to an individual; (b) identifies the individual (or for which there is a reasonable basis for believing that the information can be used to identify the individual); and (c) is received by BUSINESS ASSOCIATE from or on behalf of COVERED ENTITY, or is created by BUSINESS ASSOCIATE, or is made accessible to BUSINESS ASSOCIATE by COVERED ENTITY.
- 1.5 "<u>HIPAA Rules</u>". "HIPAA Rules" shall mean the Privacy, Security, Breach Notification, and Enforcement Rules at 45 CFR Part 160 and Part 164.
- 1.6 "<u>Privacy Regulations</u>" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Covered Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 Code of Federal Regulations Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA.
- 1.7 "Services" shall mean the services provided by BUSINESS ASSOCIATE pursuant to the Underlying Agreement, or if no such agreement is in effect, the services BUSINESS ASSOCIATE performs with respect to the COVERED ENTITY.
- 1.8 "<u>Underlying Agreement</u>" shall mean the services agreement executed by the COVERED ENTITY and BUSINESS ASSOCIATE, if any.
- 1.9 "<u>Use</u>" or "<u>Uses</u>" shall mean, with respect to Health Information, the sharing, employment, application, utilization, examination or analysis of such Health Information within BUSINESS ASSOCIATE's internal operations.
- 1.10 <u>Catch-all definition</u>: The following terms used in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as those terms in the HIPAA Rules: Breach, Data Aggregation, Designated Record Set, Disclosure, Health Care Operations, Individual, Minimum Necessary, Notice of Privacy Practices, Protected Health Information, Required By Law, Secretary, Security Incident, Subcontractor, Unsecured Protected Health Information, and Use, unless otherwise specifically defined or referred under this Agreement.

ARTICLE II OBLIGATIONS OF BUSINESS ASSOCIATE

- 2.1 <u>Initial Effective Date of Performance</u>. The obligations created under this AGREEMENT shall become effective immediately upon execution of this AGREEMENT or the agreement to which it is appended.
 - 2.2 <u>Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.</u> Business Associate agrees to:

- a. Not use or disclose protected health information other than as permitted or required by the Agreement or as required by law.
- b. Use appropriate safeguards, and comply with Subpart C of 45 CFR Part 164 with respect to electronic protected health information, to prevent use or disclosure of protected health information other than as provided for by the Agreement.
- c. Report to covered entity any unauthorized acquisition, access, use or disclosure of protected health information not provided for by the Agreement of which it becomes aware, including breaches of unsecured protected health information as required at 45 CFR 164.410, and any security incident of which it becomes aware.
- d. In accordance with 45 CFR 164.502(e)(1)(ii) and 164.308(b)(2), if applicable, ensure that any subcontractors that create, receive, maintain, or transmit protected health information on behalf of the business associate agree to the same restrictions, conditions, and requirements that apply to the business associate with respect to such information.
- e. Make available protected health information in a designated record set to the COVERED ENTITY as necessary to satisfy covered entity's obligations under 45 CFR 164.524.
- f. Make any amendment(s) to protected health information in a designated record set as directed or agreed to by the covered entity pursuant to 45 CFR 164.526, or take other measures as necessary to satisfy covered entity's obligations under 45 CFR 164.526.
- g. Maintain and make available the information required to provide an accounting of disclosures to the "covered entity" as necessary to satisfy covered entity's obligations under 45 CFR 164.528.
- h. To the extent the business associate is to carry out one or more of covered entity's obligation(s) under Subpart E of 45 CFR Part 164, comply with the requirements of Subpart E that apply to the covered entity in the performance of such obligation(s).
- i. Make its internal practices, books, and records available to the Secretary for purposes of determining compliance with the HIPAA Rules.
- 2.3 <u>Permitted Uses and Disclosures of Health Information</u>. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE is authorized to:
 - a. Use and Disclose Health Information as necessary to perform Services for, or on behalf of COVERED ENTITY.

164

- b. Use Health Information to create aggregated or de-identified information consistent with the requirements of the Privacy Regulations.
- c. Use or Disclose Health Information (including aggregated or de-identified information) as otherwise directed by COVERED ENTITY provided that COVERED ENTITY shall not request BUSINESS ASSOCIATE to use or disclose Health Information in a manner that would not be permissible if done by COVERED ENTITY.
- d. To the extent required by the HITECH ACT, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall limit its use, disclosure or request of PHI to the Limited Data Set or, if needed, to the minimum necessary to accomplish the intended use, disclosure or request, respectively. Effective on the date the SECRETARY issues guidance on what constitutes "minimum necessary" for purposes of HIPAA, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall limit its use, disclosure or request of PHI to only the minimum necessary as set forth in such guidance.
- BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall not use Health Information for any other purpose that would violate Subpart E of 45 CFR Part 164, except that if necessary, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE may use Health Information for the proper management and administration of BUSINESS ASSOCIATE or to carry out its legal responsibilities; provided that any use or disclosure described herein will not violate the Privacy Regulations or Florida law if done by COVERED ENTITY. Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE may disclose Health Information for the proper management and administration of the BUSINESS ASSOCIATE, provided that with respect to any such disclosure either: (a) the disclosure is required by law (within the meaning of the Privacy Regulations) or (b) the disclosure would not otherwise violate Florida law and BUSINESS ASSOCIATE obtains reasonable written assurances from the person to whom the information is to be disclosed that such person will hold the information in confidence and will not use or further disclose such information except as required by law or for the purpose(s) for which it was disclosed by BUSINESS ASSOCIATE to such person, and that such person will notify BUSINESS ASSOCIATE of any instances of which it is aware in which the confidentiality of the information has been breached.

2.4 Compliance with Security Provisions. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall:

- a. Implement and maintain administrative safeguards as required by 45 CFR § 164.308, physical safeguards as required by 45 CFR § 164.310 and technical safeguards as required by 45 CFR § 164.312.
- b. Implement and document reasonable and appropriate policies and procedures as required by 45 CFR § 164.316.

- c. Be in compliance with all requirements of the HITECH ACT related to security and applicable as if BUSINESS ASSOCIATE were a covered entity, as such term is defined in HIPAA.
- d. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall use its best efforts to implement and maintain technologies and methodologies that render PHI unusable, unreadable or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals as specified in the HITECH ACT.
- 2.5 <u>Compliance with Privacy Provisions</u>. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall only use and disclose PHI in compliance with each applicable requirement of 45 CFR § 164.504(e). BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall comply with all requirements of the HITECH ACT related to privacy and applicable as if BUSINESS ASSOCIATE were a covered entity, as such term is defined in HIPAA.
- 2.6 <u>Mitigation</u>. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE agrees to mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that is known to BUSINESS ASSOCIATE of a use or disclosure of Health Information by BUSINESS ASSOCIATE in violation of the requirements of this AGREEMENT.
- 2.7 <u>Breach of Unsecured PHI</u>. The provisions of this Section are effective with respect to the discovery of a breach of unsecured PHI occurring on or after September 23, 2009.
 - a. With respect to any unauthorized acquisition, access, use or disclosure of COVERED ENTITY'S PHI by BUSINESS ASSOCIATE, its agents or subcontractors, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall:
 - 1) Investigate such unauthorized acquisition, access, use or disclosure;
 - 2) Determine whether such unauthorized acquisition, access, use or disclosure constitutes a reportable breach under the HITECH ACT; and
 - 3) Document and retain its findings under clauses 1) and 2) of this Section.
 - b. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall notify COVERED ENTITY of all suspected breaches within five (5) business days of discovery. If the BUSINESS ASSOCIATE discovers that a reportable breach has occurred, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall notify COVERED ENTITY of such reportable breach in writing within three (3) days of the date BUSINESS ASSOCIATE discovers and determines that such breach is reportable. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall notify COVERED ENTITY immediately upon discovering a reportable breach of more than 500 individuals.
 - c. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall be deemed to have discovered a breach as of the first day that breach is either known to BUSINESS ASSOCIATE or any of its employees, officers or agents, other than the person who committed the breach, or by

through exercise of reasonable diligence, should have been known to BUSINESS ASSOCIATE or any of its employees, officers or agents, other than the person who committed the breach.

- d. To the extent the information is available to BUSINESS ASSOCIATE, it's written notice shall include the information required by 45 CFR §164.410.
- e. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall promptly supplement the written report with additional information regarding the breach as it obtains such information.
- f. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall cooperate with COVERED ENTITY in meeting the COVERED ENTITY's obligations under the HITECH ACT with respect to such breach. COVERED ENTITY shall have sole control over the timing and method of providing notification of such breach to the affected individual(s), the SECRETARY and, if applicable, the media, as required by the HITECH ACT.
- g. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall reimburse COVERED ENTITY for its reasonable costs and expenses in providing the notification, including, but not limited to, any administrative costs associated with providing notice, printing and mailing costs, and costs of mitigating the harm for affected individuals whose PHI has or may have been compromised as a result of the breach. In order to be reimbursed by BUSINESS ASSOCIATE, COVERED ENTITY must provide to BUSINESS ASSOCIATE a written accounting of COVERED ENTITY's actual costs and to the extent applicable, copies of receipts or bills with respect thereto.
- 2.8 <u>Availability of Internal Practices, Books and Records</u>. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE agrees to make its internal practices, books and records relating to the use and disclosure of Health Information available to the SECRETARY, for purposes of determining COVERED ENTITY's compliance with the Privacy Regulations.
- 2.9 Agreement to Restriction on Disclosure. If COVERED ENTITY is required to comply with a restriction on the disclosure of PHI pursuant to Section 13405 of the HITECH ACT, then COVERED ENTITY shall, to the extent needed to comply with such restriction, provide written notice to BUSINESS ASSOCIATE of the name of the individual requesting the restriction and the PHI affected thereby. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall, upon receipt of such notification, not disclose the identified PHI to any health plan for the purposes of carrying out payment or health care operations, except as otherwise required by law.
- 2.10 <u>Accounting of Disclosures</u>. Upon COVERED ENTITY's request, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall:
 - a. Provide to COVERED ENTITY an accounting of each disclosure of Health Information made by BUSINESS ASSOCIATE or its employees, agents, representatives or subcontractors as required by the Privacy Regulations. For each Disclosure that requires an accounting under this Section 2.10, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE

167

shall track the information required by the Privacy Regulations, and shall securely maintain the information for six (6) years from the date of the Disclosure.

- b. If BUSINESS ASSOCIATE is deemed to use or maintain an Electronic Health Record on behalf of COVERED ENTITY, then BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall maintain an accounting of any disclosures made through an Electronic Health Record for treatment, payment and health care operations, as applicable. Such accounting shall comply with the requirements of the HITECH ACT.
- c. Upon request by COVERED ENTITY, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall provide such accounting to COVERED ENTITY in the time and manner specified by the HITECH ACT.
- d. Where COVERED ENTITY responds to an individual's request for an accounting of disclosures made through an Electronic Health Record by providing the requesting individual with a list of all business associates acting on behalf of COVERED ENTITY; BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall provide such accounting directly to the requesting individual in the time and manner specified by the HITECH ACT.
- 2.11 <u>Use of Subcontractors and Agents</u>. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall require each of its agents and subcontractors that receive Health Information from BUSINESS ASSOCIATE to execute a written agreement obligating the agent or subcontractor to comply with all the terms of this AGREEMENT with respect to such Health Information.

2.12 Access to Electronic Health Records.

- a. If BUSINESS ASSOCIATE is deemed to use or maintain an Electronic Health Record on behalf of COVERED ENTITY with respect to PHI, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall provide an individual with a copy of the information contained in such Electronic Health Record in an electronic format and, if the individual so chooses, transmit such copy directly to an entity or person designated by the individual upon request, to the extent an individual has the right to request a copy of the PHI maintained in such Electronic Health Record pursuant to 45 CFR § 164.524 and makes such a request to BUSINESS ASSOCIATE.
- b. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE may charge a fee to the individual for providing a copy of such information, but such fee may not exceed BUSINESS ASSOCIATE's labor costs in responding to the request for the copy.
- c. The provisions of 45 CFR § 164.524, including the exceptions to the requirement to provide a copy of PHI shall otherwise apply and BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall comply therewith as if BUSINESS ASSOCIATE were the COVERED ENTITY.
- d. At COVERED ENTITY's request, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall provide COVERED ENTITY with a copy of an individual's PHI maintained in an

ATTACHMENT 4 168

Electronic Health Record in an electronic format in a time and manner designated by COVERED ENTITY in order for COVERED ENTITY to comply with 45 CFR § 164.524, as amended by the HITECH ACT.

2.13 <u>Limitations on Use of PHI for Marketing Purposes.</u>

- a. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall not use or disclose PHI for the purpose of making a communication about a product or service that encourages recipients of the communication to purchase or use the product or service, unless such communication:
 - 1) Complies with the requirements the definition of marketing contained in 45 CFR § 164.501; and
 - 2) Complies with the requirements of Subparagraphs a, b or c of Section 13406(a)(2) of the HITECH ACT.
- b. COVERED ENTITY shall cooperate with BUSINESS ASSOCIATE to determine if the foregoing requirements are met with respect to any such marketing communication.

ARTICLE III TERM AND TERMINATION

3.1 <u>Term.</u> Subject to the provisions of Sections 3.2 and 3.3, the term of this AGREEMENT shall be the term of the Underlying Agreement.

3.2 Termination of AGREEMENT.

- a. Upon becoming aware of a pattern of activity or practice of either PARTY that constitutes a material breach or violation of obligations under the AGREEMENT, the non-breaching PARTY shall immediately notify the PARTY in breach.
- b. Notification shall be provided in writing and shall specify the nature of the breach.
- c. With respect to such breach or violation, upon receiving notice of the violation the non-breaching PARTY shall:
 - 1) Allow the breaching PARTY thirty (30) days to take reasonable steps to cure such breach or end such violation; and
 - 2) Terminate this AGREEMENT, if cure is either not possible or unsuccessful; and
 - 3) Report the breach or violation to the SECRETARY if such termination is not feasible.

- d. Upon termination of this AGREEMENT for any reason, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall return or destroy all PHI consistent with Section 3.4 as follows:
 - 1) BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall destroy PHI in a manner that renders the PHI unusable, unreadable or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals as specified in the HITECH ACT and shall certify in writing to COVERED ENTITY that such PHI has been destroyed in compliance with such standards; or
 - 2) Return of PHI shall be made in a mutually agreed upon format and timeframe and at no additional cost to BUSINESS ASSOCIATE.
- e. Where return or destruction are not feasible, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall continue to extend the protections of the AGREEMENT to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction of such PHI not feasible.
- 3.3 <u>Termination for Breach</u>. COVERED ENTITY may terminate the Underlying Agreement and this AGREEMENT upon thirty (30) days written notice in the event: (a) BUSINESS ASSOCIATE does not promptly enter into negotiations to amend this AGREEMENT when requested by COVERED ENTITY pursuant to Section 4.2 or (b) BUSINESS ASSOCIATE does not enter into an amendment to this AGREEMENT providing assurances regarding the safeguarding of Health Information that the COVERED ENTITY, deems sufficient to satisfy the standards and requirements of HIPAA and the HITECH ACT.
- 3.4 <u>Disposition of Health Information Upon Termination or Expiration</u>. Upon termination or expiration of this AGREEMENT, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall either return or destroy, in COVERED ENTITY's sole discretion and in accordance with any instructions by COVERED ENTITY, all Health Information in the possession or control of BUSINESS ASSOCIATE and its agents and subcontractors. In such event, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall retain no copies of such Health Information. If BUSINESS ASSOCIATE determines that neither return nor destruction of Health Information is feasible, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE shall notify COVERED ENTITY of the conditions that make return or destruction infeasible, and may retain Health Information provided that BUSINESS ASSOCIATE: (a) continues to comply with the provisions of this AGREEMENT for as long as it retains Health Information, and (b) further limits uses and disclosures of Health Information to those purposes that make the return or destruction of Health Information infeasible.

ARTICLE IV MISCELLANEOUS

4.1 <u>Indemnification</u>. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Underlying Agreement, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless COVERED ENTITY and COVERED ENTITY's employees, directors, officers, subcontractors or agents against all damages, losses, lost profits, fines, penalties, costs or expenses (including

reasonable attorneys' fees) and all liability to third parties arising from any breach of this AGREEMENT by BUSINESS ASSOCIATE or its employees, directors, officers, subcontractors, agents or other members of BUSINESS ASSOCIATE's workforce. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE's obligation to indemnify shall survive the expiration or termination of this AGREEMENT.

- 4.2 Amendment to Comply with Law. The PARTIES acknowledge that state and federal laws relating to electronic data security and privacy are rapidly evolving and that amendment of this AGREEMENT may be required to provide for procedures to ensure compliance with such developments. The PARTIES specifically agree to take such action as is necessary to implement the standards and requirements of HIPAA, the HITECH ACT and other applicable laws relating to the security or confidentiality of Health Information. The PARTIES understand and agree that COVERED ENTITY must receive satisfactory written assurance from BUSINESS ASSOCIATE that BUSINESS ASSOCIATE will adequately safeguard all Health Information that it receives or creates on behalf of COVERED ENTITY. Upon COVERED ENTITY's request, BUSINESS ASSOCIATE agrees to promptly enter into negotiations with COVERED ENTITY, concerning the terms of any amendment to this AGREEMENT embodying written assurances consistent with the standards and requirements of HIPAA, the HITECH ACT or other applicable laws.
- 4.3 <u>Modification of Agreement</u>. No alteration, amendment, or modification of this AGREEMENT shall be valid or effective unless in writing and signed the PARTIES.
- 4.4 <u>Non-Waiver.</u> A failure of any PARTY to enforce at any time any term, provision or condition of this AGREEMENT, or to exercise any right or option herein, shall in no way operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise preclude any other right or option herein. Waiver of any term, provision or condition of this AGREEMENT shall not be valid unless in writing, signed by the waiving PARTY and only to the extent set forth in such writing.
- 4.5 Agreement Drafted By All Parties. This AGREEMENT is the result of arm's length negotiations between the PARTIES and shall be construed to have been drafted by all PARTIES such that any ambiguities in this AGREEMENT shall not be construed against either PARTY.
- 4.6 <u>Severability</u>. If any provision of this AGREEMENT is found to be invalid or unenforceable by any court, such provision shall be ineffective only to the extent that it is in contravention of applicable laws without invalidating the remaining provisions hereof.
- 4.7 <u>No Third Party Beneficiaries</u>. There are no third party beneficiaries to this AGREEMENT.
- 4.8 <u>Counterparts</u>. This AGREEMENT may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and will become effective and binding upon the PARTIES as of the effective date at such time as all the signatories hereto have signed a counterpart of this AGREEMENT.

4.9	Notices. The PARTIES design	ate the following to accept notice on their behalf:
	If to BUSINESS ASSO	CIATE:
	If to COVERED ENTITY Abigail Stanton, HIPAA 440 Court Street, 2 nd Flo Clearwater, FL 33756	ΓΥ: A Privacy Officer
actions or pro	accordance with the laws of the oceedings arising in connection v	This AGREEMENT shall be governed by and the State of Florida. The PARTIES agree that all with this AGREEMENT shall be tried and litigated and in or nearest to Pinellas County, Florida.
4.11 the PARTIES		ENT shall be construed in a manner that will cause s of HIPAA and the HITECH ACT.
		the undersigned has caused this AGREEMENT to f effective as of thisday of, 2022.
COVERED 1	ENTITY:	BUSINESS ASSOCIATE:
Pinellas Cour	nty Human Services	
Ву:		By:
Print Name:		Print Name:
Print Title: _		Print Title:
	O AS TO FORM COUNTY ATTORNEY	
Ву:		
	nt County Attorney	

RFP Title: Adult Drug Court - Division N and Z

ATTACHMENT 5 Data Sharing Agreement

WHEREAS, homelessness, substance abuse, mental health services, and human services are issues which cross many systems; and

WHEREAS, Pinellas County is interested in including program and service related information in the Pinellas County Data Collaborative (hereinafter referred to as ("Data Collaborative"), to better understand cross-system involvement; and

WHEREAS, organizations within Pinellas County are interested in understanding the extent that client populations move within systems to better serve the population needs; and

WHEREAS, the County is a member of the Data Collaborative; and

WHEREAS, the Data Collaborative has the ability to receive and analyze data in a secure manner to provide valuable system information.

NOW, THEREFORE in consideration of the following agreements, the parties do hereby covenant and agree to the following:

- 1. The Agency will provide program information to include operational, fiscal, client service, and other program information in electronic format to the County for the sole purpose of research and policy development. This information will be provided quarterly or on an as needed basis as defined by the County.
- 2. This information will be crossed through the Data Collaborative with systems containing state and local information about involvement in criminal justice, human services, mental health, substance abuse, EMS and other systems as available for the sole purpose of understanding cross-system involvement for policy and planning.
- 3. The County will assure that the information used by the Data Collaborative will not be released, shared, or transferred in an identifiable manner to any organization and will be stored in a HIPAA compliant location.
- 4. The County will assure that confidential nature of any and all information with respect to any records and reports created or disseminated is maintained. The Parties also agree that the information will be used only for the purpose for which it was provided.
- 5. Modification of this agreement shall be made only by the consent of both Parties and shall include a written document setting forth the modifications and signed by both Parties. This agreement may be terminated with 30 days written notice to the other party.
- 6. The Parties shall assist in the investigation of injury or damages for or against either party pertaining to their respective areas of responsibility or activities under this contract and shall contact the other party regarding the legal actions deemed appropriate to remedy such damage or claims.